
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 18th July, 2017
Time: 5.00 pm.
Venue: Committee Room 1 - Rochdale Town Hall, 

Rochdale, OL16 1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 10

To consider the minutes of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 14th June 2017 

6.  DIRECTORATE PLANS 11 - 55

To consider Directorate Plans for 2017/18 and identify any areas for 
inclusion in the Committee’s work programme. 

Public Document Pack



7.  4TH QUARTER PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2016/17  - 
CONTACT CENTRE PRESENTATION - AGYLISYS KPI UPDATE 

To scrutinise a presentation in relation to the fourth Quarter 
Performance Monitoring 2016/17, in respect of The Contact Centre 
and Agylisys KPI Update. 

 

8.  4TH QUARTER PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2016/17- 
CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 

56 - 66

To scrutinise the corporate complaints and compliments received 
during the fourth quarter of 2016 and instigate the appropriate 
action/make recommendations. 

9.  4TH QUARTER PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2016/17- HEALTH 
RELATED ABSENCE REPORTING 

67 - 70

To scrutinise the year-end health related absence figures for the 
Council for 2016/17 and instigate the appropriate action/make 
recommendations.  

10.  REVENUE AND BENEFITS - PRESENTATION 71 - 97

To receive a presentation and a report regarding the Key Priorities, 
Challenges and Charges in the Revenues and Benefits Services.  

11.  BUDGET 2018/19 TO 2020/21 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT - PRESENTATION 

98 - 113

To consider the budget guidelines, timetable for 2018/19 to 2019/21.  

12.  CYBER SECURITY - PRESENTATION 

To scrutinise the cyber security strategy and instigate appropriate 
actions/make recommendations.   

13.  ASSET STRATEGY - PROGRESS REPORT 2016/17 114 - 143

To scrutinise a report of the Director of Economy.   

14.  WORK PROGRAMME 144 - 152

To review the Committee’s work programme.   



Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Andy Bell
Councillor Robert Clegg Councillor Michael Holly
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Shahada Shahid
Governance and Committee Services Officer
01706 924713
shahada.shahid@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:Shahada.shahid@rochdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 14th June 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Clegg (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Holly, 
Meredith, O’Rourke, Robinson, Rush, Smith and Zaman.

OFFICERS: J. Rooney (Assistant Director - Information, Customers and 
Communities), D. Brierley (Neighbourhoods Directorate), J. Murphy, S. 
Shahid, S. Smith and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate). 

APOLOGIES
1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bell and Zaheer.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 In accordance to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Robinson 
declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 (Revenue Finance Outturn 
Report 2016/17) insofar as a family member of hers was an employee of the 
Borough’s Leisure Trust, Link4Life, whose current budgetary position was 
referred to in the report attached to this item.

MINUTES
3 The Committee considered the minutes of their last meeting held 9th 
March 2017. Further to minute 121 (Collection Fund Update 2016/17) the 
Assistant Director (Finance) advised that the investigation referred to in that 
minute was still subject to legal proceedings and therefore she was not in a 
position to update the Committee at this time.

DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee held 9th March 2017 be approved, as a correct 
record. 

HEALTH RELATED ABSENCE
4 The Committee considered the notes of an informal meeting of the 
Committee’s membership that was held 9th March 2017. The informal meeting 
had been convened further to Minute 73 of the meeting of Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee held 20th December 2016 and to allow Members the 
opportunity to examine the Council’s policy relating to sickness absence in the 
light of increased levels of absence levels across the Authority that were 
reported to the meeting on 20th December 2016.

The informal meeting on 9th March 2017 had agreed that authority be sought 
from the Committee to establish a Scrutiny Study Group to examine in depth 
the Council’s Health Related Absence Policies and make appropriate 
recommendations thereon. However since the meeting on 9th March 2017, 
Members noted that the Council’s Head of Human Resources had left the 
authority and that her replacement was due to take up her position on 
Monday, 3rd July 2017. Therefore it was suggested that establishment of a 
study group in this regard be deferred to the Committee’s next meeting, on 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



18th July 2017, and that the newly appointed Head of Human Resources be 
invited to that meeting to discuss matters pertaining to the establishment, 
organisation and operation of a Member’s study group relating to Health 
Related Absence Policies.

DECIDED – That (1) the proceedings of the Committee’s informal 
session held, 9th March 2017, be noted;

(2) consideration of issues pertaining to the establishment of a 
member’s scrutiny study group appertaining to the Council’s Health 
Related Absence Policies be deferred to the Committee’s next meeting 
on 18th July 2017 in discussion with the new Head of Human Resources. 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME 2017/18
5 The Committee considered their draft Work Programme for 2017/18 
and the actions list for the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee which 
were circulated with the agenda papers and the Chair referred to the 
workshop event that had been held on 12th June 2017, for Members of the 
Council’s three Overview and Scrutiny Committees to develop their Work 
Programmes. 

In terms of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee a potential study 
group topic had already been identified: Sickness Absences (see minute 4 
above) and in addition Members requested that during 2017/18 information be 
presented in terms of Greater Manchester wide developments – an issue that 
was even more pressing now that Andy Burnham had been elected as Mayor 
for the Manchester City region on 4th May 2017. In this regard it was 
suggested that Mr. Eamonn Boylan, the recently appointed Chief Executive of 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, be invited to a future meeting of 
the Committee to discuss issues relating to Greater Manchester devolution 
especially in terms of the impact and implications for Rochdale Borough 
Council.

In considering the Committee’s objectives and priorities the Committee 
requested sight of the following documents at the next scheduled meeting of 
the Committee on 18th July 2017 (irrespective of their state of development): 
Corporate Plan; Place Plan; and the Directorate Plans for the Resources 
Directorate and the Neighbourhoods Directorate, in the latter case insofar as it 
relates to corporate services within that Directorate. Also members of the 
Committee asked if issues relating to the Revenues and Benefits Service and 
ICT related developments could be added to the Committee’s Work 
Programme. It was noted too that there were potential overlaps in the work 
programme of this Committee and of the Audit and Governance Committee 
and it was suggested that, during the course of 2017/18, a joint informal 
session of the two Committee’s memberships be held to discuss potential joint 
issues of concern. 

The Committee were advised that some issues could be scrutinised in 
conjunction with one or both of the other two Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees; in this regard Homelessness had been identified as a potential 

Page 5



example of cross-committee working because this subject had implications 
that were relevant to the terms and references of all three of the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  The Committee were advised that 
Councillor Robinson, in her capacity as the Assistant to the Cabinet Member 
with specific responsibility for homelessness issues was leading the 
development of a Council wide strategy. It was also noted that the issue of 
homelessness and rough sleeping had been identified as a priority by the new 
Mayor, Andy Burnham. Another issue identified in this regard were the 
proposals to redevelop Rochdale town centre especially with regard to the 
Rochdale Riverside development proposals. The Committee noted that joint 
meetings had previously been held with the Communities, regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee in this regard and it was 
requested that these meetings continue to be held as key milestones in the 
project reached a stage where a decision by the Cabinet and/or the Council 
was required. 

Members of the Committee also requested that wherever possible the 
relevant Director and Cabinet Member be asked to attend future meetings to 
(co)present reports and to answer questions from members.

In considering the Work Programme the Committee received an update on the 
Electronic Research and Intelligence Centre (eRIC) which went live in 
December 2016. This system was in the process of being rolled out across 
the authority and specific training courses thereon, for both staff and 
Councillors, would be held during 2017/18. 

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) Mr. Eamonn Boylan, the recently appointed Chief Executive of 

the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, be invited to a future 
meeting of the Committee to discuss issues relating to Greater 
Manchester devolution especially in terms of the impact and 
implications for Rochdale Borough Council;

(3) the clerk to the Committee be requested to make the necessary 
arrangements for the Corporate Plan; Place Plan; and the Directorate 
Plans for the Resources Directorate and the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate (in the latter case insofar as it relates to corporate services 
within that Directorate), to be submitted to the next meeting of the 
Committee on 18th July 2017 to further assist Members in the 
development of the Committee’s Work Programme 2017/18;

(4) the clerk to the Committee’s be requested to add items relating 
to the Revenues and Benefits Service and ICT related developments to 
the Committee’s Work Programme 2017/18;

(5) the Committee notes that homelessness is a potential topic for 
a scrutiny study group involving members from all three of the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees;

(6) that further joint informal meetings, involving members of this 
Committee an of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee be held as key milestones in the 
Rochdale Riverside development project are reached and which require 
decisions thereon by the Council’s Cabinet;

Page 6



(7) that wherever possible the relevant Director and Cabinet 
Member be asked to attend future meetings to (co)present reports and to 
answer questions from members

(8) the update on the electronic Research and Intelligence Centre 
(eRIC) be noted and Members further note that the Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers and Communities) will be organising training 
sessions thereon, in due course.

PLACE BRANDING - PRESENTATION
6 Further to minute 110 of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, held 9th March 2017, the Council’s Head of 
Communications delivered a presentation that detailed issues and 
circumstances relating to the launch of the new ‘Place Branding Project and 
Rochdale Brand’, including a detailed update on the action plan for the Project 
containing the aims, objectives and outcomes of the scheme, it’s likely 
benefits and value added that will be accrued following its implementation, 
with a projected timeline of key milestones on the road to completion.

A key theme in the project was the image of the Rochdale Borough being a 
desirable place to live and work. The Borough geographically straddled the 
M62 and was of course part of the Greater Manchester conurbation with easy 
access to Manchester city centre. Also the M62 afforded easy access to the 
West Yorkshire and Merseyside areas with the cities of Leeds and Liverpool 
being less than an hour’s driving time away. The Borough as well sat at the 
north eastern edge of Greater Manchester and as such gave easy access to 
open countryside.

It was noted that a key theme in the strategy was ‘space’ and ‘space’ was to 
be applied in its broadest sense so building on the concept of Rochdale being 
a desirable place to live and work.

There was a Place Board that was responsible for overseeing the 
development of the strategy. This Board was established in March 2017 and 
comprised local people mainly ‘senior business leaders’ and their main tasks 
were to attract investment into the Borough and promoting tourism into the 
Borough thereby creating more opportunities for local residents.

There was a major trade exhibition to be held in Manchester city centre later 
on in 2017 at which the Place Board was to have a stall, which was in effect a 
platform from which the Borough of Rochdale could be sold to a much wider 
and influential audience.

Members of the Committee asked questions of the presenter noting that the 
document promoted all four of the Borough’s Townships and contained many 
‘good news’ stories about the Borough and the people who live there. 
Members were advised that the Board is a private sector group with some 
council representation (the Leader and Chief Executive), but is not a body that 
Members can simply join.

DECIDED – That (1) the presentation be noted and welcomed;

Page 7



(2) the Head of Communications be requested to provide 
members of the Committee with further details on the composition of the 
Borough’s Place Board.

DIRECTORATE PLANS 2016-17 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
7 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers and Communities) detailing the progress at the end 
of quarter 4 (1st January 2017 – 31st March 2017) towards achievements of 
the targets contained in the Resources Directorate Plan 2016/2017 and 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016/2017.  

Neighbourhoods Directorate
In considering the report Members of the Committee sought clarification and 
feedback regarding the progress, challenges and measures in place to ensure 
the projects were on track and discussed the implications for those that had 
been delayed. It was reported that two of the action included in the Directorate 
Plan 2016/17 did not achieve target, one action had a red status and another 
had an amber status. Six actions had a green status, signifying completion.

The one red action related to the launch of the new place branding project and 
Rochdale brand. The Assistant Director reported that all branding materials for 
the project had been updated and a new Communications Group was meeting 
to discuss strategies and how best to promote the Borough. Members of the 
Committee requested information pertaining to the membership of the 
Communications Group. Members of this Committee noted that the Cabinet 
had recently approved the Authority’s Communications Strategy had been 
recently approved by the Cabinet and Members requested that it be submitted 
to a future meeting of this Committee for information purposes.

Resources Directorate
The Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities) provided 
the Committee with a progress update on the Directorate Plan and key issues 
for the Directorate during the fourth quarter of 2016/17.

 Three of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2016-17 did not achieve 
target, one action had a red status and the other two actions had an amber 
status. 15 actions had a green status.

The red action related to the Capital Investment Strategy which had not been 
completed due to other priorities around the budget setting process but work  
as due to recommence during 2017/18 and a report to members, including 
this Committee, would be submitted in due course.

The two amber actions related to Apprenticeships: these had been delayed. 
An exercise was currently being undertaken to assess and consider various 
implications for the Authority in this regard in terms of ‘Horizon Scanning of 
Change’, the Assistant Director advised that further information on this matter 
would be submitted to the Committee in due course. The second amber status 
related to improving accessibility to services across the Council. The meeting 

Page 8



was infomed that little progress had been made, moving this forward, due to 
delays in ICT and improvements were expected to be made during 2017/18.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 

Communities) be requested to forward membership details of the 
Communications Group to Members of this Committee; 

3) the Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 
Communities) be requested to submit the Council’s Communications 
Strategy to a future meeting of this Committee, for Member’s 
information;

REVENUE FINANCE OUTTURN REPORT 2016/17
8 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources which 
advised on the Council’s revenue financial position as at the end of the 
2016/17 financial year and which sought consideration a number of matters to 
enable a confirmed outturn position.
 
The recommendations were presented to the Cabinet, at its meeting on 13th 
June 2017, where the various recommendations were approved, to ensure 
effective financial management to keep Council expenditure within available 
resources.

A Memebr of the Committee referred to that part of the report (paragraph 
4.2.6) that detailed ‘budget carry forward requests’ from Services, totalling 
£3.942m, that have been agreed by the Director of Resources in consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and the Council’s Leadership Team and 
asked for clarification of these requests.
  
DECIDED – That (1) the Council’s 2016/17 Revenue Budget Outturn 
position be noted;

(2) that the Assistant Director (Finance) be requested to forward to 
members of the Committee further details clarifying the ‘budget carry 
forward requests’ which are referenced at paragraph 4.2.6 of the 
submitted report.

CAPITAL FINANCE OUTTURN REPORT 2016/17
9 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources that 
advised on the Council’s capital financial position as at the end of the 2016/17 
financial year and which had sought approval of the identified amendments to 
enable a confirmed outturn position.
 
The recommendations in the report, which were approved by the Cabinet at 
its meeting on 13th June 2017, were to ensure effective financial management 
and to keep Council expenditure within available resources.

A Member referred to paragraph 4.9 of the submitted report (Capital Receipts) 
noting that Leighton House, Rochdale had been sold as part of the 
improvement scheme for the House.
 

Page 9



DECIDED – That the 2016/17 Capital Budget Outturn position be noted.

SAVINGS OUTTURN REPORT 201617
10 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources which 
advised Members of the Council’s savings financial outturn position at the end 
of the 2016/17 financial year. The Committee noted that this report had been 
considered by the Cabinet, at its meeting on 13th June 2017.

DECIDED – That the report be noted. 

COLLECTION FUND OUTTURN 2016/17
11 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources which 
advised Members on the Council’s Collection Fund position as at the end of 
the 2016/17 financial year. It was noted that this report had been submitted to 
the Cabinet, at its meeting on 13th June 2017.

In considering the report the Committee sought clarification on the funds that 
were collected in the Borough on behalf of the Greater Manchester Mayor.

It was further noted by the Committee that Rochdale Council’s performance in 
terms of the Collection Fund was statistically the best of the 10 Authorities that 
made up Greater Manchester.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Assistant Director (Finance) be requested to write to 

members of the Committee confirming those specific items for which 
the Council collects funds on behalf of the Mayor for the Greater 
Manchester City Region.

DELEGATED APPROVALS 2016/17
12 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources that 
provided details of approvals of spend under delegated powers, Financial 
Regulations 2a and 2d, in relation to Revenue and Capital Schemes funded 
by additional grants or income during 2016/17.

The Council’s financial regulations required that a retrospective report be 
submitted to the Cabinet providing a summary of the schemes that have been 
approved where delegated powers are exercised.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY POOL
13 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the GMCA/AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool held 7th April 2017 be noted.

Page 10



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

   
 
 
 

 
          

      

   

 

          

      

 

           

          

          

  

 

          

           

         

      

          

       

  

 

         

    

 

       
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  
 

 

 

  

CorporatePlan2016-2019 

Rochdale is the birthplace of co-operation, and the Council is committed to 

retaining this distinction by working with partners, local people and 

communities to improve the lives of local people. 

Our vision is to be a Council which builds success and prosperity with our citizens 

and partners, while protecting vulnerable people. 

We embrace the three priorities of People, Place and Prosperity set out in the 

Borough’s Place Plan, and within this context, our focus over the next three-

years will be on improving education (people), our local environment (place) 

and our local economy (prosperity). 

This plan affirms our commitment to the Borough’s Place Plan and the key 

partnership plans that underpin it. A key driver over the next 3-years is the 

integration of health and social care and we are working closely with the 

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group and other 

partners from the health, social care and voluntary and community sectors to 

achieve this, so that outcomes for vulnerable children and adults improve and 

health and social care services are joined up. 

Improving performance is our fourth priority. We will remain focused on 

managing our resources effectively to help us to achieve our ambitions. 

Our values are at the heart of everything we do. We will: 

 Value our people Contact us: 
 Focus on our customers

 Act with integrity

 Use time and money wisely

 Work together

 Always learn and improve

 council@rochdale.gov.uk 

 www.rochdale.gov.uk 

Rochdale Borough Council 

@RochdaleCouncil 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

mailto:council@rochdale.gov.uk
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/


    

 

     

 

          

     

      

 

        

        

   

 

       

        

  

 

        

        

   

 

            

       

   

 

 

 
 

         

       

               

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

Doing things differently 

In common with other areas, we face significant financial challenges, which we will 

address by working differently. We have identified a number of key corporate enabling 

work programmes that will help us to do this, ensuring that we have the capacity to 

achieve the outcomes we are seeking. 

Our key corporate enabling work programmes 

 Capitalising on the benefits arising from Devolution to Greater Manchester

 Integration of health and social care – working closely across

organisational boundaries, and sharing budgets and staff to commission

high-quality joined up care at the right time and in the right place

 Behaviour change – encouraging and supporting people and

communities to be independent and resilient, developing a culture of

social responsibility where people help themselves and each other

 Volunteering – building capacity by encouraging and supporting

volunteers and voluntary, community and faith groups to work alongside

us to achieve our vision

 New service delivery models - looking for ways to save money by exploring

opportunities to do things differently, for example by sharing some of our

services with other councils and public sector bodies

 Improving value for money – managing our people and our money,

seeking out best practice, making better use of data and intelligence and

streamlining decision-making

Page 12



 

       

         

       

       

     

 

       

      

        

 

          

      

      

      

       

     

 

 
 

  
 

      

   

    

  

    

 
      

    

      

  

  

     

 
 

 

 

      

     

 

    

   

 

     

   

 

     

   

    

 
 

 
 

     

 

  

   

  

   

 

  

 

 

    

  

 

       

 
 

  

   

 
 

    

 

 

 

 

PEOPLE 

We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable 

people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and to 

successfully manage their lives. We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

Where needed, we will provide good quality 

services and targeted support, providing early 

help to reduce the need for intervention. 

We will work in partnership with others to do this, 

directing our resources towards achieving the 

outcomes identified in partnership plans, including 

the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Co-operating 

for better health and wellbeing) and the Children 

and Young Peoples’ Plan. 

A	 focus on education 

Education is the key to success. Children learn 

from the day they are born and we need to 

encourage and support them to continue to 

learn throughout their childhood, into 

adulthood and throughout their lives. 

This includes formal learning, leading to 

successful academic achievements at school, 

colleges and universities, as well as encouraging 

and supporting children and adults to learn to 

become independent and resilient, so that they

are better equipped to help themselves and

each other. 

Our focus over the next three-years will be on 

ensuring that children are ready for school at 

aged four and that they achieve the 

qualifications they need to prepare them for 

work and a prosperous life. 

We will work in partnership with schools to 

deliver Rochdale Schools Strategy. 

We will deliver the Raising Participation Strategy 

working in partnership with colleges and 

employers to improve the skills of young people 

so that more people can gain employment. 

The outcomes we want to see: 

 More children ‘school ready’ at age four

 More young people achieving 8 or more

GCSEs at grades A*-C including English and

maths and making at least expected

progress between the ages of 11 and 16

 More young people achieving at least 2 A-

levels

 More young people progressing from school

into higher education

 More adults qualified to Level 2 and Level 4

NVQ

The key corporate enabling work 

programme that will underpin this 

work 

 GM Devolution

Page 13



 

        

        

   

 

          

      

     

      

      

    

 

 
 

 
 

       

     

     

      

      

  

 

     

     

      

       

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
        

    

 

        

  

 

        

 

           

   

 
         

     

 
           

 

 

   

  

 

 
    

 

    
 

  
 

    

  

 

 

 

PLACE 

We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high 

quality places where people choose to live, work 

and invest. 

We will work in partnership with others to do this, 

directing our resources towards achieving the 

outcomes identified in partnership plans, including, 

the Safer Communities Strategy, the Greater 

Manchester Spatial Plan and Transport Strategy 

and the Housing Statement. 

A focus on the environment 

The environment in which people live has 

an important influence on wellbeing, 

safety, health, education and community 

cohesion and also plays an important 

role in attracting investment into the 

Borough. 

Reducing crime, providing and supporting 

the development of high-quality housing 

and improving the cleanliness of the 

environment we live in is therefore essential 

to creating a prosperous and vibrant 

Borough. 

The outcomes we want to see: 

 Less crime and anti-social behaviour and less

fear of crime

 More high-quality housing that is affordable to

local people

 More of our roads in good condition

 More of our streets and public areas of a good

standard of cleanliness

 More of our parks of ‘Green Flag’ standard
and managed by ‘Friends’ Groups

 More waste recycled and less waste going to

landfill

The key corporate enabling work 

programmes that will underpin this 

work 

 GM Devolution

 Behaviour change

 Volunteering

 New service delivery models

 Improving value for money

Page 14



 
 

       

         

 

          

      

      

       

       

     

 

 
 

      
 

        
     
  

 

        
     

     

 

         
       
       

      
     

    
    

   

 

 

 

 
  

  

 

   

  

 

     

 

 

     

 

 

     

 

 

  

 
 

   

  

 

 
    

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

PROSPERITY 

We will encourage business growth and enterprise, 

creating the conditions for more good quality jobs. 

We will work in partnership with others to do this, 

directing our resources towards achieving the 

outcomes identified in partnership plans, including 

the Investment and Growth Plan, the Greater 

Manchester Growth and Reform Plan and Greater 

Manchester Stronger Together. 

The outcomes we want to see: 

 More young people in education,

employment or training at 16-18 years of age

 More apprenticeship opportunities for 16-24

year olds

 More new businesses and more existing

businesses supported to grow

A focus on the local economy 

Employment is the best route out of poverty, 
enabling independence, creating wealth and 
increasingaspirations. 

We are committed to playing our part in 
creating the conditions for economic 
prosperity in the Borough. 

Working in partnership, we will do all we can 
to encourage businesses to invest and thrive 
in the Borough. We will promote the 
Borough’s image and reputation, and will 
continue to support residents into 
employment by strengthening links with 
Greater Manchester, enabling more 
residents to access employment. 

 An increase in business investment and

wealth creation

 More jobs and local people employed in

the Borough

 More land being developed for 

employment use

The key corporate enabling work 

programmes that will underpin this 

work 

 GM Devolution

 Volunteering

Page 15



 

            

             

    

 

  

 

    

             

       

 

         

     

 

    

 

  

    

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

PERFORMANCE 

We provide and commission a wide range of services for local people and communities, 

often working in partnership with others to ensure that services meet customers’ needs
and expectations, are of high-quality and provide the best value for the resources we use. 

The outcomes we want to see: 

 Council spending kept within budget

 Collection of as much council tax, business rates and other monies owed to us as we can

 A healthy, motivated and resilient workforce with empowered staff and less absence due to

sickness

 More services accessible on-line or over the phone so that people can use them easily and quickly

 Improved satisfaction with the services we provide or commission

The key corporate enabling work programmes that will underpin this work 

 Volunteering

 New service delivery models

 Improving value for money

Page 16



Place Plan 
for the borough 
2016-2021 
People, place and prosperity 

Page 17



 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Information about the place 

This plan for the borough sets out our vision for the next five years and confirms what we intend to 
achieve through partnership working particularly over the next two years. 

It confirms our agreed strategic priorities which underpin everything we do and the high-level outcomes 
or impacts that we intend to deliver which will help to shape our place and improve the lives and 
conditions for the people who live, visit and invest here. 

The plan is owned by the borough’s Partnership Board (the Transformational Leaders Group) and is delivered 
through a range of plans and strategies which are managed and monitored through a number of partnerships. 
It will be refreshed every two years to ensure that it is relevant in a constantly changing environment. 

Each individual organisation will align their organisational plans to the priorities in this plan. 

• Rochdale covers 62 square miles. 

• We have a total population of 212,960, the second smallest population in GM. 

• Population growth since 2001 has been modest and is anticipated to remain so. 

• There has been an increase in over 75’s and over 80’s between 2001 and 
2014 and our older population is growing and is expected to increase by 
25% between 2012 and 2024. 

• We are becoming more ethnically diverse with 21% of the total population 
from black and ethnic minority populations. 

• Rochdale borough has a relatively young population profile, having seen 
significant growth in 0-4 year olds in the last decade, increasing by 
2,000 and now accounting for 7% of the population. 

• The number of children born in the borough has increased from 2554 
(school year 2000-01) to a peak of 3074 (school year 2007-8) and 
remained at just below that level until 2012-13. There were 2869 
children born in 2014-15. The effect of this is an increasing pressure 
on the provision of school places initially at primary school and 
progressively into the secondary sector. This growth has also 
impacted on pre-school services. 

• There are currently over 33,000 children in Rochdale borough 
schools and this will grow to over 35,500 in 2019-20. 

• Deprivation is becoming more widespread in the borough with 
an increasing proportion of the population living in the most 
deprived 10% of the country. 

• We are living longer but compared with the rest of England 
and Wales we live shorter and less healthy lives and a ten 
year difference exists for some people in some of our most 
deprived areas of the borough. Men in Rochdale live to 
be 77.2 years compared with those in England and Wales 
who reach 79.5 years. Women live to be 80.8 years 
compared with 83.2 years. 

Our place - our plan 

2 

Page 18



 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

A distinctive borough
 

Rochdale is closely connected to the economic 
growth centres of Manchester, Leeds and Liverpool 
and is well placed to capitalise on the opportunities 
this brings, to ensure that local people have the 
support they need and can take advantage of 
employment opportunities across the region. 

Occupying a central location in the North West and 
sitting on the edge of the M62 growth corridor, the 
borough is advantageously located to continue to 
develop a strong relationship with these centres 
which together provide the largest economy in the 
north as part of the Greater Manchester (GM) wide 
and government’s aspirations to create a Northern 
Powerhouse. Rochdale has a primary and strong 
relationship with the Manchester city region as one 
of ten districts comprising the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority and is a major supporter of 
devolution of power from central to local control. 

The borough benefits from swathes of magnificent 
countryside, Victorian and Edwardian parks and 
countryside attractions and numerous lakes and 
waterways, which are easily accessible. It also has 
some of the finest historic architectural buildings in 
the North West. 

Our pioneering heritage is recognised on a world 
wide scale and our quality business space, for 
example Kingsway Business Park, generates a focus 
on business growth helping to attract new jobs and 
talented people. 

The Birthplace of the Co-operative movement and 
exuding real Lancastrian warmth, the borough is a 
great place to live whether commuting or working 
closer to home. 

New public buildings, a planned new retail complex, 
new leisure facilities, good schools and nationally 
recognised high performing colleges all provide a 
positive platform for progress. 

We are part of a wider GM family advancing plans 
for devolution and the transfer of more fiscal and 
other powers from central to local government. 
Our borough will play its part in creating a more 
competitive city region, focusing on reshaping our 
economy and increasing the value of our goods and 
services (i.e. our gross value added) to become a net 
contributor to national public finances. 

We value our townships of Rochdale, Middleton, 
Heywood and the Pennines. Each has its own 
identity and sense of place. We are committed to 
‘double devolution’ and will connect our borough 
and townships plans to GM wide initiatives so that 
local people and their place contribute and influence 
developments and importantly benefit from any 
change. 

Collaboration is close to our heart and we are working 
closely with our neighbours in Manchester, Oldham, 
Bury and Tameside for example, to tackle some of our 
shared challenges such as budget pressures and the 
reshaping and sharing of some services. 

rochdale.gov.uk 3 

Page 19

http://rochdale.gov.uk


 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

People, place & prosperity 

We aim to grow our economy and develop our 
borough through co-operation and partnership, 
improving the lives of local people and communities. 

borough vision 

4 

Three priorities keep us focused on delivering our vision. Each has a set of objectives and outcomes that 
describe success. Details on how we will achieve these outcomes are contained in our five key partnership plans, 
namely our borough Master Plan, Safer Communities Plan, Cooperating for Better Health & Wellbeing, Housing 
Statement and Economic Plan. 

Each priority will be delivered within the context of the emerging plans for devolution, the Northern Powerhouse, 
the Greater Manchester Strategy (Stronger Together), the GM Growth and Reform Plan and Taking Charge of 
our Health and Social Care in Greater Manchester. 

PEOPLE PLACE PROSPERITY 
We will safeguard and protect our We will create safe, resilient, We will encourage business growth 
vulnerable people and support flourishing and high quality places and enterprise; increase our skills 
people of all ages to be healthier, where people choose to live, work levels and create the conditions for 
confident, and resilient, in control the creation of good quality jobs. 
and successfully managing their 
lives. We will enable communities 
to thrive and develop. 

and invest. 

Page 20



  
 

  

  

 

  

  
 

  
 

   

  
 

  

  

  
 

  

   
 

 

 
  
 

Impact 

We aim to deliver our vision by focusing on the 
following high level objectives and outcomes, 
community and individual safety, people and 
place by: 

SAFETY 

•	 Safeguarding and protecting vulnerable 
children, young people and adults and 
disrupting and dismantling organised crime. 

•	 Reducing crime and increasing confidence and 
satisfaction. 

•	 Reducing the harm caused by using drugs and 
alcohol. 

•	 Preventing and tackling anti-social behaviour. 

•	 Preventing offending by children and young people & 
reducing adult offending and reoffending. 

•	 Promoting community cohesion and reducing the 
incidences of hate crime. 

HEALTH & WELLBEING 

•	 Children and people of all ages getting a good start – more 
Rochdale children reaching a good level of development 
cognitively, socially and emotionally. Fewer Rochdale babies 
will have a low birth weight. 

•	 Living well – more Rochdale families adopting healthier 
lifestyles, becoming economically active and family incomes 
increasing. 

•	 Fewer people will die early particularly from cardiovascular, 
cancer and respiratory disease. 

•	 Ageing well – more people will be supported to stay well and live 
at home for as long as possible. 

•	 Creating a financially sustainable integrated health and social 
care system through new models of care and support, which will 
encourage appropriate use of hospital, social and primary care. 

•	 Ensuring people access high quality health and social care services 
and feel safe at all times whilst using these services. 

•	 People feeling confident in managing their own health, wellbeing 
and care and knowing how and where to access services when they 
need them. 

•	 Reducing health inequalities and supporting vulnerable groups. 

rochdale.gov.uk 5 

Page 21

http://rochdale.gov.uk


  
 

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

  

  

 

 

 

Impact 

SPACES 

•	 Supporting the delivery of increased housing provision across the 
borough to support economic growth and meet current and future 
housing needs including options to deliver town centre housing. 

•	 Facilitating the bringing forward of private and stalled sites to 
support residential growth. 

•	 Creating urban growth sites – regenerate infill and brownfield sites 
in urban areas to widen housing choice. 

•	 Improving accessibility to and from the M62 corridor. 

•	 Extending the Metrolink to new areas of the borough and improve 
heavy rail accessibility. 

•	 Maximising the attractiveness and use of our waterways – promote the 
South Pennines as a tourist and visitor attraction. 

•	 Promoting and developing M62 priority corridor employment sites – 
support and expand key employment areas. 

•	 Improving retail and commercial facilities in town centres and assist in 
change in peripheral areas of town centres. 

ECONOMY 

•	 Increasing educational attainment. 

•	 Increasing all skill levels across the borough. 

•	 Increasing borough employment levels. 

•	 Supporting business growth and creating and
 retaining jobs. 

Continuously improving 
We are committed to moving the borough forward, creating a thriving, and more prosperous place that we can all 
celebrate and take pride in. We will ensure that Rochdale borough occupies its place at the heart of the Manchester 
city region, benefits from devolution and provides a quality offer to local people, investors and businesses. 

The following principles will help to deliver our intentions: 

• Increased collaborative working across organisations and sectors. 

• Early help to create a good start in life, promote, support and build personal and community independence 
and resilience and where possible prevent the need for specialist and complex services. 

• Integrating commissioning activities so they are based on need are evidence based, of high quality and 
effectively targeted. 

• Integrating services to increase the impact and improve outcomes for local people. 

• Transforming services by increasing independence and self-help and creating sustainable demand. 

• Create financially sustainable systems. 

6 

Page 22



 
 

 
 

  
 
 

  
 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

What has changed since 2010? 

Successes 
Since 2010 we have achieved some notable 
improvements. Local people told us then 
what was important to them and these 
improvements reflect some of the issues 
that were considered a priority and include : 

EARLY YEARS 

•	 The number of 2 year old children who access 
their free early year’s entitlement is much higher 
than the national average. The take up this term is 
84% (national average 76%). 

•	 88% of our group childcare providers in the 
private, voluntary and independent sector are 
rated good or outstanding by Ofsted. 

•	 An increase in the number of under 5’s swimming 
by over 50% since the inception of free swimming 
for this group in 2012. 

ADULT CARE 

•	 Older people are supported more to regain 
their independence and carry on living at home 
following discharge from hospital. 

•	 More Carers assessments have taken place and 
there is increased support for Carers for example 
through the Care Act. 

•	 Annual adult care survey satisfaction results have 
seen a year on year improvement with above 
England average for all results in 2014/15. 

•	 From the annual survey, the proportion of 
people who use services who said they feel 
safe has increased by 15% over the last 
2 years and the percentage of people 
who use services who said those 
services made them feel safe 
and secure has increased to 
89% in 2014/15. 

•	 Safeguarding Board in place with an independent 
Chair. 

•	 Good partnership working in relation to 
performance for the Better Care Fund which will 
be built on in the future integration of Health & 
Social Care. 

•	 Locality working has started to be 
embedded into practice with more focus 
on a multi-disciplinary team approach 
to cases which will provide support 
for all of a person’s health and 
social care needs. 

•	 A new Intermediate Tier 
Service (ITS) service 
is delivering really 
good results. 

rochdale.gov.uk 7 

Page 23

http://rochdale.gov.uk


  
 

 
 

  

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

     

      
  

   
  

  
  

  

     

      
  

  

ATTAINMENT AND SKILLS 

• As pupil numbers have increased extra school places 
have been planned and delivered with the support and 
cooperation of our schools in time to meet demand. 2500 
extra primary school places have been provided or planned 
for between 2010 and 2018. 

• Good performance at Key Stage 1 and 2 and primary 
school performance in general. 

• As at December 2015, 92.5% of 16/17year olds in the 
borough remained in education, employment and 
training, meeting the raising participation age 
requirement of the Department of Education. 

• There are a large number of children, over 80% of 
the sixth form and college population, who have 
up taken and gone on to further education. 

• Rochdale Sixth Form College is outstanding 
and has been named the best college in the 
country for value added performance. 

• Hopwood Hall College is the best performing 
college in Greater Manchester, according 
to the government’s national success rates 
league tables. 

What has changed since 2010? 

HEALTH 

• Immunisation rate for children in care is 100% and 
     significantly better than the national average. 

•         Life expectancy has increased - for males (77.2 years)
    and females (80.8 years) but more to do as still behind

    national average. 

•     Increased physical activity levels and participation
     in exercise by improving access to leisure facilities and

    providing a range of health and wellbeing projects through
    our key leisure and cultural partners and through 20 targeted

    health programmes across the borough, and 18 physical activity
    programmes for young people and adults. 

•        A rise in participation and usage of our leisure sport and cultural
   provisions to over 2 million visits per year doubling figures for 2007. 

•   An increase in the attendance in children’s swimming lessons by 69%.
  An increased number of people using the fitness facilities by over

  300% with fitness memberships rising from 2570 in 2007 to over
  10500 in 2016. 

8 

Page 24



  
 

  
 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  
 

  
 

JOBS, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING 

• More young people are in education, employment and training when they leave school rates in the district 
have increased considerably since 2011. This represents the greatest percentage point reduction in NEET 
rate of all GM districts. Currently 5.0% of young people are NEET, lower than the GM average of 5.6%. 

• Almost 500 new jobs and £113 million of investment have been brought into the borough of Rochdale 
during 2015. The new jobs and investment are a sign of growing confidence in Rochdale, which is seeking to 
become the best place for business in Greater Manchester. 

• Increased the number of high growth businesses in the borough. 

• Apprenticeship start numbers in the borough for 2014/15 grew at the highest rate of any other GM Local 
Authority, with an increase of over 20% on the previous year. 

• School leavers entering apprenticeships directly after school also increased by 26%. 

TRANSPORT 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

• Metrolink - operational in March 2014. 

• New bus interchange and improvements to Rochdale 
Railway Station. 

• Number One Riverside built and open for business in 
March 2013, designed to be energy efficient using low 
carbon technology. 

• A new £10.8m leisure centre in Rochdale 
complementing new facilities in Heywood costing 
£10.3m and those in Middleton. 

rochdale.gov.uk 9 

Page 25

http://rochdale.gov.uk


  
 

 

  

  
 

 
 

  

  
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

What has changed since 2010? 

HOUSING 

COMMUNITIES 

Reduced crime levels and the number of anti
social behaviour incidents recorded across the 
borough. 

Anti-social behaviour rates have declined 
since 2011/12, although they currently remain 
above GM levels. 

Since 2013/14 we have increased household 
recycling rates from 34.28% - 39.04% and 
have over the same period reduced the 
amount of household waste that hasn’t 
been recycled from 126.09 – 103.99 
tonnes. Carried out new landscaping 
schemes across the borough to help 
increase pride in our communities. 

We have the largest rights of way 
network in Greater Manchester 
(552km) and we work closely and 
collaboratively with neighbouring 
authorities through the Pennine 
Prospects group. 

We are continuing to tackle 
perpetrators of environmental crime 
such as fly-tipping, littering and 
dog fouling. We have successfully 
maintained levels of enforcement 
actions, warnings and prosecutions 
and promoted our successful 
prosecutions. 

The introduction of a new 
borough wide Link4Life Extra 
card providing a range of 
reduced cost accessible services 
and activities for residents who 
require additional support and 
help to access services. Over 
3000 residents now take 
advantage of the scheme 

• New house building has taken place and is planned across 
the borough to meet the needs of a growing population, 
attracting new residents to the district and providing a 
diverse the housing offer. 

• Since 2014 we have built 83 high value homes (at tax band 
E and above). 

• Over the last 5 years a total of 782 affordable homes have 
been delivered across the borough. Majority of these homes 
are new build properties developed by housing association 
partners which received grant funding through the 
Affordable Homes Programme. 

• Since 2012/13 we have brought 1,219 properties back into 
use following interventions 

• Since 2010/11 a total of 6988 households in the borough 
have been prevented from becoming homeless, achieved 
through strong partnership and services commissioned or 
supported through joint Strategic Housing and Public Health 
funded contracts. 

annually accessing the 
services and facilities over 
123,000 times a year. The 
card saves the holder on 
average £91.30 per year at 
our centres. 29% of all extra 
card holders are from 
the 0- 10% Super Output 
Areas which are the most 
deprived areas in the 
borough. 

10 

Page 26



  

 

  
 

 

 

   
   
 

   
    
 

   
   
 

   
   
 

  

  
 

 

  
 
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Additional successes 

• The number of school settings in 
Rochdale that are classed as good/ 
outstanding is 81% (primary, secondary 
and special schools). 

• More or our children are in education, 
employment or training. This is in spite 
of the fact that 25% of our children aged 
0-19 years live in poverty. 

• Over the last 10 years: 

- 10,800 more borough residents have
  at least a Level 4 qualification 
  (equivalent to a degree). 


 - 9,700 more borough residents have at
  least a Level 3 qualification (equivalent
  to A levels). 


 - 15,300 more borough residents have at
  least a Level 2 qualification (equivalent to
  GCSE A*-C). 


 - 10,100 more borough residents have at
  least a Level 1 qualification (equivalent to
 D-G GCSE). 

• There are 4900 fewer borough residents that have 
no qualifications than 10 years ago. 

• Out of work benefit claimant numbers are falling, 
partly due to the introduction of Universal Credit. This 
includes Employment Support Allowance which has 
been falling over the last year. 

• Work on new warehouse developments totalling 
723,000 square feet, including two new speculative 
£18.5 million plots at Kingsway and two at Heywood 
Distribution Park with a combined value of £18 million, has 
also started. 

• Companies including car care giant Tetrosyl and 
engineering firm Riley and Sons have announced moves to 
the borough. 

• 14 new stores (including a new restaurant) have moved to 
Rochdale town centre after taking advantage of the council’s 
£100,000 business rates sale. 

• Marks & Spencer and Next confirmed they will be the anchor 
stores in the new Town Centre East shopping development. 

rochdale.gov.uk 11 

Page 27

http://rochdale.gov.uk


  
 

  
 

  

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

Additional successes 

• Tackling fuel poverty is a priority and our energy efficiency work is 
helping to address this problem by making homes healthy, warm, and 
affordable and fit for purpose in a low carbon economy. 

• Future housing provision will be based around providing 
accommodation across a range of tenures which meets the needs 
and income profile of the boroughs residents. 

• We are continuing to focus resources on the prevention of 
homelessness which remains a priority. 

• Our parks are the pride of the borough; from Queen’s Park in 
Heywood to Truffet Park in Langley and Milnrow Memorial 
Park. In total, the borough can boast 6 Green Flag Parks 
with plans in place for even more. 

• The new recycling and waste collection service has 
positively impacted on the various waste streams 
since its launch in October 2015 through to the end of 
February 2016. 

• Total kerbside waste arisings have been reduced 
across the borough with no significant changes to 
fly tipping and household waste tonnages in the 
same period. 

• A major redevelopment of Denehurst Park has 
taken place with the site being submitted for 
a Green Flag award and associated positive 
publicity. 

• Successfully transferred leisure and 
cultural services to Link4Life, a social 
enterprise and charitable trust. 
Following further investment, service 
improvements and expansion the 
trust has presided over a substantial 
increase and participation in the 
borough’s leisure and cultural 
services encouraging healthier 
lifestyles and increasing the 
health and wellbeing of 
people living and visiting the 
borough. 

• Staged the annual two 
day Feel Good Festival in 
the borough attracting 
more than 10,000 
people in 2015. 

12 

Page 28



  
 

 
 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-  
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

Challenges to address 

•	 Social isolation and loneliness is a key issue. 
Helping people to lead healthy, independent 
lives is fundamental to achieving our long term 
objective and outcomes. 

•	 Adult skill levels in the borough are generally 
low. 15% of our working population have no 
qualifications. This is the second worst in 
Greater Manchester. 

•	 36% of the workforce is employed in the 
professions and Technical Occupations with 13% 
in the elementary occupations. 

•	 The borough average wage levels are behind 
the North West and Britain’s but are higher than 
some other parts of GM. 

•	 In work poverty is an issue. 

•	 The impacts of Welfare Reform have yet to 
be fully felt in the borough but the effects of 
the bedroom tax, Universal Credit and the 
household benefit cap will impact on our most 
vulnerable residents. 

•	 Domestic abuse incidents have increased 
since 2012/13, although increased reporting of 
domestic abuse is considered positive. 

•	 Encourage the provision of a more diverse 
housing offer including an expanded choice 
of larger and higher value dwellings, key to 
achieving an attractive and sustainable borough 
and helping to increase the wealth profile of the 
borough by retaining existing, and attracting 
new, higher income earning households to 
underpin the local economy. 

•	 We need to increase the borough’s recycling 
activity. Waste disposal levy increases over the 
forthcoming years 2017 19 are anticipated to be 
significant, possibly five times that of inflation. 
Improvements in the other GM authorities in 
2016/17 and 2017/18 will intensify this financial 
pressure on the borough. 

•	 Increase third sector and volunteer involvement 
within the borough and across services 
including sustaining our parks and access to the 
countryside. 

• Hate crimes remain an issue in the borough. 

• Crime is generally higher in Rochdale than the 
Greater Manchester average and has risen for 
the past 2 years. 

rochdale.gov.uk 13 

Page 29

http://rochdale.gov.uk


  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

  

  
 

 

    
 

  

  
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 

And did you know... 

•	 Rochdale is recognised as the ‘Birthplace of 
Co-operation’ following the rules and principles 
established 175 years ago by the Rochdale 
Pioneers. These principles still underly much of the 
activity of the Co-op today. 

•	 Lots of talented and famous people were born 
in the borough of Rochdale. They include Gracie 
Fields (world famous singer and actor), Lisa 
Stansfield (singer), Bill Oddie (TV presenter), 
Anna Friel (actor), Samuel Bamford (chartist and 
radical writer), John Bright (quaker, politician, 
statesman), Paul Scholes (footballer), Ian 
Simpson (architect Beetham Tower, new Co-op 
Building, Manchester), The Courteeners, Steve 
Coogan (comedian and actor), Andrew Nutter 
(celebrity chef), Suranne Jones, John Virgo, 
Julie Goodyear and Jimmy Cricket. 

•	 The Grade I listed Rochdale Town Hall was finished 
in 1871 and cost £160,000 (valued at £13 million as 
of 2014) to build. It is considered one of the finest 
Victorian Town Halls in Britain. 

•	 The Grade I listed cenotaph in Rochdale was 
designed by Sir Edward Lutyens and built in 1922. 

•	 The Arts and Heritage service digitise and 
document in excess of 5000 of the borough’s 
assets per annum. 

•	 Middleton Arena which opened in 2009 is 
firmly established as one of the North West’s 
leading entertainment and leisure venues and 
has seen a host of stars perform 
there since 

opening, establishing itself as a key venue on 
the comedy circuit with famous artists such as 
John Bishop, Lee Mack, and Sarah Millican among 
the many comedians who have performed there. 

•	 Edgar Wood - the renowned architect was born in 
Middleton in 1860. 

•	 John ‘Earthquake’ Milne, credited with developing 
the seismograph and an early authority on 
building in earthquakes zones, was raised in 
Rochdale and later Milnrow. 

•	 Milnrow has been described as “the centre of 
the south Lancashire dialect”. John Collier (who 
wrote under the pseudonym of Tim Bobbin) 
was an acclaimed 18th-century caricaturist and 
satirical poet from Milnrow who wrote in a broad 
Lancashire dialect. 

•	 In 2014 Littleborough hosted a section of stage 2 
of Le Tour de France. It was hailed as a massive 
success, bringing tens of thousands of people into 
the town. The Manchester Evening News estimated 
that it gave a £1million boost to the local economy. 

•	 A cotton loom machine from Littleborough 
weavers Fothergill & Harvey was converted to 
weave fibreglass after the decline of the cotton 
industry. It went on to produce the molds that were 
used to make the Concorde’s nose cone. 

14 

Page 30



  
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

   
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  
 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 

  

 

•	 The borough hosts the Rochdale Literature and 
Ideas Festival each year which is fast becoming 
a major attraction in the borough and beyond. 

•	 The borough has one of the most diverse 
landscapes in Greater Manchester – stretching 
from the suburbs of Manchester City Centre right 
into the beautiful Pennine hills, past the beautiful 
Hollingworth Lake (known as the Weighvers’ 
Seaport during the Victorian Era). 

•	 A member of the Heywood family and a resident 
of Heywood Hall was Peter Heywood, a magistrate 
who, with a party of men, arrested Guy Fawkes 
during the Gunpowder Plot of 1605. 

•	 Another member of the family, also called Peter 
Heywood, was aboard the HMS Bounty when its 
crew mutinied in 1789. 

•	 The southern wing of St Luke’s Church, well known 
throughout the area for its beautiful proportions 
and ornate carvings, is another suggested to 
have been one of Hitler’s high-priority items for 
acquisition had he won the war. Although difficult 
to confirm, it is indeed one of the finest examples 
of its kind in the whole of England. 

•	 The first edition of the Middleton Guardian rolled off 
the presses on December 1st 1877 and cost just 1p. 

•	 The ‘Flodden Window’, in the Grade I Listed 
Church of St Leonard, is thought to be the 
oldest war memorial in the United Kingdom, 
memorialising the names of the archers of 
Middleton who fought at the Battle of Flodden 
Field (1513). 

•	 In 1770, Middleton was a village of 20 houses; 
during the 18th and 19th centuries it grew into a 
thriving and populous seat of textile manufacture 
and now has a population of more than 45,000. 

•	 The Grade II listed Olde Boars Head dates back to 
the 14th Century and is rumoured to have been 
visited by Bonny Prince Charlie in 1745. 

Future challenges 

• To further improve health outcomes and reduce 

health inequalities. 

• Address the imbalance in our housing market 

and to fundamentally rebalance across GM to 

support our economic growth potential, meet 

residents varied housing demands and enable 

reductions in dependency. 

• The need to continue to improve the skills and 

attainment levels of both our young people and 

adults and improve the strength of our economy. 

We have plans in place to keep a keen focus on this. 

• To improve recycling rates and particularly the 
cleanliness of our streets and spaces and continue 
to regenerate our town centres which are 
important to local people. 

• Increase shared services to help us respond 
effectively to the continued reduction in public 
finances, to better manage and reduce demand 
for public services and to meet the challenge 
of the devolution agenda which will change the 
nature of public services over the next decade 
and beyond. 

• Developing new service delivery models where these 
can deliver better impact and cost effectiveness. 

Along with these successes we recognise that the borough continues to face 
a number of key challenges which includes: 

rochdale.gov.uk 15 

Page 31

http://rochdale.gov.uk


  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 For more information on how we aim to achieve success and deliver our 
aspirations view the related documents at rochdale.gov.uk/placeplan 

Contact us:

   01706 924333


   council@rochdale.gov.uk
 

rochdale.gov.uk
 

You can also write to: 

Corporate Policy, Performance and Improvement Team 

Floor 2, Number One Riverside 

Smith Street 

Rochdale 

OL16 1XU Page 32

mailto:council%40rochdale.gov.uk?subject=
http://rochdale.gov.uk


Page 1 of 11

Resources

Directorate Plan 2017/18P
age 33



Page 2 of 11

Introduction

This 2017 - 2018 plan supports the borough vision to ‘grow our economy and develop our borough through co-operation and partnership, 
improving the lives of local people and communities.’ (Place Plan 2016 - 2021). It outlines what action the Resources Directorate will take 
over the coming year, to support achievement of corporate objectives.

The Rochdale Way

The Rochdale Way sets out the values that are at the heart of how we approach all of the work we do. To help us make these values real 
we have adopted a set of behaviours that every member of staff must demonstrate as well as two specific leadership behaviours.

Valuing 
our 

people

Using time 
& money 

wisely

Working 
together

Always 
learning & 
improving

Acting 
with 

integrity

Focusing 
on 

customer
s

Positive attitude Developing myself Improving things

Achieving my goals Communicating 
effectively

Achieving shared 
goals

Meeting customer 
needs

Encouraging 
colleagues

Empowering & 
Supporting
Managing 

Performance

P
age 34



Page 3 of 11

Strategic Aims and Objectives

The Place Plan outlines long-term aims for the borough as agreed by the Council and Partners. The aims are centred around four core 
themes to support achievement of the vision. The Corporate Plan outlines specific objectives for the Council in supporting achievement of 
the vision and aims. 

Theme 1: People Theme 2: Place Theme 3: Prosperity Theme 4: Performance

Aim 1: We will safeguard and 
protect our vulnerable people and 
support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, 
in control and successfully 

managing their lives. We will 
enable communities to thrive and 

develop.

Aim 2: We will create safe, 
resilient,

flourishing and high quality 
places where people choose to 

live, work and invest

Aim 3: We will encourage 
business growth and enterprise; 

increase our skills levels and 
create the conditions for the 
creation of good quality jobs.

Aim 4: We will provide and 
commission a wide range of 
services for local people and 

communities ensuring that they 
meet customer needs and 

expectations, are of high quality 
and provide the best value for 

the resources we use

Objective 1: Children reach a 
good level of development 
cognitively, socially and 
emotionally so that they are ready 
for school 

Objective 5: Individual, people 
and place safety

Objective 9: Businesses investing 
in the borough

Objective 13: Services and 
commissioning activities 
integrated or transformed

Objective 2: Children achieve the 
qualifications they need to 
prepare them for work and a 
prosperous life 

Objective 6: High quality and 
affordable housing

Objective 10: Businesses 
supported to develop and grow

Objective 14: Healthy, motivated 
and resilient workforce with 
empowered staff  

Objective 3: Young people skilled 
and able to gain employment 

Objective 7: Clean environment Objective 11: Access to 
employment opportunities 
enabled

Objective 15: Perception of 
Rochdale is changed

Objective 4: People in our 
borough have a good start and 
are able to live well, age well and 
die well 

Objective 8: Transport links 
enable good movement in and 
out of the borough

Objective 12: Residents 
supported into employment

Objective 16: Rochdale 
benefitting from devolution and 
providing a quality offer to local 
people, investors and 
businesses

P
age 35



Page 4 of 11

Equality and Diversity Objective

The Public Sector Equality Duty 2011 places a legal requirement on the Council to demonstrate that it considers the needs of all individuals 
in its day to day work and has due regard for the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations. 
The Council has adopted the following single equality objective: 

Objective 17: Promote equality by knowing our diverse community and understanding its changing needs

Corporate Enabling Work Programmes

The Council is facing significant financial challenges, which means that we have reduced capacity to deliver services. The Corporate Plan 
outlines working practices that will improve our capacity to deliver, facilitate ongoing service delivery and support us in achieving our 
objectives. 

 Working across organisational boundaries

 Sharing budgets

 Sharing services with other public sector bodies

 Developing a culture of social responsibility

 Encouraging and supporting volunteering

 Looking for ways to save money

 Looking at new models of service delivery

 Making better use of data and intelligence

 Streamlining decision making

 Managing our money effectively

P
age 36



Page 5 of 11

Directorate Structure

The management structure of the directorate is detailed below:

Director of 
Resources

Assistant Director
Legal, Governance & 

Workforce (Monitoring 
Officer)

Chief Finance 
Officer / s151 

Officer

P
age 37



Page 6 of 11

Directorate Services 

The Directorate covers the following service areas and activities:

Service Head of Service
Finance Julie Murphy
Internal Audit, Risk, Insurance & Counter 
Fraud

Ian Corbridge

Revenues & Benefits Keith Mackenzie
Procurement Lorraine Cox Director of STAR shared 

procurement service
Workforce & Organisational Development Rosemary Barker (from July 2017)
Legal Services Anthony Harold
Governance & Committee Services Elaine Newsome

Lead Cabinet Members

The Directorate is overseen by the following Cabinet members:

Councillor Portfolio Holder Area
Cllr Allen Brett Covering Finance, Revenues & Benefits, Legal, 

Governance, HR, Organisational Development, 
Corporate Health & Safety, Insurance and Risk

P
age 38



Page 7 of 11

Directorate Responsibilities

The directorate has the following responsibilities:

 Corporate Finance
 Finance Support Services
 Treasury Management
 Internal Audit ,Counter Fraud, Insurance and Risk
 Schools Traded Finance Service
 Creditors, Debtors, invoice processing
 Financial Systems
 Council Tax and Business Rates
 Benefits and Assessments
 STAR Client (Procurement)
 Legal Services
 Manchester Shared Legal Service Client
 Democracy Services
 Elections
 HR Business Partner and HR Advisory Service
 Payroll, Pensions and Operational HR
 Organisational Development
 Corporate Health and Safety

Key Documents

The directorate works in accordance with the following strategies and plans:

 Place Plan
 Corporate Plan
 Locality Plan
 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Plus, as support services, supporting Directorates in delivery activity which is aligned to specific Directorate strategies and plans

P
age 39



Page 8 of 11

Directorate Actions

The table outlines what action, will be taken over the coming year, to support achievement of corporate objectives:

Ref Corporate Plan 
Objective Directorate Action Lead Service By when Success measure(s)

Performance

Budget Council approving a robust 
balanced budget for 2018/19 Victoria Bradshaw Finance Services By March 

2018

Determine the budget position 
in light of the Local and 
National decisions, savings 
programme developed and 
saving proposals identified, 
presentation of a balanced 
budget for 2018/19 to Budget 
Council 

People and Performance 
objectives

Health and Social Care - Review 
and evaluation of decision making 
structure for Joint Health 
Arrangements 

Elaine Newsome
Governance & 

Committee 
Services

By March 
2018

That governance structures 
support partners ambitions for 
delivery

People and Performance 
objectives

Health and Social Care -
Organisation Development to 
support delivery of Locality Plan 
including ICB Development and 
workforce Transformation

Rosemary Barker Workforce & OD By March 
2018

That workforce arrangements 
support partners ambitions for 
delivery

People and Performance 
objectives

Health and Social Care – Provide 
robust financial support and 
information 

Julie Murphy Finance Services By March 
2018

Informed decision making by 
the Integrated Commissioning 
Board, development of a formal 
pool for Adult Social Care and 
Health, accurate monitoring of 
the GM Transformation Fund 
allocation and manging the 
Locality Plan Financial 
Position. 

Performance
Deliver a successful contribution to 
GM mayoral elections May 2017 Clare Poole

Governance & 
Committee 
Services

May 2017

Successful election and 
Verification and count for 
Rochdale District accurately 
delivered

P
age 40



Page 9 of 11

Ref Corporate Plan 
Objective Directorate Action Lead Service By when Success measure(s)

All objectives Input into key strategic Council GM 
projects from Legal and 
Workforce/OD perspective

Elaine Newsome / 
Anthony Harold/ 

Rosemary Barker

Governance/Legal 
Workforce & OD

As 
Required

The Council commitment is 
supported appropriately

All Objectives Input into key strategic Council, 
GM projects from Finance 
perspective

Victoria Bradshaw 
/ Julie Murphy Finance Services By March 

2018

Informed decision making 
taking account of Finance 
implications 

Performance
Provide and support budget 
monitoring of Corporate and 
Directorate Budgets 

Stuart Smith Finance Services By March 
2018

Reports provided to Cabinet 
and Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to enable 
timely and informed decisions 
to be taken

Performance Produce the 2016/17 Statutory 
Accounts 

Victoria Bradshaw 
/ Julie Murphy Finance Services By July 

2017

Unqualified Statutory Accounts 
approved by Audit and 
Governance Committee

Review of Democratic Processes -
Implement final decision regarding 
workforce decision making

Rosemary Barker Workforce & OD 31/7/ 2017
The Council decision on 
29/03/17 has been 
implemented 

Review of Democratic Processes -
Implement paperless meetings in 
time with agreed scheduling 
(scheduling to be agreed with 
Member Democratic Processes 
Sub Group)

Elaine Newsome
Governance & 

Committee 
Services

30/12/2017

All core Council meetings are 
paperless

Review of Democratic Processes -
Review and refresh the Member 
Development Programme

Elaine Newsome
Governance & 

Committee 
Services

31/03/2018
A new approach for member 
Development is agreed with 
Members and implemented

Performance

Review of Democratic Processes -
Review of Scheme of Delegation to 
simplify decision making 

Elaine Newsome
Governance & 

Committee 
Services

31/12/2017

The Scheme of Delegation is 
reviewed, revised and changes 
embedded

All objectives HR, Governance and Legal Input to 
budget process for 2018/19

Elaine Newsome / 
Anthony Harold/ 

Rosemary Barker

Governance/Legal 
Workforce & OD 31/03/2018

The savings programme for 
2018/19 is approved

All objectives Identify and implement a HR Policy 
Review Programme for 2017/18 Louise Griffiths HR &OD 31/03/2018

Policies reviewed and changes 
approved and implemented in 
line with programme 

P
age 41



Page 10 of 11

Ref Corporate Plan 
Objective Directorate Action Lead Service By when Success measure(s)

Lead on implementation of OD 
strategy
- Rochdale Academy
- WLT Development
- Big conversation 2017

Rosemary Barker HR &OD 31/01/2018

Agreed programme for 2017/18 
delivered 

OD- Develop Workforce Planning 
further linked to establishment of 
Directorate, People and Corporate 
Plan

Rosemary Barker HR &OD 31/01/2018

Agreed programme for 2017/18 
delivered

Performance Objective 
14

Finalise Job Evaluation of 
Management review phase 2 
where this is not completed

Louise Griffiths HR &OD 30/06/2017
All reviews in scope are 

completed 

Performance Review of alignment / integration of 
systems – options developed

Rosemary Barker 
/Deputy Chief 

Finance Officer
HR &OD/Finance 30/03/18

Options developed for 
Improved integration of 

payroll/establishment and 
finance systems

Performance
Delivery of the Internal Audit Plan 
for 2017/18 Ian Corbridge Finance Services By March 

2018

Completion of 96% of the Audit 
Plan to support the annual 

audit opinion within the Annual 
Governance Statement.

Performance
Implementation of the Risk 
Management Strategy Ian Corbridge Finance Services By March 

2018

Achievement of an 80% risk 
management self-assessment 
outcome across the Council

Performance 

Maximising income to the Council Keith Mackenzie Finance Services By March 
2018

Achievement of a target for 
collection of income as follows:

94.5% Council Tax
98.5% Business Rates

Performance 

Improving accessibility to Services 
– Council Connect Keith Mackenzie Finance Services By March 

2018

In agreement with ICT increase 
the on-line services available to 

our Customers to include: 
Council Tax and Business 

Rates Accounts, Direct Debit 
Requests, E-Billing for Council 

Tax and Business Rates, 
Benefits Records, benefit 

change of circumstances, Adult 

P
age 42



Page 11 of 11

Ref Corporate Plan 
Objective Directorate Action Lead Service By when Success measure(s)

Care Financial Assessments

Performance Produce and send Council Tax and 
Business Rate Bills and Benefits 
Award Letters  

Keith Mackenzie Finance Services By March 
2018

Accurate bills issued in line 
with legislative timescales and 

awards made in a timely 
fashion

Performance
Implementation of Universal Credit Keith Mackenzie Finance Services By March 

2018

Access the implications of 
implementing Universal Credit 
and introduce the new system  

Embedding Shared Service for 
Joint Child and Adult Legal Team 
including Client function

Anthony Harold Legal Services March 
2018

Service delivered in 
accordance with the contract

Achieve LEXCEL accreditation for 
Legal Services Anthony Harold Legal Services March 

2018
Achieved

People and performance 
objectives

Insurance re-tender 2017/18 Anthony Harold Legal Services June 2017
New arrangements in placeP

age 43



Neighbourhoods

Directorate Plan 2017/18

P
age 44



Introduction

This 2017 - 2018 plan supports the borough vision to ‘grow our economy and develop our borough through co-operation and partnership, 
improving the lives of local people and communities.’ (Place Plan 2016 - 2021). It outlines what action the Neighbourhoods Directorate 
will take over the coming year, to support achievement of corporate objectives.

The Rochdale Way

The Rochdale Way sets out the values that are at the heart of how we approach all of the work we do. To help us make these values real 
we have adopted a set of behaviours that every member of staff must demonstrate as well as two specific leadership behaviours.

Valuing 
our 

people

Using time 
& money 

wisely

Working 
together

Always 
learning & 
improving

Acting 
with 

integrity

Focusing 
on 

customer
s

Positive attitude Developing myself Improving things

Achieving my goals Communicating 
effectively

Achieving shared 
goals

Meeting customer 
needs

Encouraging 
colleagues

Empowering & 
Supporting
Managing 

Performance

P
age 45



Strategic Aims and Objectives

The Place Plan outlines long-term aims for the borough as agreed by the Council and Partners. The aims are centred around four core 
themes to support achievement of the vision. The Corporate Plan outlines specific objectives for the Council in supporting achievement of 
the vision and aims. 

Theme 1: People Theme 2: Place Theme 3: Prosperity Theme 4: Performance

Aim 1: We will safeguard and 
protect our vulnerable people and 
support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, 
in control and successfully 

managing their lives. We will 
enable communities to thrive and 

develop.

Aim 2: We will create safe, 
resilient,

flourishing and high quality 
places where people choose to 

live, work and invest

Aim 3: We will encourage 
business growth and enterprise; 

increase our skills levels and 
create the conditions for the 
creation of good quality jobs.

Aim 4: We will provide and 
commission a wide range of 
services for local people and 

communities ensuring that they 
meet customer needs and 

expectations, are of high quality 
and provide the best value for 

the resources we use

Objective 1: Children reach a 
good level of development 
cognitively, socially and 
emotionally so that they are ready 
for school 

Objective 5: Individual, people 
and place safety

Objective 9: Businesses investing 
in the borough

Objective 13: Services and 
commissioning activities 
integrated or transformed

Objective 2: Children achieve the 
qualifications they need to 
prepare them for work and a 
prosperous life 

Objective 6: High quality and 
affordable housing

Objective 10: Businesses 
supported to develop and grow

Objective 14: Healthy, motivated 
and resilient workforce with 
empowered staff  

Objective 3: Young people skilled 
and able to gain employment 

Objective 7: Clean environment Objective 11: Access to 
employment opportunities 
enabled

Objective 15: Perception of 
Rochdale is changed

Objective 4: People in our 
borough have a good start and 
are able to live well, age well and 
die well 

Objective 8: Transport links 
enable good movement in and 
out of the borough

Objective 12: Residents 
supported into employment

Objective 16: Rochdale 
benefitting from devolution and 
providing a quality offer to local 
people, investors and 
businesses

P
age 46



Equality and Diversity Objective

The Public Sector Equality Duty 2011 places a legal requirement on the Council to demonstrate that it considers the needs of all individuals 
in its day to day work and has due regard for the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations. 
The Council has adopted the following single equality objective: 

Objective 17: Promote equality by knowing our diverse community and understanding its changing needs

Corporate Enabling Work Programmes

The Council is facing significant financial challenges, which means that we have reduced capacity to deliver services. The Corporate Plan 
outlines working practices that will improve our capacity to deliver, facilitate ongoing service delivery and support us in achieving our 
objectives. 

 Working across organisational boundaries

 Sharing budgets

 Sharing services with other public sector bodies

 Developing a culture of social responsibility

 Encouraging and supporting volunteering

 Looking for ways to save money

 Looking at new models of service delivery

 Making better use of data and intelligence

 Streamlining decision making

 Managing our money

P
age 47



Directorate Structure

The management structure of the directorate is detailed below:

Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Mark Widdup

Assistant Director 
(Place) 

Donna Bowler

Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers 

and Communities) 
John Rooney

P
age 48



Directorate functions and services

The Directorate has responsibility for a range of service areas and activities.

 Environmental Management
 Highways (including Balfour Beatty)
 Facilities management, Building & Surveying
 Property & Projects
 Street lighting
 Strategic Housing, including RBH
 Corporate Policy, Performance and Improvement (including research & intelligence)
 ICT (Operations & Service Delivery)
 ICT (Business Applications Services)
 Information Governance
 Communications (Internal, Press & media)
 Customer Access (Contact Centre and Web)
 Customer Access (Community Access)
 Townships & Libraries
 Neighbourhood Services (Cohesion & Anti-Social Behaviour)
 Coroners and Registrars
 Emergency planning 

Lead Cabinet Members

Cabinet members with relevant portfolio holder responsibilities oversee Council Directorates

 Cllr Neil Emmott – Housing & Environment
 Cllr Richard Farnell – Leader of the Council
 Cllr Daalat Ali – Neighbourhoods & Community
 Cllr Janet Emsley – Culture, Health and Wellbeing
 Councillor Allen Brett – Corporate and Resources

P
age 49



Directorate Responsibilities

The directorate has the following responsibilities:

 Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services
 Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people
 Maintain and develop the asset portfolio for infrastructure of roads and bridges in the borough
 Work with partners to make the borough a safer place
 Promote the borough as a good place to live, work, invest and visit
 Manage information and business intelligence to support decision-making and policy development
 Deliver an excellent facilities management service for the benefit of the Council and local people
 Streamline business processes and modernise customer access
 Implement Place-based Public Service Reform across the borough to improve outcomes for residents

Key Documents

The directorate works in accordance with a range of strategies and plans, including:

 Place Plan
 Corporate Plan
 Safer Communities Strategy
 Asset Strategy
 Housing Strategy
 Homelessness Strategy
 GM Strategy
 Waste Management Strategy

P
age 50



Directorate Actions

The table outlines what action, will be taken over the coming year, to support achievement of corporate objectives:

Corporate Plan 
Objective

Directorate Action Lead Service By when Success measure(s)

Objective 5: individual, 
people and place safety

Support the Community 
Safety Partnership to improve 
community safety in the 
borough

John 
Rooney & 
Donna 
Bowler

Neighbourhoods March 2018 Commission services for 
Domestic Violence and Victim 
Support (KPI’s TBC)

Disrupt of organised crime and 
modern slavery

Increase participation in anti-
social behaviour risk 
assessment conference 
(ASBRAC) process

Implementation of 
recommendations from domestic 
homicide reviews

Addressing issues through 
allocation of Police and Crime 
Commissioner funding

Establish new Public Realm 
Team to include:
Public Realm Officers
Town Centre Wardens
HIT Team

Significant increases in FPN’s

Objective 5: Individual, 
people and place safety

Safeguard and protect 
vulnerable people and 
improve community cohesion

John 
Rooney 
&
Donna 

Neighbourhoods 
& 
Strategic 
Housing

March 2018 Percentage of people who 
believe people from different 
backgrounds get on well 
together in their local area 

P
age 51



Bowler (baseline TBC when q4 16/17 
figures available)

Reduce incidents of Domestic 
Abuse per 1,000 residents

Increase the number of 
homelessness  preventions 
compared to 16-17 

Average length of stay of 
homelessness households in 
B&B for less than 2 weeks (stat 
figure 6 weeks) 

Objective 6: High quality 
and affordable housing

Support delivery of housing 
target

Donna 
Bowler

Strategic 
Housing

March 2018 Regeneration of 3 infill/ 
brownfield sites in urban areas

64 affordable homes built by 
year end

Increase no. Empty Homes 
brought back into use as a direct 
result of intervention by the 
Empty Property team compared 
to 16-17 – target 675 in 2017/18.

Objective 7: Clean 
environment

Improve recycling Donna 
Bowler

Environmental 
Management

March 2018 Increase in amount of waste 
being recycled to achieve a 50% 
IAA recycling rate

Reduction in amount of waste 
going to landfill by 681 tonnes or 
1.9%

Objective 7: Clean 
environment

Sustain our parks and access 
to the countryside

Donna 
Bowler

Environmental 
Management

March 2018 Maintain current Green Flag 
status and Increase in number of  
parks of ‘Green Flag’ standard 
from eight to nine

P
age 52



Improve the cleanliness of our 
Streets and Open spaces

Increase in the numbers of 
Official Green Volunteers from 
82 to 100 

An increase in the average 
percentage of ‘relevant land’ 
falling below an acceptable 
standard of cleanliness as 
outlined in DEFRA Code of 
Practice for Litter & Refuse from 
current average of 24% to a 
maximum of 18%

Objective 8: Transport 
links enable good 
movement in and out of 
the borough

Improve accessibility through
Northern Gateway scheme, 
J19 Link Road and Gateways

Donna 
Bowler

Highways Dec 2017

March 2018

March 2018

Highways feasibility work 
completed to support Northern 
Gateway scheme

Design of J19 Link Road 
completed and ready for 
procurement and delivery by end 
2021

Key Gateways improved 
throughout the Borough.

Objective 8: Transport 
links enable good 
movement in and out of 
the borough

Keep our roads in good 
condition and clean

Donna 
Bowler

Property 
/Projects 
&
Environmental 
Management

March 2018 Deliver programme of flood 
resilience works and develop 
further flood resilience plans

Deliver annual Highways Capital 
programme

Achieve/maintain a level 3 rating 
for the ‘DfT Incentive Funding 
Assessment’ 

More of our streets and public 
areas to be of a good standard –
Reduction in % of the Boroughs 
classified roads where 

P
age 53



maintenance should be 
considered

Objective 13: Services and 
commissioning activities 
integrated or transformed

Implement customer 
improvement action plan 
including delivery of the 
Connected Council 
Programme phase 2 to 
enhance customer 
experience

John 
Rooney

Customer 
Access
&
IT

March 2018 Percentage of customers 
satisfied with Council services 
(baseline data to be made 
available via Residents Survey)

Percentage of customers 
satisfied with quality of call 
handled by contact centre

Percentage of customers 
satisfied that the contact centre 
adviser was helpful and attentive

Objective 13: Services and 
commissioning activities 
integrated and 
transformed

Roll out place-based Public 
Service Reform initiatives to 
improve outcomes for 
residents in our high demand 
neighbourhoods

John 
Rooney

Public Service 
Reform

March 2018 Reduced volume of high level/ 
high cost responses

Numbers of people engaged in 
College Bank
Numbers of people engaged in 
Lower Falinge programme

Numbers of people engaged in 
Kirkholt programme

Increased employment from 
within the cohort

Increased skills levels from 
within the cohort

Improved wellbeing from within 
the cohort

Objective 14: Healthy, 
motivated and resilient 
workforce with empowered 
staff 

Roll out staff recognition 
programme

John 
Rooney

Communications Nov 2017 Numbers nominations

Maximised sponsorship

P
age 54



Objective 15: Perception 
of Rochdale is changed

Launch new three-year 
communications strategy and 
2017-18 plan in support of 
themes of:

 Jobs / employment
 Place tourism
 Childhood obesity

John 
Rooney

Communications March 2018 To confirm baseline information 
from Perception Survey. 

Increased media coverage and 
social media audiences and 
engagement

Increase number of schools who 
gain the GM healthy eating 
award and are contributing to 
reducing child obesity. 

Objective16: Rochdale 
benefitting from devolution 
and providing a quality 
offer to local people, 
investors and businesses

Develop Rochdale asks in 
relation to GM devolution and 
ensure effective 
communication around 
maximisation of opportunities

John 
Rooney

Corporate Policy 
Team
& 
Communications

Dec 2017 Increased awareness and 
influence of devolution across 
Council

P
age 55



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 18th July 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate and Resources
Report Author Carolyn Whitham
Public/Private Document Public

4th Quarter Corporate Complaints

Executive Summary

1. The report provides Members with a summary of corporate complaints and 
compliments received during the fourth quarter of 2016/17.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise the 
information contained in the report and assess whether further information or 
explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions 
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement.

Key Points for Consideration

4. In total, 122 new complaints were received during the fourth quarter across all 
services.  The majority of the complaints were resolved at stage one, with only 
4 escalating to stage two.  2 complaints dealt with at stage one during 
previous quarters were also dealt with at stage two during this quarter and 4 
complaints were dealt with at stage three.   76 compliments were received in 
this reporting period.

There was a reduction in the overall number of complaints received during 
2016-17 and the number of complaints received in the fourth quarter this year 
was considerably lower than the same period last year.  This was as a result 
of a dramatic reduction in the number of complaints received by the 
Environmental Management Service.  When the new Waste Strategy and 
weekly food waste and alternate recycling collections were introduced during 
the third quarter of 2015/16 there was a marked increase in complaints, 
however the number of complaints received has continued to decrease 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



4.1

throughout 2016-17 as the process became established.

The total number of complaints received across all services in 2016-17 was 
569, which is a reduction of 45% compared to the previous year when 1261 
complaints were received.  Details of complaints dealt with by the 
Ombudsman are presented in a separate report which is produced on receipt 
of the Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual Review.

Alternatives Considered

None.  Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system 
used by all services to record complaints and compliments.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None of the complaints dealt with in this quarter had financial implications.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local 
Government Ombudsman for up to twelve months from completion of the 
Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that the outcome of a 
future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may result in a 
recommended financial remedy.  Complaints considered by the Ombudsman 
are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on receipt of the 
Ombudsman’s annual report.

6.

Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 57



Appendix 1
CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 4th QUARTER 2016/17

The Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy consists of a three stage process, providing a 
point of appeal at stage three via the Customer Feedback Team for complainants who 
remain dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint to a service.

New complaints received

A total of 122 new complaints were received in the fourth quarter. As can be seen from the 
graph below, the number of complaints received overall has decreased over the year, 
mainly due to a reduction in the number of complaints being received by the Environmental 
Management Service.  The total number of complaints received across all services in 2016-
17 was 569, which is a reduction of 45% compared to last year when 1261 complaints were 
received.

Details of the complaints received in the fourth quarter and examples of lessons learned as 
a result of complaints are included later in the report.

Year on year comparison

The graph below compares the number of complaints received in the fourth quarter this 
year with the same period last year.  As can be seen below the number of complaints 
received in the fourth quarter this year was considerably lower with a dramatic reduction 
being seen in the number of complaints received by the Environmental Management 
Service.  The introduction of the new Waste Strategy and weekly food waste and alternate 
recycling collections resulted in a marked increase in complaints received during the third 
quarter of last year when it was introduced, however the number of complaints continued to 
decrease throughout 2016-17 as the process became established.Page 58



Appendix 1

Complaints by Directorate

Details of the nature of complaints received by each Directorate can be found in the 
following tables.  The tables include details of all complaints that were either upheld or 
partially upheld together with the number of complaints that were found to be not upheld.  A 
number of complaints are reported as being ‘out of scope’.  These are complaints where it 
was established that the subject of the complaint was the responsibility of another 
organisation e.g. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing or Riverside Housing and the complaints 
were referred on to be dealt with under the organisation’s own complaints procedure.

AGILISYS

ECONOMY

Service Area Nature of complaint  
Contact Centre Not upheld 3
 Total 3

Service Area Nature of complaint  
Planning Standard of customer service 1

Notification letter not received 1
Planning enforcement action 1

 Not upheld 2
 Total 5

Page 59



Appendix 1
NEIGHBOURHOODS

Service Area Nature of complaint
ICT Issues with MyAccount 1

Total 1

Service Area Nature of complaint  
Customers & Communities Standard of customer service at N1R 1

Time limit on use of computers at library 1
Reduced service in library on Saturdays 1
Not upheld 1

 Total 4

Service Area Nature of complaint  
Environmental Management Missed / continual missed bins 9
 Actions of crew 8
 Damage to grass from Council vehicle 3
 Bulky waste collection 3
 Bins not returned to collection point 3
 Debris following waste collections 2
 Street cleansing 1
 Lack of response to fly tipping report 1
 Replacement caddy liners not left 1
 Unused bin left at side of property 1

No update re report of dangerous tree 1
Gate at entrance to playground 1
Works on public footpath 1
Recovery action re allotment debt 1
Not upheld 16
Out of scope of complaints policy 2
Total 54

Service Area Nature of complaint  
Highways & Property Conduct of gritter driver 3 

Lack of response to service request 3
Delay in agreed works being carried out 2

 Lack of response to emails 2
 Poor maintenance of footpath 1

Inadequate repairs to potholes 1
Disabled parking bay application process 1
No grit being deposited by gritting vehicle 1
Lack of pay & display ticket machines 1
Delay in notifying PCN appeal decision 1
Conduct of Civil Enforcement Officer 1
Actions of School Crossing Patrol 1

 Not upheld 13
 Total 31

Page 60



Appendix 1
Service Area Nature of complaint
Strategic Housing Not upheld 2
 Total 2

PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Service Area Nature of complaint  
Public Protection Not upheld 3
 Total 3

RESOURCES

Service Area Nature of complaint  
Revenues & Benefits Delay in processing Council Tax refund 1

Not upheld 17
 Total 18

Complaint outcomes

The graph below shows the percentage of stage one complaints received that were either 
upheld or partially upheld during 2016/17.  As can be seen below, the percentage reduced 
slightly during the fourth quarter.  

Page 61



Appendix 1
Lessons learned

Complaints provide the Council with valuable feedback which is used to develop and 
improve our services to meet the needs of our customers.  The following are examples of 
lessons learned and action taken as a result of complaints received during the fourth 
quarter.

 Following a complaint regarding continual missed waste collections, the resident was 
contacted and a bin collection point was discussed and agreed.  All crews involved were 
informed, and the collection was put on a watch list to be monitored weekly.

 In response to a complaint regarding the conduct of a gritter driver, the incident was 
investigated by the Highways Service in conjunction with Balfour Beatty.  A full apology 
was provided both from the service and the driver involved.   Following the complaint the 
service advised that they are currently investigating the use of two-way dash cams to be 
able to record such incidents and to evidence road conditions in the future.

 An apology was given to a resident who reported issues with using MyAccount.  The 
complaint highlighted an issue with the speed and responsiveness of the site, which was 
investigated by the technical team.  The resident’s account was unlocked, and they 
were also provided with contact details for the service they wished to access.

 Following a complaint regarding the gates at the entrance to a playground, an officer 
contacted the resident to discuss her concerns.  A team was sent out to check the 
gates, and the service will look to replace the spring-loaded gates with hydraulic type 
gates.

 In response to a delay in a Council Tax refund being processed, an apology was given 
to the customer and the Team Leader reminded all members of staff to process refunds 
at the time of amending accounts.

 Following a complaint relating to a lack of pay and display machines at Hollingworth 
Lake car park, one of the machines had been out of order and was repaired.  In addition 
the small sign was replaced with clearer signage showing the conditions of use and 
regulations of the car park.

 Further to a complaint from a resident who attended Number One Riverside to register 
for Council Tax, the service apologised for unforeseen issues with the customer 
telephones.  The service agreed that it would have been helpful to display notices 
advising customers about the issue with the phones and will in future ensure this 
happens to improve customer service.

 An apology was given to a resident following a complaint that replacement caddy liners 
were not left when requested.  The Supervisor visited the resident and delivered 
replacement rolls of liners, and the crew were reminded of the need to carry additional 
caddy liners to respond to residents’ requests.

Page 62



Appendix 1

Complaints received by Ward

Numbers of complaints reported by Ward are dependent upon customers providing their 
address details.  The graph below shows the numbers of complaints received by Ward 
during 2016/17.  It also indicates where address details have not been provided or the 
complainant resides outside of the Borough. 

As can be seen from the graph above, the number of complaints received from residents in 
most wards reduced in the final quarter of this year.  There was a slight increase in 
complaints received in Norden and East Middleton Wards; however there was no particular 
reason for this.

West Middleton Ward saw the highest number of complaints overall in 2016-17, however, 
the complaints related to a variety of issues and service areas. 

Service Requests 

A large number of complaints received are in fact service requests, and details are included 
below to evidence the very low numbers of service requests that subsequently lead to 
complaints.  For example, the number of complaints received by Environmental 
Management and Highways in the fourth quarter was 54, and 31 respectively, however; the 
number of service requests dealt with by both services during the same period was 
significantly higher.

Page 63



Appendix 1
Environmental Management

Service Area Requests 
Q3

Requests 
Q4

New Wheelie bin request 2545 3026

Missed bin 1034 1264

Information/enquiry – street services 252 272

Fly tipping 1529 1188

Assisted collection 65 26

Remove bin 272 230

Information/enquiry – enforcement 0 0

Bulky collection 567 768

Tree maintenance 141 206

Dead animal 55 41

Dog fouling 183 220

Other service request – Waste Services 652 842

Untidy garden 138 197

Abandoned vehicle 67 108

Grass/shrub/hedge maintenance 50 32

Litter bin 39 45

Spillage on road 24 31

Graffiti 12 20

Sharps/drugs/paraphernalia 14 18

Trade waste 3 5

Fly posting 12 10

Ragwort/Knotweed 27 7

Travellers enquiry 7 8

Caddy liner request 150 222

Rights of Way 38 25

 
Total 7876 8811

Highways

Service Area
Requests 

Q3
Requests 

Q4
Bridges and Structures 4 8
Highways 9 13
Highway Maintenance 169 208
Network Development 35 33
Network Management /Traffic 208 218
Parking Services (including School Crossings) 42 31
Road Safety 5 36
Total 472 547

Page 64



Appendix 1
Compliments

In addition to complaints, compliments are also received from customers and shared with 
the teams concerned.  

As can be seen from the graph above, a total of 76 compliments were recorded during the 
fourth quarter of 2016/17, a selection of which can be found below.  

“A great big thank you for putting up the webcam on the Town Hall to view the peregrine 
nest. As an avid photographer I have taken many photographs over the last 6 years of 
these birds, it gives another aspect to it all and provides stunning footage for all to enjoy. 
Many thanks again.”

“I would like to compliment the gentleman who drove the street cleaning machine around 
our close this morning.  What a superb and thorough job he made of it. He really seemed to 
be interested in making sure that all he did was done properly.  He is a credit to RBC.”

“We would just like to thank your office for the way you dealt with us after D's death. Would 
you please pass on our gratitude to the coroner.  She handled the whole affair with total 
professionalism and compassion for our loss and this was very much appreciated by us all.”

“Having had a rather traumatic and stressful experience with an enforcement officer, I was 
helped by the Contact Centre Advisor to make a complaint and to have the matter resolved.   
He was so helpful and compassionate, he completely put me at ease, listened, explained 
and then cheered me up no end (something I didn’t think would be possible at the time).The 
Advisor is a credit to the Council and his team.” Page 65



Appendix 1

“I just wanted to say a huge thank you from the school for the opportunity to bring the two 
groups on the Town Hall tours today. The children who came along had a great time and 
were fascinated by the building. The staff found the guide very interesting and also enjoyed 
the tours. The photographs look super!   Please thank those involved in the visits today on 
my behalf. Thank you also for arranging it all for us.”

“The officer from the Blue Badge department very patiently talked me through my first 
application. It was a great help and service and I am delighted to have received my badge 
today.  It will make an amazing difference to my life.  Thanks to all the staff I have dealt 
with.....a great department!”

“I’d just like to say thank you to the Council’s team of gardeners for their hard work keeping 
the parks well maintained on a tight budget and also for the lovely spring flowering troughs 
on the railings throughout Middleton. They look lovely and a pleasure to see on a dull wet 
day like today!”

Customer satisfaction with the process

The Customer Feedback Team monitors complaints received and recorded across the 
Council to ensure compliance with complaint policy timescales and consistency in 
implementation of the process.

During the fourth quarter, a total of 122 new complaints were received, and of these only 4 
escalated to the next stage in the complaints process, indicating that the customer was 
satisfied with the response and action taken by the service concerned at the lowest level.  

Page 66



Agenda Item

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting 18th July 2017
Portfolio Corporate & Resources
Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document Public

Health Related Absence Reporting

Executive Summary

1. The report provides fourth quarter and year-end health related absence 
figures to Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
an assessment against Directorate and Corporate targets.  

The fourth quarter health related absence figures (Jan – March 17) indicate 
that the overall level for the Council was 2.46 days per FTE (including schools 
staff).

The Council’s absence target for days lost due to health related absences for 
2016/17 was set at 7.45 days per FTE.  The final position for 2016/17 is 8.33 
days per FTE compared to 7.62 for 2015/16. Whilst the level of absence for 
2016/17 is above target it should be recognised that there has been an 
improvement over the last twelve month period in the management of short 
term sickness absence.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee note the fourth quarter position and consider the year-end health 
related absence figures for the Council for 2016/17.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To provide Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
an update of the health related absence data and the opportunity to scrutinise 
performance against targets.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The fourth quarter health related absence figures, indicate that the overall level for the 
Authority was 2.46 days per FTE, of which 1.39 days (56%) were due to long term 

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



sickness absence.  The days lost for the same period in 2015/16 was 2.53 days per FTE 
of which 1.45 days (57.3%) were due to long term sickness absence.

The year-end absence figures indicate that the overall level of days lost for the Council 
was 8.33 days per FTE compared with 7.62 days per FTE for 2015/16.  Of the 8.33 days 
lost per FTE, 5.25 (63%) were lost to long term absence, and 3.07 (37%) to short term 
absence. This is similar to the breakdown of days lost in 2015/16 where 4.59 days per 
FTE (60%) were long to long term absence, and 3.03 days (40%) to short term absence.

Table 1 shows the year-end absence data per Directorate, and the year-end position 
compared to each Directorate’s target. 

Directorate Total 
Days lost

FTE’s Days lost 
per FTE

2016/17 
Target

Executive 0.00 2 0.00 1.00

Adult Care Service 3650.33 314 11.63 9.00

Public Health 277.51 56 4.96 5.00

Children’s Services 6339.53 697 9.10 7.90

Schools 24110.00 3553 6.79 7.00

Economy 451.91 89 5.08 5.00

Neighbourhoods 12384.00 908 13.64 9.00

Resources 1829.99 272 6.73 7.15

Total 49043.27 5891 8.33 7.45

TABLE 1

It should be noted that 72% of individuals working in schools are employed by the 
Council, and the remaining 28% are employed by the Governing Body.  

Based upon an analysis of the data, long term absence accounted for the majority of 
absences.  Stress, depression and related problems, was the top reason for long term 
absence, with operative and back/neck problems being the other 2 top reasons. 

Short term absence accounted for 37% of absence, and the number of days lost due to 
short/intermittent absence has reduced consistently over the period since 2013. 

Graph 1 plots the Council’s figures from 2008 to 2017 and demonstrates a positive 
downward trend over these years. 

Page 68



10.02

9.44
9.21

8.55

9.34

7.8

8.8

7.62

8.33

9.44 9.41

8.9 8.9

7.9 7.9

7.3 7.3
7.45

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
7

7.5

8

8.5

9

9.5

10

10.5

Actual days lost per FTE Target per FTE

Days lost

GRAPH 1

The Council introduced an Employee Health and Wellbeing Strategy in 2015, which is 
currently being reviewed. Further information will be provided to the Committee as part 
of the arrangements for establishing a Task and Finish Group, in order to consider any 
measures which may be available and appropriate to improving attendance and 
supporting employees.

The Corporate and Directorate targets are based on continuous improvements from 
previous years, the known factors and issues arising within each Service.  It is proposed 
however, that the targets for 2017/18 are considered and set by members of the 
Committee as part of the Task and Finish Group.

This report has previously provided workforce data, the compilation of this information is 
currently being reviewed so that more meaningful information can be provided to 
Members in the future, again this may be an appropriate area for the Task and Finish 
Group to consider.

Alternatives Considered

Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the Council’s 
ambition to continuously improve services and propose actions or interventions to 
maintain improvements.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Any financial implications arising from sickness absence are reported by 
Directorates through the Revenue Finance Updates reports presented to 

2014 Savings Proposals 
and changes to conditions

2013 New HRA 
implemented

2012 Savings Proposals and 
changes to conditions

Page 69



Cabinet on a quarterly basis.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. Significant health related absence will impact on the Council`s capacity to 
deliver its corporate objectives, therefore effective management of health 
related absence is a whole organisation responsibility.

Consultation

7. In compiling this report, Directors and Assistant Directors have been advised 
on performance relating to their service areas. Trade Unions have also been 
provided with information.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 
to this report.

N/A

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 926245

Page 70

mailto:rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 18th July 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate and Resources
Report Author Victoria Bradshaw  
Public Document Public

Non Domestic Rates - Discretionary Relief Policy Amendments

Executive Summary

1. This report proposes amendments to the current Non Domestic Rates Discretionary 
Relief Policy in relation to discretionary business rates discounts outlined by 
government in the Spring Budget 2017. 

Recommendation

2.1 Cabinet are asked to approve the policy amendments set out in this report and 
Appendix A in relation to :

2.1.1   supporting small business relief. 
2.1.2   support for pubs scheme.
 2.1.3   the local discretionary support scheme for those businesses facing   

hardship as a result of increases in bills due to the revaluation as detailed 
at 4.5 of the report.

2.1.4   the Chief Finance Officer,  in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate & Resources be delegated to vary the Scheme award criteria as 
necessary to ensure that take up is maximised.

2.1.5   the Chief Finance Officer,  in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate & Resources be delegated to utilise any remaining balances set 
aside for these purposes to award a discretionary grant on a case by case 
basis where excessive increases in the business rates bill due to the 
revaluation 2017 has resulted in hardship for a local business.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The Spring Budget announced by the Chancellor on the 8th March 2017 outlined 
proposals to support those businesses that faced the highest increases in their 
business rates bills as a result of the revaluation.
The Government has undertaken consultation on the proposals and has now 
announced guidance for local authorities to implement support through existing 
discretionary relief powers to reduce bills to local businesses.

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



Key Points for Consideration

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.3.1

4.4

4.5

4.5.1

4.5.2

 From 1st April 2017 business properties have been revalued based on rental values at 1st 
April 2015. The change in rateable values has affected the amount of business rates that 
businesses have to pay. In Rochdale around half of businesses have seen either no 
change or a fall in the amount that they have to pay. However, some businesses have 
seen significant increases in their business rates bills. 

To support those businesses affected with high increases the Government announced a 
number of different schemes in the Spring Budget 2017 which are outlined below.

Supporting small business relief

This relief will provide targeted support to those businesses who have lost their small 
business rate relief as a result of the revaluation changes. Those small businesses facing 
large increases will be supported to ensure that the increase per year in the business 
rates bill is limited to the greater of :

  a cash value of £50 per month – (£600 per year);
 the matching cap on increase for small properties in the transitional relief  

scheme.

Based on the latest information approximately 6 properties in Rochdale will benefit from 
this relief.

 Support for Pubs scheme
          

        This relief will provide £1,000 discount for properties with a rateable value under £100,000 
in 2017/18. The eligibility criteria for the Pubs Scheme is detailed in the Discretionary Rate 
Relief Policy (Appendix 1).

Discretionary Relief Scheme

This Scheme is designed to allow local authorities to provide support to those small 
businesses that have faced the steepest increases in their business rates bills as a result 
of the 2017 revaluation of business rates. Details of the Scheme are provided in the Policy 
at Appendix 1. The main principles to qualify for the relief are :

 the rateable property has a 2017 rateable value less than £200,000; 
 the 2017 rateable value has increased by more than 12.5%;
 the rateable property must have been on the Valuation Office Agency rating list on 

1 April 2016 and 1 April 2017;
 the ratepayer must have been in continual occupation before 1 April 2017; and
 after all other reliefs have been applied, the increase in the billing amount is more 

than 5% of 2016/17. 

The following are not eligible for relief under this scheme:
 businesses who will benefit from the Supporting Small Businesses relief scheme;
 businesses whose increase in the amount they are paying in 2017/18 compared to 

2016/17 is less than £50 per month (£600 per annum), to mirror the maximum 
protection for small businesses in the Supporting Small Businesses relief scheme;

 pubs who will benefit from the Support for Pubs relief scheme;
 if the ratepayer does not have employees based in the hereditament on which 

relief is being sought;

Page 72



4.5.3

4.5.4

4.6.

 ratepayers operating an intermittent business rate mitigation/avoidance scheme;
 ratepayers with an outstanding rateable value appeal with the Valuation Office 

Agency (as the Council will be unable to determine the financial impact on the 
business until the appeal is concluded);

 national companies, national charities and public bodies;
 property owners and/or occupiers with more than one property in the Borough will 

only be able get this relief on one property; and
 hereditaments wholly or mainly being used as betting shops, payday loan shops, 

pawnbrokers or shisha bars.

Eligible businesses will receive a fixed relief award of £1,000 in 2017/18 and £500 in 
2018/19.  Future year relief awards will be subject to determination.

It is estimated that the scheme will provide support to approximately  220 small/medium 
businesses that are facing an increase in the amount they have to pay.

Alternatives Considered

The changes to the Policy have been determined by Government. No alternatives have 
therefore been considered for the amendments in relation to small business transitional 
rates relief and support for local pubs. Alternatives for the operation of the local 
discretionary business rates relief scheme are outlined in the main report.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

The costs of the discounts are to be funded by way of a section 31 grant from Central 
Government for the supporting small business relief and support for local pubs.

The local discretionary business rates relief scheme is a capped cash allocation of :

Year Allocation
£000

2017/18 259
2018/19 126
2019/20 52
2020/21 7
Total 444

5.3. The allocation is based on 100% of the award as Rochdale Council is part of the 
Greater Manchester Business Rates 100% retention pilot for 2017/18. The allocation 
therefore includes 1% which is payable to GM Fire & Rescue Authority.

5.4 Guidance is currently outstanding to determine whether the amounts can be “flexed” 
over more than one financial year.

Page 73



Risk and Policy Implications

Legal Implications

Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 amended Section 47 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 to allow authorities to grant a discount on local business rates to 
any local ratepayer within the limits of primary legislation and European rules on 
state aid. The Council has statutory power to award discretionary rate relief under 
Section 44a, Section 47 (as amended) and Section 49 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 and Section 42A & Section 42B of the Local Government & 
Rating Act 1997.

6.  Equalities Impact 

The equality impact assessment is provided at Appendix 2.

6.1

6.2.

Consultation

7.1

7.2

The Government undertook consultation directly with businesses and public bodies 
on the amendments to the business rates reliefs set out in the Spring Budget 2017 
between the 9th March 2017 and the 7th April 2017. The guidance subsequently 
issued reflected the feedback from this consultation.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18th July 2017 will review the 
recommendations and revised Policy for 2017/18 and provide feedback to Cabinet 
on the 25th July as part of the decision making for the amendments to the Policy.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Discretionary business rate relief 
files 

Revenues & Benefits , N1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw  , Tel: 01706 925409, 
Victoria.Bradshaw@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 74



Discretionary Rate Relief 
Policy

Page 75



Document Control
Document Title:  Non- Domestic Rates 

Relief Policy: document incorporating areas of 
local discretion

July 2017

Summary

Publication Date

Related Legislation / Applicable Section of Legislation

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline Documents

Replaces

Joint Policy (Yes/No)

Name of Partner(s) if joint

Policy Owner (Name/Position)

Policy Author (Name/Position)

Review of Policy
Last Review Date

Review undertaken by

Next Review Date

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.
Name Title Date of Issue Version Number

Page 76



rochdale.gov.uk 2

1. Introduction

The Council recognises the importance of supporting local businesses and 
organisations to promote the provision of local facilities, economic growth, 
employment and investment to improve prosperity across the Borough and in 
particular support the most disadvantaged communities.

Councils have the power to grant discretionary rate relief to organisations that 
meet certain criteria. Public funds are not however unlimited, a proportion of 
the costs of relief granted is borne by council tax payers. In making decisions 
the Council must be confident that money invested in this way will be repaid in 
economic and/or community benefit.

The powers for granting  discretionary rate relief by Councils is provided in 
Section 44a, Section 47 and Section 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1988 which has been amended by Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 to 
incorporate wider powers to grant relief under local discretion.

This policy document outlines the areas of local discretion and the Council’s 
approach to the various discounts. There is also a summary provided of the 
reliefs which are awarded by Government under national initiatives.

2. Mandatory Rate Relief

The Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Council to grant 
Mandatory Rate Relief of 80% of the business rates to the following 
categories of business rates payers:

 Registered charities where the property is wholly or mainly used for 
charitable purposes

 Registered Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASCs) for any club 
with the appropriate registration with HMRC.

 Rural shops – (not applicable in Rochdale Borough)

3. Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme

Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Council to 
maintain a Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme to award up to 100% business 
rates relief to certain organisations which operate within locally specified 
criteria. These organisations being for Rochdale Borough Council:

a) A further award to registered charities up to 100%, known as 
discretionary “top-up” relief, where the property is wholly or mainly 
used for charitable purposes.

b) A further award of 20% on top of mandatory relief to registered 
Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASCs).

c) Other non-profit making organisations and the property is used for 
charitable purpose concerned with education, social welfare, science, 
literature or the fine arts; or is used wholly or mainly for recreation by a 
not-for-profit club or society

Page 77



rochdale.gov.uk 3

In determining applications the Council may
 Grant relief up to a maximum of 100% of the business rates due;
 Grant relief for a sum less than 100% of the business rates due; or
 Refuse any application for additional relief.

Detailed below are the criteria applied.

3.1. Charities

Mandatory rate relief of 80% is granted to charities in the following 
circumstances:

 The ratepayer of a property is a charity or the trustees of a charity, and
  the property is wholly or mainly used for charitable purposes

The Council will consider applications for a discretionary rate relief top up 
from charities based on their own merits, on a case by case basis. 

In determining the application the following matters will be taken in to 
consideration:

 ‘Top-Up’ relief of 20% is only awarded to local charities who can clearly 
demonstrate financial hardship. 

 Unless a special case for hardship can be proved, ‘Top-Up’ relief to 
national charities including charity shops or other premises should not 
be granted.

 Local charity to be defined as set up with the sole purpose of assisting 
local residents of Rochdale Borough Council and whose main office is 
situated within the Rochdale Borough.

 Academy, Free, Grant Maintained, Faith and Trust Status schools are 
classified as charities and therefore receive 80% mandatory relief. Top- 
up relief for schools and educational establishments who receive 
central or local government support should not be granted unless a 
special case for hardship can be proved.

3.2 Registered Community Amateur Sports Clubs and other Non Profit 
Making Sports & Leisure Clubs

Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC's) receive 80% Mandatory Relief for 
any club with the appropriate registration with HM Revenues and Customs. To 
qualify as a CASC the club must be set up with a formal constitution (for 
example its rules or memorandum and articles of association). The club's 
written constitution must require the club to meet certain conditions, and the 
club must also be able to show that it actually meets these conditions in 
practice. The conditions are that:

•  the club must be open to the whole community
• the club's main purpose must be to provide facilities for eligible sports, 

and to encourage people to take part in them
• the club must be organised on an amateur basis

Page 78



rochdale.gov.uk 4

The club must also be able to show that:
• it is set up and provides its facilities in an eligible area
• it is managed by fit and proper persons

CASCs which qualify for the mandatory business rates relief can also apply to 
the Council for a top up discretionary rate relief up to a maximum of 20%. 
Other non-profit making sports and leisure clubs who do not qualify for 
mandatory relief can apply for discretionary relief. 

The Council will consider applications for a discretionary rate relief top up 
from CASCs and discretionary relief for non-profit making sports and leisure 
clubs based on their own merits, on a case by case basis. 

The Council will consider applications that can demonstrate;

• The contribution that the organisation makes to the Rochdale Borough 
• Membership: fees should not be considered to be excessive, should be 

open to everybody, and 75% of members must be Rochdale Borough 
residents 

• Every effort should be made by the organisation to encourage open 
membership, from groups such as young people, disabled persons, 
ethnic minorities, armed and ex armed forces personnel and 
unemployed people: In particular;

• membership should consist of at least 25% of people from 
such groups 

• the facilities should be made available to local communities 
other than members 

• differential fee structures to encourage such groups to apply 
• Schemes of education or training for such groups must exist
• For other non-profit making sports and leisure clubs the level of 

discretionary award may depend on bar takings as well as the 
membership requirements above.

The Council will take into account whether the building is accessible to 
disabled people or if reasonable attempts are being made to make it 
accessible.

3.3. Non Profit Making Organisations (other than charities, CASC’s, or other 
sports and leisure clubs) and Community Interest Companies (CIC)

Non Profit Making Organisations who are not classed as registered charities 
or CASC’s, can apply for Discretionary Rate Relief which can be paid at any 
rate up to 100%. Such organisations would include; philanthropic, religious, 
concerned with education or social welfare, science, literature, fine arts, or 
wholly or mainly for recreation by a not-for-profit club or society.

Community Interest Companies (registered with the Office of the Regulator of 
Community Interest Companies) can apply for Discretionary Rate Relief which 
can be paid at any rate up to 100%.

Page 79



rochdale.gov.uk 5

The Council will consider applications for discretionary rate relief from 
organisations based on their own merits, on a case by case basis.
 
The Council will consider applications from organisations that can 
demonstrate;

• The activities of the organisation must support at least one of the 
Council’s priorities.

• The organisation must promote its services for the benefit of 
Rochdale Borough residents.

• Membership of the organisation must be open to all members of the          
community, regardless of ability, subject to the physical capacity of 
the premises.

• Membership rates should not be considered to be excessive so as to       
exclude the general community. Comparisons will be made with 
similar organisations to ensure a level of consistency.

• Organisations must actively encourage membership from groups 
such as young people, older age groups, persons with a disability, 
ethnic minorities, armed and ex-armed forces personnel and 
unemployed people. This should be be demonstrated by either;

a) differential fee structures for such groups; or
b) provision of schemes of training or education for such 

groups; or
c) a membership which consists of at least 25% of people 

from such groups.
• The facilities of the organisation should, where practical, be made 

available to people, bodies, or groups other than members, e.g. from 
schools, casual public sessions, etc…, subject to licensing 
requirements.

• The organisation must be affiliated to a local or national organisation 
where one exists.

• At least 75% of the membership must be made up of Rochdale 
Borough residents                

• The organisation must provide a copy of their constitution and a copy 
of the last 2 years audited annual accounts where available.

3.4. Period of Award

The period of the award will normally be for the financial year that the 
application was made and will be reviewed on an annual basis thereafter.

3.5. Changes in Liability

The organisation must inform the Council of any change in circumstances, 
which might affect eligibility for relief.

4. Part Occupied Relief

The Council has discretion under Section 44a of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 to allow relief to be provided to a business that is partially 

Page 80



rochdale.gov.uk 6

occupying a property for a short period of time (no more than 6 months), 
typically as part of a phased move in or phased move out.

The amount of relief that can be granted will be determined by the Valuation 
Office Agency, who will assign a rateable value to the unoccupied element of 
the property. 

Relief will not be granted if an application is received after the property has 
become fully occupied or fully empty.

5. Hardship Relief

The Council has discretion under Section 49 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988, to give up to 100% relief in exceptional circumstances 
where hardship is being experienced. However, awarding relief can only be 
considered on condition that it would be reasonable to do so having regards 
to the interests of council tax payers in general. 

Hardship may be financial or due to extraordinary external factors causing the 
failure of a business or preventing it from being re-let or reoccupied, but relief 
cannot be awarded purely because a business is failing. The main 
consideration is of the effect a loss of a business will have on local council tax 
payers, e.g. the loss of a major employer or the only provider of an essential 
service in an area.
 
As there is no statutory definition of hardship, the Council decides each case 
on its own merits. When deciding whether to award hardship relief, as well as 
being confident that the organisation is experiencing hardship, the principle 
consideration will be that any relief is in the best interests of the council 
taxpayers, as the Council must bear the cost of any relief granted.

The period for the award to be determined on a case by case basis.

6. Local Business Rate Discount – Government funded temporary reliefs

In the Chancellor’s Budget Statements of 2016 and 2017 the Government has 
determined that local authorities can use their discretionary powers under 
Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 to provide reliefs to 
support national initiatives. The reliefs granted will be reimbursed in full by 
Government by way of specific grants to local authorities.

6.1.     Local Newspapers 

£1,500 discount for office space occupied by local newspapers, up to a 
maximum of one discount per local newspaper title and per hereditament, and 
up to state aid limits, for 2 years from 1 April 2017.

Page 81



rochdale.gov.uk 7

6.2 Support for Pubs

£1,000 discount for pubs that have a rateable value of below £100,000. To be 
eligible, the pub must be open to the general public. Further details and the 
full eligibility criteria are available in Appendix 1. The discount is available for 
1 year from 1 April 2017.

6.3 Supporting Small Businesses

This is a scheme for ratepayers who are losing some or all of their small 
business rate relief as a result of a large rateable value increase following the 
2017 revaluation. The scheme is available for 5 years from 1 April 2017.

The Supporting Small Businesses relief will ensure that the increase per year 
in the bills of these ratepayers is limited to the greater of: 

a) a percentage increase p.a. of 5%, 7.5%, 10%, 15% and 15% in the 
financial years 2017/18 to 2021/22, all plus inflation. Unlike the 
transitional relief scheme, for the first year of the scheme the 
percentage increase is taken against the bill for 31 March 2017 after 
small business rate relief, or

b) a cash value of £600 per year (£50 per month). This cash minimum 
increase ensures that those ratepayers paying nothing or very small 
amounts in 2016/17 after small business rate relief are brought into 
paying something. 

In the first year of the scheme (2017/18), this means all ratepayers losing 
some or all of their small business rate relief or rural rate relief will see the 
increase in their bill capped at £600. The cash minimum increase is £600 per 
year thereafter. This means that ratepayers who are currently paying nothing 
under small business rate relief and are losing all of their entitlement to relief 
(i.e. moving from £6,000 rateable value or less to more than £15,000) would 
under this scheme be paying £3,000 in year 5. 

6.4 Discretionary Relief Scheme

The Government has established a £300m discretionary fund over 4 years 
from 2017/18 to support businesses who have experienced a large increase 
in their rateable value following the 2017 revaluation and were most affected 
by the change. The £300m will cover 4 years from April 2017, as follows: 

National Allocation (£300m)
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£175m £85m £35m £5m

Rochdale Allocation (£444k)
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£259k £126k £52k £7k

Page 82



rochdale.gov.uk 8

Government based it’s local allocations on the following:

a) the rateable property has a rateable value for 2017/18 that is less than 
£200,000, and

b) the increase in the rateable property’s 2017/18 bill is more than 12.5% 
compared to its 2016/17 bill (before reliefs).

To qualify for relief, the following conditions must all apply:

 the rateable property has a 2017 rateable value less than £200,000; 
 the 2017 rateable value has increased by more than 12.5%;
 the rateable property must have been on the Valuation Office Agency 

rating list on 1 April 2016 and 1 April 2017;
 the ratepayer must have been in continual occupation before 1 April 

2017; and
 after all other reliefs have been applied, the increase in the billing 

amount is more than 5% of 2016/17. 

The following are not eligible for relief under this scheme:

 businesses who will benefit from the Supporting Small Businesses 
relief scheme;

 businesses whose increase in the amount they are paying in 2017/18 
compared to 2016/17 is less than £50 per month (£600 per annum), to 
mirror the maximum protection for small businesses in the Supporting 
Small Businesses relief scheme;

 pubs who will benefit from the Support for Pubs relief scheme;
 if the ratepayer does not have employees based in the hereditament on 

which relief is being sought;
 ratepayers operating an intermittent business rate mitigation/avoidance 

scheme;
 ratepayers with an outstanding rateable value appeal with the 

Valuation Office Agency (as the Council will be unable to determine the 
financial impact on the business until the appeal is concluded);

 national companies, national charities and public bodies;
 property owners and/or occupiers with more than one property in the 

Borough, will only be able get this relief on one property; and
 hereditaments wholly or mainly being used as betting shops, payday 

loan shops, pawnbrokers or shisha bars.

Eligible businesses will receive a fixed relief award of £1,000 in 2017/18 and 
£500 in 2018/19.  Future year relief awards will be subject to determination.

Page 83



rochdale.gov.uk 9

7.     Local Business Rate Discount – Council determined schemes
     

7.1.  On 15 December 2014 the Council’s Cabinet decided to introduce a local 
discount scheme with the aim of bringing back into use empty properties in 
Rochdale Town Centre to support and sustain the vitality and diversity of 
Yorkshire Street, the western end of Baillie Street, The Walk and South 
Parade. Under the scheme the 23 properties identified would receive a Local 
Business Rates Discount on the remaining liability (after the award of any 
Government reliefs) of 80% in 2015/16 and 50% in 2016/17. At the end of the 
2 year period the discount will stop. Determination and award of any discount 
will be in accordance with the eligibility criteria determined by the Council’s 
Cabinet.

7.2. In March 2016, the Chief Executive used delegated powers to revise the 
Rochdale Town Centre scheme and create discount schemes for Heywood 
and Middleton Town Centres.

7.3. Rochdale Town Centre:
 Existing scheme is to be extended for a third year. Discount to be 80% in 

year 1, 50% in year 2 and 30% in year 3.
 The 3 year period is to run from the date of occupation and not April to 

March each financial year.

7.4. Heywood Town Centre 
 To support and sustain the vitality and diversity of the town centre area 

including Market Street, Market Place, Bridge Street and York Street within 
the defined town centre boundary (excluding units within the shopping 
centre).

 Discount on the remaining liability (after the award of any Government 
reliefs) to be 80% in year 1, 50% in year 2 and 30% in year 3.

 The 3 year period is to run from the date of occupation and not April to 
March each financial year.

7.5. Middleton Town Centre
 To support and sustain the vitality and diversity of Long Street, Wood 

Street, Market Place and Middleton Gardens within the defined town 
centre boundary (excluding units within the shopping centre).

 Discount on the remaining liability (after the award of any Government 
reliefs) to be 80% in year 1, 50% in year 2 and 30% in year 3.

 The 3 year period is to run from the date of occupation and not April to 
March each financial year.

7.6.  On 12 February 2015 the Council’s Cabinet decided to give delegated powers 
to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, to grant 
a local business rate discount in appropriate cases. Any decision will consider 
the interest of the council tax payers in relation to any cost and benefit to the 
Council and the decision will support the strategic objectives of the Council. 
Particular consideration will be given to how the granting of relief can support 
the creation and/or safeguarding of jobs in the borough.

Page 84



rochdale.gov.uk 10

8.     Application and Appeals Process

All applications for discretionary non domestic rate relief should be made in 
writing, where possible using the Council’s application forms. It is the 
responsibility of the organisation applying for relief to provide sufficient 
information and documentary evidence to support applications.

If an applicant is dissatisfied with the outcome of their application they can ask 
for a review of that decision by the Director of Resources.

9.      European Union State Aid

State Aid law is the means by which the European Union (EU) regulates state 
funded support to businesses. Financial support from public bodies to 
businesses could have the potential to be anti-competitive and affect trade 
between member states of the EU. 

EU State Aid rules generally prohibit government subsidies to businesses. 
Providing discretionary rate relief to ratepayers can in some cases be deemed 
to be State Aid. 

There is, however, a general exception to the state aid rule where the aid is 
below a “de minimis” level. The De Minimis Regulations allow an undertaking 
to currently receive up to €200,000 of De Minimis aid in a three year period 
(consisting of the current financial year and the two previous financial years). 
The De Minimis Regulation and limit is subject to update and changes in 
legislation.

To administer De Minimis it is necessary for the Council to establish that the 
award of aid will not result in the undertaking having received more than 
€200,000 of De Minimis aid. The Council will ensure compliance with the legal 
requirements and any permitted exemptions. Each case will be considered 
based on the organisation’s individual circumstances in full consideration of 
the EU State Aid rules.

Business ratepayers who apply for or receive any discretionary rate relief 
(Section 44a, Section 47 or Section 49) will be required to make a declaration 
if they have or are receiving EU State Aid. This is particularly likely to affect 
large retail chains where the cumulative discretionary rate relief may cause 
them to exceed the €200,000 de minimus limit. A sample letter and 
declaration form is provided at Appendix 2.

10.      Policy Review

This policy will be reviewed periodically, taking into account Council policies 
and priorities and any changes in Government legislation and proposals.

11.  Other National Business Rate Reliefs 

Page 85



rochdale.gov.uk 11

11.1.   Small Business Rates Relief (SBRR)

This relief is intended to help small businesses, as defined by the size of the 
rateable value (RV) of the property occupied. A business is eligible if only one 
property is occupied and the rateable value is below £18,000.

Eligible businesses will receive relief at 100% on properties up to £12,000 RV 
and a tapered level of relief from 100% to 0% for properties from £12,001 RV 
up to 18,000 RV.

However, if a property is occupied with a RV of £18,001 but below £51,001, 
another form of SBRR is payable, which entitles the occupier to have their bill 
calculated using the small business multiplier, and this is regardless of the 
number of properties occupied.

11.2. Empty Property Rate Relief (EPRR)

There is an exemption from paying business rates on empty commercial or 
retail property for three months after the property becomes vacant.

However, there are exceptions to this;
 Industrial premises, such as warehouses, are exempt for a further three 

months, making six months in total 
 Listed buildings are exempt until they become occupied again 
 Buildings with a RV under £2,600 are exempt until they become 

occupied again 
 Properties owned by charities are exempt if the property's next use is 

likely to be wholly or mainly for charitable purposes 
 Community amateur sports club buildings are exempt if their next use is 

likely to be wholly or mainly for a sports club 

After the exemption period ends, liability for the full business rate bill 
recommences and another period of empty rate exemption cannot be granted 
unless the property has been occupied for at least six weeks.

11.3. Transitional Relief (TR)

Transitional relief is designed to reduce the impact of any significant changes 
in the RV of a property, either up or down, following a national revaluation of 
properties. 

It is a complicated scheme, but basically, the arrangements help to phase in 
the effects of these changes by limiting the increases in bills. To help pay for 
the limits on increases in bills, there also has to be limits on those properties 
where revaluation leads to reduced bills. The increase or decrease is phased 
in until the correct value is reached.

Page 86



rochdale.gov.uk 12

APPENDIX 1
Support for Pubs – Eligibility Criteria

This section describes in principle the Pubs Relief Scheme. The scheme will be 
available to eligible occupied properties with a rateable value of less than £100,000. 
The majority of pubs are independently owned or managed and will not be part of 
chains. Where pubs are part of a chain, relief will be available for each eligible 
property in the chain, subject to meeting State Aid requirements (see section 9 in this 
policy). 

There is no definitive description of a traditional pub or public house in law which 
could be readily used to determine eligibility. The objective has been to adopt an 
approach that makes the design and eligibility of the scheme easy to implement byin 
a clear and consistent way, is widely accepted by the industry and which is 
consistent with the Government’s policy intention. 

The Government’s policy intention is that eligible pubs should:
 be open to the general public 
 allow free entry other than when occasional entertainment is provided 
 allow drinking without requiring food to be consumed 
 permit drinks to be purchased at a bar. 

For these purposes, it should exclude:
 restaurants 
 cafes 
 nightclubs 
 hotels 
 snack bars 
 guesthouses 
 boarding houses 
 sporting venues 
 music venues 
 festival sites 
 theatres 
 museums 
 exhibition halls 
 cinemas
 concert halls 
 casinos 

The proposed exclusions in the list above is not intended to be exhaustive and it will 
be for the Council to determine those cases where eligibility is unclear. The Council 
already has a good understanding of the licensed premises in our areas and will be 
able to readily form a view on eligibility in the majority of cases.

Page 87



rochdale.gov.uk 13

The stated intent of the Government policy is that it demonstrates the 
characteristicsthat would lead it to be classified as a pub, for example being owned 
and operated by a brewery. The Council may also consider other methods of 
classification, such as the planning system and the use classes order to help us 
decide whether a property is a pub or not. However, permission for a particular use 
class will not necessarily mean that the property meets the definition of a pub.

Page 88



rochdale.gov.uk 14

APPENDIX 1

Dear Sir or Madam,

European Union State Aid

Discretionary rate relief awards are required to comply with the European Union law 
on State Aid. In this case, this involves returning the attached declaration to this 
authority if you have received any other De Minimis State Aid, including any other 
discretionary rate relief you are being granted for premises other than the one to 
which this letter relates, and confirming that the award of discretionary rate relief 
does not exceed the €200,000 an undertaking can receive under the De Minimis 
Regulations EC 1407/2013.

In terms of declaring previous De Minimis aid, we are only interested in public 
support which is De Minimis aid (State Aid received under other exemptions or public 
support which is not State Aid does not need to be declared).
 
If you have not received any other De Minimis State Aid, including any other 
discretionary rate relief you are being granted for premises other than the one 
to which this letter relates, you do not need to complete or return the 
declaration.
 
If you wish to refuse to receive discretionary rate relief granted in relation to the 
premises to which this letter relates, please complete the attached form and return it 
to the address above. You do not need to complete the De Minimus declaration. This 
may be particularly relevant to those premises that are part of a large retail chain, 
where the cumulative total of discretionary rate relief received could exceed 
€200,000.
 
Under European Commission rules, you must retain this letter for 3 years and 
produce it on any request by the United Kingdom public authorities or the European 
Commission. (You may need to keep this letter longer than 3 years for other 
purposes). Furthermore, information on this aid must be supplied to any other public 
authority or agency asking for information on ‘De Minimis’ aid for the next three 
years.

Page 89



rochdale.gov.uk 15

‘DE MINIMIS’ DECLARATION 
 
BUSINESS RATES ACCOUNT NUMBER: ________________________________

The value of the business rates retail relief to be provided to: 

___________________________________________________ (name of business) 

by Rochdale Borough Council is:

£_____________________    Euros €_________________     (amount of rate relief)

This award shall comply with EU law on State Aid on the basis that, including this 
award, shall not receive more than €200,000 in total of De Minimis aid within the 
current financial year or the previous two financial years. The De Minimis 
Regulations 1407/2013 (as published in the Official Journal of the European Union 
L352 24.12.2013) are available at http://eur-
ex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=OJ:L:2013:352:0001:0008:EN:PDF. 

Please list all previously received De Minimis aid below, including the total amount of 
this and any other discretionary rate relief you are being granted.

Amount of De 
Minimis aid

Date of aid Organisation 
providing aid 

Nature of aid 

€ 1 April 2014 – 31 
March 2015 

Local authorities (for 
the Retail Relief total 
you do not need to 
specify the names of 
individual 
authorities) 

Retail Relief 

€ 1 April 2015 – 31 
March 2016 

Retail Relief

I confirm that I am authorised to sign on behalf of:

___________________________________________________ (name of business); 

and shall not exceed its De Minimis threshold by accepting this Retail Relief. 

SIGNATURE: ____________________________________ DATE: _____________

NAME: ______________________________________________

POSITION: ___________________________________________

ADDRESS: _________________________________________________________

Page 90



rochdale.gov.uk 16

 

REFUSAL OF DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF FORM

Name and address of 
premises 

Business rates account 
number 

Amount of Relief 

I confirm that I wish to refuse discretionary rate relief in relation to the above 
premises. 

I confirm that I am authorised to sign on behalf of:

______________________________________________________ (name of business)

SIGNATURE: ____________________________________ DATE: _____________

NAME: ______________________________________________

POSITION: ___________________________________________

ADDRESS: 
___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

Page 91



1

APPENDIX A

Equality Impact Assessment

 

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below.

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below

√

Service:

Finance

Section: 

Revenues & Benefits

Responsible Officer:

The lead officer for the Policy and EIA is 
David Wilcox, Director of Resources; 
supported by Keith MacKenzie, Head of 
Revenues & Benefits.

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed:

Non Domestic Rates: Discretionary Relief Policy

Date of Assessment: 29th June 2017

Officers Involved: Keith Mackenzie, Tracey Bland and Victoria Bradshaw

1. What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed?

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project)

The report being assessed relates to changes to some of the reliefs/discounts available for business rates.

The powers for granting discretionary rate relief by Councils is provided in Sections 44a, 47 and 49 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 which was amended by the Localism Act 2011 to incorporate wider 
powers to grant relief under local discretion. The role of local authorities in the business rate system in the 
past has been to administer the system prescribed by Central Government. There has been very limited 
flexibility within the system for local authorities to support businesses, despite the variations in economic 
conditions across and within local authority boundaries. The amended Section 47 of the Act allows local 
authorities to introduce local business rate discounts to enable local authorities to have the flexibility to 

Page 92



2

respond to local conditions. 

The report recommends the introduction of 

 small business transitional relief 
 support for pubs.
 The local discretionary support scheme for those businesses facing hardship as a result of increases 

in bills due to the revaluation.

as set out in the Government’s Spring Budget 2017.

2. Who are the key stakeholders?

Central Government

Rochdale Borough Council

Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Authority

Greater Manchester Business Rate Pool

Non-domestic property owners/landlords or occupiers in Rochdale Borough

Rochdale Borough Council officers 

Business forums in Rochdale Borough

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 
assessment.  

The scope of the report relates only to non-domestic rate reliefs to be granted to businesses as determined 
by Government in various Autumn Statements and various meetings of Cabinet, to be delivered by local 
authorities under sections 44a, 47 and 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.

4. Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet?

The Council is required to have a Non-Domestic Rates Discretionary Relief Policy to award discretionary 
business rates relief as determined by the Government as part of the national initiatives and Cabinet as part 
of local initiatives to stimulate economic growth by supporting local non-profit making bodies and sports 
clubs, local charities, small businesses and to bring back into use specific empty properties.

These amendments determined in the Spring Budget 2017 are specifically to target local businesses who 
are experiencing significant increases in business rates as a result of the revaluation of business rates 
hereditaments from the 1st April 2017.

5. Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

The Government has determined the criteria to be used in determining when their reliefs are to be awarded, 
to which business properties, to what value and length of award. 

Page 93



3

A needs analysis has been undertaken by Rochdale Borough Council in relation to the discretionary relief 
funding scheme which has highlighted that businesses with an increase above 5% between the business 
rates bill at the 1st April 2016 and the 1st April 2017 should be considered for a discretionary award of relief 
due to the impact that the revaluation is having on their businesses rates bills in 2017/18, the details of the 
needs analysis is provided in the report.

6. Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project?

Non-domestic property owners/landlords or occupiers in Rochdale Borough.

7. Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 
who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.

The Government undertook consultation directly with businesses and public bodies on the amendments to 
the business rates reliefs set out in the Spring Budget 2017 between the 9th March 2017 and the 7th April 
2017. The guidance subsequently issued reflected the feedback from this consultation.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18th July 2017 will review the recommendations and revised 
Policy for 2017/18 and provide feedback to Cabinet on the 25th July as part of the decision making for the 
amendments to the Policy.

8. What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  
What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

The data provided in the report has been extracted from :

 the Authority’s Business Rates billing system, 

 Sections 44a, 47 and 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, 

 Localism Act 2011

 Spring Budget 2017 and associated guidelines from DCLG

9. Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 
include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available.

2/2017: Spring Budget – support for business - GOV.UK

4/2017: Spring Budget update - GOV.UK

10. What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 
includes both positive and potentially negative impacts.

The discretionary relief provided to retail premises will be based on individual merits and the Council will 
refuse the award where it is considered that the business/retail property is not supporting the Council’s 
wider objectives or determined to be having a detrimental impact on neighbourhoods and communities. One 

Page 94

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/22017-spring-budget-support-for-business
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/42017-spring-budget-update


4

of the Council’s wider objectives is to ensure that it complies with the public sector duties and therefore any 
retail business which is contravening the Equality Act 2010 will not be granted an award. In view of this it is 
not anticipated that there will be any adverse impact upon the protected groups and it is anticipated that 
there may be positive benefits for neighbourhoods and communities.

The additional reliefs will provide financial support to a range of local businesses who have been adversely 
affected by the revaluation of business rates from 2017/18. This may have a positive  impact upon the 
protected groups listed below, but this is a national change by Government and will be applied equally to all 
businesses that currently receive this relief.

Race Equality 

Disabled People

Carers

Gender

Age

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel

Sexual Orientation

Gender Reassignment

Religion or Belief

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave

Marriage or Civil Partnership

Page 95



5

11. What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

The Policy provides financial assistance for local businesses, allows economic growth and supports the 
wider community. Other benefits would include:

 Will encourage new investment and jobs
 Encouragse new business start-ups/entrepreneurship
 Improved employment opportunities
 Support Rochdale town centre, particularly during the period of construction around the River re-

opening.

The Council has the discretion to allow business rate payers to pay their bills in 12 monthly instalaments 
instead of the statutory 10. Prior to the 2017/18 bills being issued, a letter will be sent to all affected 
businesses to advise them about the charge and offer them the opportunity to pay in 12 monthly instalments 
to spread the burden of the increased rates.

12. What are your recommendations?

The main recommendations contained in the report are to note and approve the amended discretionary rate 
relief policy. 

The report recommends the introduction of 

 small business transitional relief 
 support for pubs.
 The local discretionary support scheme for those businesses facing hardship as a result of increases 

in bills due to the revaluation.

as set out in the Government’s Spring Budget 2017.

13. What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 
action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions.

This policy will be reviewed periodically, taking into account Council policies and priorities and any changes 
in legislation.

Signed (Completing Officer): Tracey Bland Date: 3rd July 2017

Signed (Head of Service): Keith MacKenzie Date: 3rd July 2017

Page 96



6

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 2017/18

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion

Resource 
Implications

Lead Officer

Issue letters to affected 
businesses raising 
awareness of the relief

This policy will be 
reviewed periodically, 
taking into account 
Council policies and 
priorities and any changes 
in legislation. 

31st August 2017

31 December 2017

Keith Mackenzie

Keith Mackenzie

P
age 97



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny

Date of Meeting 18th July 2017
Portfolio Corporate & Resources
Report Author Victoria Bradshaw
Public/Private Document Public

Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 Guidelines, Timetable and Public Engagement

Executive Summary

1. To recommend the budget guidelines, timetable and method of public 
engagement to be used in preparing the detailed 2018/19 budget and 
provisional budgets for 2019/20 and 2019/21.

Recommendation

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

2.2

2.3

Members are requested to consider and comment on the following:

The proposed budget timetable detailed at Appendix 1.

The revenue assumptions detailed in paragraph 4.2 to be incorporated into 
the budget setting process.

The revenue and capital budget principles referred to in paragraph 4.4. 

The proposed methods of public engagement outlined in paragraph 4.5 as 
part of the 2018/19 budget setting process.

Members are asked to note the Budget Challenge sessions to be undertaken 
as part of the 2018/19 budget setting process.

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny are requested to consider the report 
further to its approval by Cabinet on 27th June 2017

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Under the Budget & Policy Framework Cabinet is required to approve the 
proposed guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement for setting 
the 2018/19 Budget and Provisional Budgets for 2019/20 and 2020/21by 
September each year.

Page 98

Agenda Item 11



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

Timetable

The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March 
each year. This is a statutory requirement. The process begins in June with 
approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the 
budget is to be based. These will be used as a part of the determination of 
the overall budget position.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
for the Government Funding Settlement and other known changes, including 
local decisions. The updated budget and feedback from consultations are 
reported back to Cabinet in February with recommendations for Budget 
Council, who will in turn set the budget.

Services are notified of their resource allocations following Budget Council in 
February. The full budget timetable is detailed at Appendix 1

Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2018/19 – 2020/21

As part of the budget setting process the Council makes a number of 
assumptions in respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue budget.  
Appendix 2 provides a summary of these assumptions for 2018/19, 2019/20 
and 2020/21. Future reports will make Cabinet aware of any changes that 
impact on the current budget assumptions. These are outlined below.

Local Government Finance Settlement
As part of the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement the 
Government offered any council that wished to take it up a four-year funding 
settlement to 2019/20. The Council agreed to accept the offer, and the 
funding was confirmed in the 2017/18 Local Government Finance 
Settlement. For Rochdale the four-year settlement covered the level of 
Revenue Support Grant.

Central Government has also announced that Revenue Support Grant will 
be phased out and that councils will retain 100% of business rates 
generated nationally. Rochdale is part of the Greater Manchester 100% 
Business Rates Retention Pilot Scheme, and as such will not receive 
Revenue Support Grant directly. Instead the levels of Revenue Support 
Grant contained in the four-year settlement are built into the revised 
calculation of Business Rates Top-up Grant under the 100% Business Rates 
Retention Pilot Scheme (see section 4.2.3). 

Council Tax Increases - Assumptions 2018/19 – 2020/21
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is to maximise income 
generated locally and therefore, assumes, for planning purposes, an 
increase in Council Tax of 1.99% for each year 2018/19 to 2020/21 in line 

Page 99



4.2.3

4.2.4

with current referendum limits.

The 2017/18 Local Government Finance Settlement offered the flexibility to 
charge an Adult Social Care Precept of up to an additional 3% on council tax 
for the next 2 years. If a council applies a 3% precept in 2017/18 and 
2018/19, they cannot apply an increase for the Adult Social Care Precept in 
2019/20, in order to maintain a 6% precept across the 3 years. A 3% precept 
was approved for 2017/18. The budget  assumes a 3% precept in 2018/19 
and no additional precept in 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Any variation in the level of Council Tax increase approved will have an 
impact on the forecast budget position.

Council Tax Base
Our Council Tax base is currently 53,025, representing  the number of Band 
D equivalent properties that we collect Council Tax from.  The Council Tax 
base will be reviewed and formally considered by Cabinet in January of each 
year. The level of Council Tax Base is a key component in the calculation of 
resources available to the Council.

Business Rates
Central Government has announced that Revenue Support Grant will be 
phased out and that councils will retain 100% of business rates generated 
locally. The Local Government Settlement 2017/18 included the introduction 
of the 100% retention of Business Rates for identified regional pilot 
authorities, including Greater Manchester. 

The pilot authorities will each retain 100% of locally-raised business rates. In 
return Greater Manchester will forgo Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the 
Public Health Grant. Authorities’ tariffs and top-ups will be adjusted to 
ensure that these changes are cost neutral to individual authorities. The 
pilots will also test a number of potential elements of the 100% business 
rates retention scheme, including revised safety net arrangements. 

The pilots will be without detriment to the resources that would have been 
available to individual authorities under the current local government finance 
regime (with any “detriment” payments funded from outside the Settlement). 
The budget assumes that the GM Pilot will continue in 2018/19 and 2019/20, 
prior to the introduction of 100% Business Rates Retention from 2020/21.

The budget assumes, for planning purposes, an incease in the level of 
business rates income received of 3.2% in 2018/19, 3.6% in 2019/20, and 
2% in 2020/21. The business rates increases are based on the assumed 
RPI at September over the next four years, as per the 2017/18 Local 
Government Finance Settlement.

Pay Inflation
The budget assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 1% 
per annum for 2018/19 to 2020/21. The Government has implemented a 1% 
pay settlement for most local government staff for both 2016/17 and 
2017/18. Any settlement above 1% will increase the expenditure 

Page 100



4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

4.2.10

requirement for 2018/19 to 2020/21. Every change of 0.5% equates to 
approximately £400k. 

The salary budget includes assumptions for planning purposes for the rise in 
the Rochdale Living Wage for 2018/19 to 2020/21, maintaining the Council’s 
current pay above the level of the National Living Wage through to 2020/21.

Superannuation Rates
The employer superannuation contribution rate is assumed not to increase 
during 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21. This is based on the advice by 
Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF). Detailed work has been 
undertaken with GMPF and the proposal is to amend the contribution rates 
to 20.5%, and to reduce the level of the early retirement and redundancy 
provision provided by the GMPF to reflect our current forecast level of early 
retirement and redundancy costs. 

Price Inflation
The budget assumes 0% inflation across the majority of the Council’s non-
pay expenditure budgets including grants that the Council provides. 
Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be 
considered on a case by case basis. 

Discretionary Fees and Charges
Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. For 2018/19 to 2020/21 
the amount of increase assumed for planning purposes is recommended to 
be 2% per annum. 

Waste Disposal Levy
The waste disposal levy is calculated by a formula across Greater 
Manchester which takes account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough 
did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities there 
would be an impact on the waste disposal levy charged to the Council thus 
leading to an increased cost to the Council’s budget.
The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the budget is based on the latest 
projections provided by GM Waste Disposal Authority (GMWDA).

Planned contract changes will now take place from 2019/20 rather than 
2018/19 as previously anticipated, meaning that the GMWDA levy for 
2018/19 is estimated to increase by 12.2%. The levy is estimated to 
decrease by 9.9% in 2019/20 and 2.9% 2020/21 as savings are realised. 

Passenger Transport Levy
The budget assumes a 0% increase in the Passenger Transport Levy for 
2018/19 to 2020/21. The Passenger Transport Levy will be subject to 
consideration/agreement as a consequence of the Passenger Transport 
Authority’s budget setting process in 2018/19 and subsequent years.

Improved Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund (BCF) brings together elements of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Local Authority budgets into a pooled 

Page 101



4.2.11

4.3

arrangement. This is to encompass integrated commissioning which will 
support the transformation and integration of health and social care services. 

The national Improved Better Care Fund allocations of £825m in 2018/19 
and £1.5bn in 2019/20, confirmed in the 2017/18 Local Government Finance 
Settlement, assumed that councils will increase Council Tax for the Adult 
Social Care precept. The allocation methodology uses the 2013 social care 
relative needs formula and allocates funding against resources available. 

 
Rochdale’s allocation is £5.361m in 2018/19 and £9.240m in 2019/20. 

In the March 2017 Budget the Government announced an additional £2bn to 
help local authorities provide high quality social care to more people and to 
ease the pressure on the NHS. The £2bn is to be paid over 3 years, £1bn in 
2017/18, £0.674bn in 2018/19 and £0.337bn in 2019/20. The funds are to be 
built into the original Improved Better Care Fund, with local authorities 
working closely with NHS colleagues to consider how the funds can be 
spent effectively. 

Rochdale’s allocation is £3.169m for 2018/19 and £1.568m for 2019/20. 

Improved Better Care Fund

2018/19 2019/20
£m £m

Initial allocation per 2017/18 Local 
Government Finance Settlement

5.361 9.240

Additional funding for adult social care 
announced at Budget 2017

3.169 1.568

Total Improved Better Care Fund 8.530 10.808

No information has been provided on grant allocations for 2020/21. The 
budget assumes the same funding levels as 2019/20 for planning purposes.

New Homes Bonus

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) Scheme is designed to provide incentives 
and rewards for Local Authorities who have a net increase in housing stock 
and have brought empty properties back into use in their areas. From 
2018/19 the number of years the NHB is paid for is 4 years. Growth in 
housing stock will only be rewarded above a baseline of 0.4% of opening 
housing stock.

The assumed level of New Homes Bonus grant is based on a net growth in 
total housing stock of 450 properties per annum and a decrease in the 
number of long-term empty properties of 68 per annum. This will generate 
NHB grant of £300k per annum.

Capital

Page 102



4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

4.5

4.5.1

4.5.2

A review of the capital programme is currently being undertaken. This review 
will provide a three year capital programme for 2018/19 to 2020/21 taking 
into consideration the estimated reduction in capital resources and the 
limited revenue funding available for Capital Schemes in these years. 

Aims of the Capital Programme
The Capital Programme aims to:

- Deliver investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide 
priorities, including economic benefit to the Borough and bring in 
additional resources;

- Deliver investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings;
- Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets;
- Support Devolution;
- Meet Statutory provision;
- Provide Value for Money.

A report to Cabinet in September will recommend a Capital Programme for 
2018/19 to 2020/21 for consideration. This will then be included as part of 
the 2018/19 budget consultation.

Budget Principles

Detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant staff to ensure that revenue 
budgets for individual services are prepared consistently. These guidelines 
contain details of the assumptions that are to be made in setting the revenue 
budget and also set out broad principles that are to be adhered to. The 
principles that are proposed for inclusion in the budget guidelines for 
2018/19 to 2020/21 are provided at Appendix 3.

The Capital Principles have been developed to enable focus on the purpose 
of the Capital Programme and to seek agreement for the use of limited 
resources. The principles for the Capital Programme are provided at 
Appendix 4.

Public Engagement

The Council is intending to undertake a Public Engagement initiative during 
Summer and Autumn 2017, involving residents, businesses and other 
stakeholders prior to consultation on the budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 and 
savings proposals.

As in previous years the initiative is intended to:

- raise awareness of the services that the Council currently delivers;

- raise awareness of the Council’s current budget position, both 
resources and expenditure;

- explain the future challenges as a result of funding reductions, 
increased demand for services and other pressures, and the difficult 
decisions we have to make;

Page 103



4.5.3

4.5.4

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.7

- highlight the part that residents and businesses can play in the future 
of Rochdale and in helping to reduce costs;

- highlight the need for the Council and residents/businesses to work 
together;

- undertake a general conversation with stakeholders on their opinions 
and thoughts on the above.

Wherever possible the intention will be to work alongside other engagement 
initiatives to raise awareness of the budget challenges, to seek views and 
also highlight how residents can help.

Public Engagement for the Budget 2018/19 is suggested to be undertaken 
as a three stage process:

A)  General Budget Conversation during July – September by :

 Prezi animation (animated digital presentation).
 Online questionnaire 
 Social media campaign to direct the public to the website and a 1 

minute version of the Prezi.
 Staff engagement via intranet content and briefings.
 Printed questionnaire to work with targeted group of residents who 

are unlikely to engage via the Council’s website. 
 Link into Directorate events to promote the Budget Conversation.

B)  Formal consultation of the Budget 2018/19 and savings proposals during 
September 2017 – January 2018.

C)  March 2018 – provide feedback online as to the engagement process 
and what is happening as a result of the resident participation in the Budget 
process.

Budget Challenge Sessions

As part of the budget process Budget Challenge Sessions will be held for 
each Committee Portfolio Area. 

The aim of the sessions is:

 For Directors to provide service information to enable Members to 
scrutinise spend and service priorities;

 To enable a challenge process to be undertaken on budgets; 
 To review options for savings over the next three years to meet the 

budget gap in 2018/19 – 2020/21.

Alternatives Considered

Page 104



4.7.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

Risk Implications 

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of 
these assumptions will not be received/ finalised until November/December 
this year.  There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to 
the projections contained in this report have been identified. 

The most significant of these are:-

 Monitoring of the 2017/18 budget will provide Cabinet with regular 
updates on any pressures/savings for the Council. Any associated on 
going implications will be incorporated into the budget projections for 
2018/19 and future years.

 Savings – the level of savings required for 2018/19, 2019/20 and 
2020/21 is currently being considered. There is a risk to the overall 
budget of the non-achievement of these savings due to the 
identification and/or implementation of the proposals. A three year 
budget is to be set in February 2018 which provides time to implement 
the level of savings required to balance the budget over the period 
2018/19 to 2020/21.

 Specific Grants and Contributions – the number and amount of 
specific grants received by the Council may be lower/higher than 
anticipated. If a grant increases, a process has been introduced to 
review all additional income received and the decision is made 
whether the resource is allocated to that area. If a grant decreases, 
Cabinet will consider the financial implications on the Council services 
provided.

 Council Tax – Central Government provides a cap on the amount of 
Council Tax increase a Local Authority could make before a 
referendum of the local residents was required.  The budget assumes 
a 4.99% increase in 2018/19 comprising a 1.99% increase for general 
purposes and a 3% increase in respect of the adult care precept, and 
a 1.99% increase in both 2019/20 and 2020/21, comprising a 1.99% 

Page 105



6.2

6.2.1

increase for general purposes and a 0% increase in respect of the 
adult care precept. These percentage increases are included for 
planning purposes only, and will be reviewed by Cabinet leading up to 
a recommendation at Budget Council for each year. 

 Council Services - the impact of the economic climate on the residents 
of Rochdale Borough and the increased demand this may lead to for 
Council services could impact on cost of services, as could general 
demographic changes.

 Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooling budgets 
with the Clinical Commissioning Group within a pooled Budget. The 
financial risk is that the investment in health and social care services 
does not deliver the benefits assumed. These benefits are required 
not only to fund interventions to invest to save in the long term but 
also to contribute towards closing the  budget gaps of all partners 
delivering health and social care services.

 Public Health – impact of the reduction in Public Health funding.

 Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a 
formula across Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling 
levels. Should Rochdale Borough not increase recycling at the same 
level as other GM Authorities this will impact on the levy, and would 
lead to an increased cost to the Council’s budget.

 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used 
by the Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget 
projections. 

 Fees and charges income – impact of any economic slowdown on 
levels of usage of charged for Council services could lead to income 
levels not being achieved.

 Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications 
of the economic slowdown on the level of dividends/interest received 
by the Council.

 Academies – the impact of the Government’s policies regarding the 
conversion of schools to Academies on the Council’s budget.

Legal Implications

The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure; 
an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the difference 
between the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be sufficient to 
meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced budget. The 
amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with adequate 
financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 

Page 106



unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax 
payers and non-domestic rate payers.  

Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11 March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council 
Tax.

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs'.
 
Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice. The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed by 
these regulations. 

There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic 
rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital 
expenditure) for each financial year.

Personnel Implications

The report outlines the proposed timetable for preparing the detailed 2018/19 
budget and this timetable includes the requirement to undertake formal 
workforce consultation with the staff and trade unions.   The consultation will 
be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s established formal staff 
consultation processes including meetings of the Joint Consultative Group 
and Service Consultative Groups. 

Equalities Impacts 

Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment
Workforce equality impact assessments will be provided with any savings 
proposals and an overall workforce equality impact assessment on the 
budget will be presented to facilitate final decision making.

Equality/Community Impact Assessments
Equality Impact assessments will be provided with any savings proposals 
and an overall equality impact assessment on the budget will be presented to 
facilitate final decision making.

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

Consultation

7.1

7.2

Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget 
preparation process. The Council is intending to carry out a Public 
Engagement initiative during the Summer of 2017, involving residents, 
businesses and their representative bodies and other stakeholders.

Consultation with the Trade Unions via the JCC at Corporate level and via 

Page 107



SCGs at service level will be undertaken and the outcome of consultations 
will be considered by Cabinet.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 files Finance Services, N1Riverside 

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw
victoria.bradshaw@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925409

Page 108

mailto:victoria.bradshaw@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Budget Timetable 2018/19 to 2020/21 

Date Meeting/Event Budget Guidelines and Timetable/Public Engagement

2017
June Cabinet 27th June Budget Guidelines and Timetable/Public Engagement
September Budget Cabinet 14th September 1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19

2. Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2020/21   }
3. Revenue Budget 2018/19 - 2020/21         } For Consultation
4. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20   }                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
5. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23

November  Cabinet 28th November 1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19 - Post Consultation
2. Savings programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Post Consultation
3. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Pre Consultation 
workforce for service delivery proposals

December Council 13th December Approval of:
Council Tax base setting 2018/19
Business Rates baseline 2018/19

2018
January Budget Cabinet ( January) 1. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Post Consultation 

(Workforce proposals only)
2. Budget update 2018/19 - 2020/21 following Autumn 
Budget/Provisional Settlement

February Budget Cabinet (20th February)

February Budget Council (28th February)
March

1. Local Government Act 2013 - 
2. Budget 2018/19 including:
- Council Tax setting 2018/19
- Revenue Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
- Capital Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
-Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
- Pay Policy 2018/19
- Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23 (Review)

Statutory Deadline to set Budget 11th March

Page 109



APPENDIX 2

Budget Assumptions 2018/19 to 2020/21

Area of Budget 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Pay 1% Increase 1% Increase 1% Increase
Local Living Wage 4.7% Increase 5.1% Increase 5.4% Increase

20.5% 20.5% 20.5%
(0.0% Increase) (0.0% Increase) (0.0% Increase)

Prices* 0% 0% 0%

Discretionary Fees & Charges 2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase

Underlying Waste Disposal Levy 12.2% Increase 9.9% Decrease 2.9% Decrease

Underlying PTA Levy 0%   Increase 0%   Increase 0%   Increase

Council Tax

General Increase 1.99% Increase 1.99% Increase 1.99% Increase
Adult Care Precept 3% Increase 0% Increase 0% Increase
Total Council Tax 4.99% Increase 1.99% Increase 1.99% Increase

Business Rates
Business Rates income/Top-up Grant 3.2% Increase 3.6% Increase 2% Increase

Superannuation Contribution Rate

* Prices – Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be considered on a 
case by case basis. 

Page 110



APPENDIX 3

REVENUE BUDGET PRINCIPLES

1. Budget Preparation

1.1 Service estimates are required at service level for the years 2018/19 through 
to 2020/21.  The format of the service submissions, which are to be supported 
by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the Chief Financial 
Officer in consultation with Directors.

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued from 
time to time on local authority accounting practices and other related issues.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Existing Service Level Budgets

2.1 The budget will initially be prepared on the basis that current resources 
support existing service levels and with the exception of the schools budget 
should be varied to reflect:
(a) The full year effect of previous year’s savings proposals.
(b) Consequences of the approved capital programme.
(c) Adjustments in relation to specific ‘one year only’ allocations and other 

time expired funding.
(d) Other specific Council decisions.

2.2 Most education and related budgets are funded through a specific grant 
namely the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Separate systems and 
procedures relating to DSG funded budgets operate outside of the 
mainstream budget guidelines.  

2.3 Salary budgets are to be prepared with reference to the 2018/19 budget (net 
of any vacancy factor) adjusted for pay awards, approved service changes, 
savings and other approved variations. The salary budgets can only be used 
to employ staff in established posts on approved grades in line with the 
following conditions:

(a) All changes to the establishment where Council funding is available in full 
must be approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the Scheme 
of Delegation.

(b) All changes to the establishment where resource implications arise, even 
if the costs are met entirely from external funding, must also be approved 
by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the Scheme of Delegation.

(c) Posts funded from external sources must be established as temporary or 
specific purpose posts unless it can be demonstrated that:
 the external funding is permanent, or
 specific approval has been given, or
 future years’ costs can be contained within current budgets.

Page 111



(d) Directors must balance service requirements against the need to manage 
within their budgets when taking decisions to fill vacant posts or employ 
temporary staff.

3                     Discretionary Fees and Charges

3.1 Fees and charges must be reviewed on an annual basis.  A report will be 
submitted to Cabinet in September each year on proposals for the following 
year. 

3.2 Fees and charges are to be varied to achieve an overall annual increase in 
income for each Service in line with the level approved by Cabinet. Increases 
can be implemented at any time subject to the overall financial target being 
achieved.  

3.3 If the target cannot be achieved by increasing fees and charges then 
alternative savings must be identified.  Claims by Directors to exempt or apply 
a lesser increase to any part of their service must be justified in the context of 
their Service policies and plans and referred to Cabinet.

4. External Funding

4.1 Wherever possible external funding should be used to reduce pressure on 
current expenditure, thereby releasing resources for redirection into priority 
areas.

4.2 All legal, human resources, financial and administrative support costs 
required to manage grant conditions and fulfill the role of the accountable 
body should be charged, wherever possible, against the funding regime.

5. Consultation

5.1 Members will take account of consultations with stakeholders at appropriate 
stages throughout the budget preparation process. This will include 
Townships, Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Trade Unions, partners and 
the public.

Page 112



APPENDIX 4 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME PRINCIPLES

1. Capital Programme Preparation

1.1 The Capital Programme is compiled at project level for the years 2018/19 
through to 2020/21.  The format of the capital schemes submissions, which 
are to be supported by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the 
Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Directors. 

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued from 
time to time on local authority accounting practices and other related issues. 
The profiling of capital expenditure into the correct financial years and over 
the projects development will be key to ensure the amount of re phasing of 
capital resources from one year to another is kept to a minimum, and to 
reduce the amount of revenue budget required to finance the project.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Principles for the Capital Programme

2.1 Capital Resources are to be used as follows:

 Decisions on the use of Capital Receipts will be considered as part of the 
budget process.

 Un-ring fenced and ring fenced externally funded grants are considered 
on a case by case basis.

 Any new borrowing is considered with the implications for the revenue 
budget position.

2.2 Capital projects for approval are:

 Considered by Portfolio Holders for the service who agree to the services 
requests for funding.

 Completed to ensure all implications of the Capital Scheme are included 
in the ‘Business Cases’.

 Inclusive of Multi Year Schemes with the spend profiled accurately across 
the financial years.

Page 113



Report to Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 18 July 2017
Portfolio Planning & Development
Report Author Peter Gregory
Public/Private Document Public

Asset Strategy 2016-2019– Progress Report 2016/17

Executive Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the progress made during 
2016/17 to implement the Council’s Asset Strategy 2016/19.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

It is recommended that the progress in the implementation of the Asset 
Strategy Action Plan and the results against Key Performance Indicators are 
noted.

It is recommended that it be noted that the Asset Strategy is currently 
undergoing its first review, with the expectation that amendments will be 
approved by the Portfolio Holder before the end of June 2017. A copy of the 
updated strategy will be forwarded to members of the Corporate Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee when the review has been completed.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The report is provided for information purposes.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The Council’s Asset Strategy 2016/19 was approved by Cabinet on 06 June 
2016.

4.2 The Asset Strategy contains a range of actions and performance indicators 
that are designed to improve the performance of the Council’s property 
portfolio, the performance of the Council’s property teams and the overall 
approach to property management in the Council. 

4.3 Responsibility for the implementation of the Action Plan sits with the 
Strategic Asset Management Group.

Page 114

Agenda Item 13



4.4 The Action Plan was designed to be challenging in order that the property 
teams would be stretched to achieve 100% compliance. It is attached as the 
Appendix to this report and contains an assessment of the progress against 
each part of the plan as things stood on 31 March 2017.

4.5 This report demonstrates that during the course of 2016/17 the Council’s 
property portfolio and its management functions have improved and 
developed. Members are referred to the Appendix for detailed information on 
achievements to date, as well as some comments where progress has not 
been as successful as intended and on future proposals and intentions. 
However, the following is a selection of some of the highlights of the 
progress report:

4.5.1 Commercial Investment and Asset Development Funds. The 
Council has made available significant funds to invest into portfolio 
improvements and invest-to-save. This investment provides a 
foundation for improving the investment value of the Council’s estate 
and for transforming its ability to contribute to service delivery. 

4.5.2 Rochdale Town Centre. The Riverside retail development, the Town 
Hall and the market are important strands within the Strategy. 

4.5.3 Investment Portfolio. The Council is working towards making its 
investment portfolio worthy of the name:
 It is in the middle of a review of the portfolio, informed by a 

challenging report commissioned from industry experts; 
 It has embarked upon the development of seven new small 

industrial units to support the Council objective to provide forty over 
a four year period (the first new units it has built since 1989). Plans 
for further similar developments are being drawn up.

 It will enhance the overall quality and financial yield of the portfolio 
using the Funds referred to in paragraph 3.5.1

4.5.4 Property Data Improvements. The Council continues to improve the 
quality of its property data and is now on the final leg to finally 
document each one of its property assets.

4.5.5 Allotments and Community Gardens. The Council is progressing 
well with its objective of creating 100 new allotments across the 
borough, and has successfully transferred land into community 
ownership for gardening and/or environmental schemes. The Council 
has given in-principle approval to the Council first community asset 
transfer of a municipal park.

4.5.6 Community Centres. The Council is currently investing £250k per 
annum from the AMG budget for essential repairs to its leased out 
community centres to provide those centres with improved life 
expectancy and the ability to operate free from significant liabilities.

3.5.6 Disposals – In 2016/17 the Council disposed of 18 assets in return 
for capital receipts of £1,676,501. Members should note the ongoing 

Page 115



trend with the disposal programme, notably that the average value of 
the assets disposed is decreasing, with more assets needing to be 
disposed of to achieve the same level of capital receipts. That said, 
the disposal programme in 2017/18 is set to buck that trend with a 
number of significant disposals coming through, but from 2018/19 will 
return to the prevailing trend.

4.5.7 Asset Rationalisation – the Council has had significant past 
successes with regard to its asset rationalisation programmes, notably 
the sale of 33 assets to support the construction of Number One 
Riverside. However, during 2016/17 it has proved impossible to meet 
the corporate targets for savings from buildings, which suggests that 
the Council is now close to its optimum portfolio of operational 
buildings. 

4.5.8 Other notable performance improvements during 2016/17 include:
 The occupancy rates of the managed workspace have increased 

from 44% to 61%% (by number of available units), expected to 
increase further during the first two months of 2017/18.

 Six business tenants in managed workspace or industrial units 
have either taken additional space due to business expansion or 
have vacated Council property due to the need for additional 
space.

4.6

Alternatives Considered

None. The Director of Economy has undertaken to report annually to 
Members on the progress of the Asset Strategy.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The report itself has no direct financial implications. However, the Council’s 
Asset Strategy is influenced by and contributes to the Council’s overall 
ongoing financial position.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

The successful implementation of the Council’s Asset Strategy contributes to:
 The objectives within the Council’s Corporate Plan
 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, in particular by 

providing capital and revenue funds to support Council Services 
and savings proposals.

 Council Services by implementing continual improvements to 
operational properties.

 Fulfilling Council obligations to the voluntary sector in accordance 
with the Borough of Rochdale Compact. 

This report has no direct risk implications. However, it should be noted that 
the ownership of land and property carries an inherent risk from liabilities 
such as investment, physical damage, health and safety of building users. 
One of the purposes of the Asset Strategy is to establish an approach to the 

Page 116



management of property that contributes to the management of the risk.

Consultation

The Comments of the Acting Director of Resources

7.1 The report itself has no direct legal implications. However, the Council’s 
Asset Strategy is influenced by the legal framework within which the Council 
operates and the implementation of the Asset strategy requires continual 
work on legal transactions.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

For Further Information Contact:

Page 117



APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS AGAINST ACTION PLAN

Targets achieved and/or action completed

On target, proceeding as expected or without cause for 
concern

Action abandoned or cause for concern that target may not 
be achieved/risks for the Council

 

No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Portfolio Scrutiny

Governance

A Ensure effective communication between 
Property teams and Council Services and to 
maintain a corporate overview of progress of the 
Asset Strategy objectives and achievements by 
presenting to the Council’s Corporate Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee and to Directorate SMTs 
on an annual basis

30 April 2017
30 April 2018
31 March 2019

Presentations completed Senior Property Manager completed visits to directorate 
SMTs in July and August 2016. To be repeated in 
spring/summer 2017.
Report to O&S committee due 13 June 2017

B Ensure the correct balance of efficiency with 
transparency by reviewing the Scheme of 
Delegation for land and property

31 September 2016 Improvements 
implemented or, if no 
changes, outcome of the 
review minuted at Strategic 
Asset Management Group

A revised scheme of delegation has been drafted, and 
will be presented to Strategic Asset Management Group 
early in 2017/18.

C Ensure best practice in the management of its 
assets by revisiting the Internal Audit of Asset 
Management to consider the implementation of 
recommendations not yet actioned 

31 December 2016 Recommendations 
implemented or, if no 
changes, outcome of the 
review minuted at Strategic 
Asset Management Group

7/11 recommendations have been completed.
The remaining four recommendations are:

 Revision of the Scheme of delegation to 
Members and Officers (see Item B, above)

 Recognition of the formal role of Corporate 
Property Officer

 Inclusion in committee reports of a section on 
asset implications

The latter two actions are due to be discussed by the 
Strategic Asset Management Group

P
age 118



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

D Ensure best practice in the management of its 
assets by reviewing the structure, roles and 
responsibilities of its property teams and forums 
and the various sources of funding available for 
property management and investment.

31 October 2016 To minute the outcome of 
an annual review at 
Strategic Asset 
Management Group and to 
implement authorised 
changes.

2016/17 has seen significant changes of emphasis and 
priority for the property management teams, which have 
resulted in changes of procedure across services.
Significant changes have included:

 Introduction of the Commercial Investment and 
Asset Development Funds.

 Fundamental review of the management of the 
investment portfolio.

 Cross-cutting issues are being tackled and 
improved at Operational Asset Management 
Group, such as condition surveys, management 
and use of the AMG budget, statutory 
compliance

Building a Sustainable Portfolio

E Identify priorities for investment and to inform 
property performance by maintaining a five year 
rolling programme of condition surveys for all 
building assets

Continual A condition survey exists 
for each building asset, 
which is no more than five 
years old.

A review of the current condition survey data is underway 
which will highlight the level of condition data required per 
asset. Discussions are proceeding under OAM auspices 
on the objectives, frequency and content of condition 
surveys, on how the available budget can be utilised to 
maximum effect and on the accuracy of the maintenance 
backlog data.

F Inform building performance by maintaining a 
three yearly programme of suitability surveys for 
all building assets

30 September 2017 A suitability survey exists 
for each building asset, 
which is no more than 
three years old.

Programme planned for summer 2017

G Inform building performance by maintaining 
effective and accurate records on the utilisation 
of each Council building

Continual Up to date and accurate 
utilisation data exists for 
each asset

A utilisation summary exists and is kept up to date to 
inform the asset rationalisation process.
The utilisation figures for Number One Riverside are now 
contained within a database managed by the Director of 
Neighbourhoods
In respect of other buildings data is difficult to keep up to 
date due to constant changes in utilisation levels. E&A 
considering how this might be kept up to date as routine.

P
age 119



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

H Safeguard the safety of its staff, customers and 
other building users by maintaining full statutory 
compliance in respect of the Council’s 
responsibilities for property maintenance

Continual No health and safety 
incidents occur where the 
Council’s failure to 
maintain a satisfactory 
compliance regime is a 
contributory factor

Internal Audit has scoped the terms of an audit of 
statutory compliance, which is expected to begin during 
the first quarter of 2017/18.
There are no records of any individuals coming to harm in 
2016/17 as a result of failure to maintain a satisfactory 
statutory compliance regime.

I Build a sustainable portfolio to support Services’ 
property needs, to improve Place and to bring 
forward growth projects by supporting the 
acquisition of property assets by agreement and 
compulsory purchase as appropriate.

Continual Acquisitions completed, 
with business case and 
anticipated outcomes 
recorded.

The Council has completed the purchase of the former 
Santander Bank premises on The Butts in order to 
provide operational accommodation for the permanent 
market site. The Council also accepted a surrender of the 
lease to Back o’th’ Moss Community Centre and now 
delivers its services as an operational asset.
The Council’s Strategic Housing Service routinely 
acquires by agreement vacant residential properties in 
order to alleviate nuisance within the community and to 
bring properties back into beneficial use and occupation 
in conjunction with social landlord partners. Three such 
acquisitions were completed in 2016/17.
Compulsory acquisitions of three sites were completed 
during the year to register formal Council title to land in 
the East Central Rochdale area.

Asset Rationalisation

J Maintain a prioritised schedule of building 
performance and to continually align this with 
Service objectives in order to challenge asset 
retention

Continual Annual consideration by 
Leadership Team and by 
Members as required.

A performance summary exists and is kept up to date to 
inform the asset rationalisation process
Data is difficult to keep up to date due to constant 
changes of e.g. running costs, energy usage etc. E&A 
considering how this might be kept up to date as routine.
It is worth noting, however, that realisable rationalisation 
opportunities are usually the consequence of service 
realignment or are opportunistic. Few properties are 
closed due to building performance issues.

K Ensure that ICT and HR functions are fully 
engaged in and contributing to the Asset 
Strategy objectives

Continual ICT innovation and new 
ways of working have 
contributed to the more 
effective use of assets.

The Council is aiming to improve the utilisation levels, 
and therefore the financial efficiency of Number One 
Riverside during 2017/18. Significant results will only be 
achieved through alignment with ICT and HR strategies 
and policies. 

P
age 120



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Effective Property Data

L Complete the requirements of the Corporate 
Property Information Strategy by mapping each 
asset and creating a written record on Atrium

31 March 2019 All assets are mapped, 
with a complementary 
written record.

Work in progress since November 2016. c.400 “new” 
assets have been identified. Each new asset is being 
reviewed to understand its current use as well as 
potential value.

M Complete the implementation of the 
recommendations from the Internal Audit of 
Atrium

30 September 2016 Recommendations 
implemented or, if no 
actions, outcome of the 
review minuted at Strategic 
Asset Management Group

10 out of 12 recommendations have been actioned or, 
with Internal Audit approval, been deemed unnecessary. 
Remainder progressing towards completion.

N Keep the core property information systems up 
to date and accurate

Continual Key Performance 
Indicators to measure the 
efficiency by which the 
Council records changes to 
the property portfolio

Ongoing task. Performance statistics show continued 
compliance with performance standards

Positive changes to the 
baseline portfolio as at 01 
April 2016

In 2016/17:

 The number of operational Council buildings reduced 
by four as a result of 7 disposals/closures and 3 
acquisitions

 One property acquisition was completed to improve 
service provision

O Measure the impact of this strategy and the 
success of asset management activity by 
monitoring the changes in the portfolio and the 
portfolio’s contribution to wider Council 
objectives.

Continual

Progress against actions 
and Key Performance 
Indicators as set out in 
Sections 10 & 11.

To be reported to Corporate O&S Committee on 13 June 
2017

P Respond to statutory and agreed requirements 
from central government, Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority or other statutory body for 
property information uploads for the 
Transparency Agenda, e-PIMS or similar 
initiative.

Continual Successful response to all 
requests for data.

No external requests were received in 2016/17

P
age 121



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Workstream 1: Acquisitions, Investments and New 
Developments

1.1 Consider the need for and, if appropriate, 
produce and obtain formal Council approval for a 
formal Asset Investment Strategy

31 March 2017 Asset Investment Strategy 
in production or adopted by 
the Council

An Asset Investment Strategy has yet to be produced – 
the need for it remains under review.
In 2016/17 the Council has:
1. Set up an “Asset Development Fund” (ADF), 

specifically for the purpose of investing in assets with 
a view to realising value from them. The ADF was 
approved on 11 July 2016. 

2. Commissioned consultants Lambert Smith Hampton 
(LSH) to look at opportunities and challenges 
presented by the Council’s investment portfolio. Their 
report has produced a number of recommendations 
on changing the way the portfolio is managed. The 
recommendations are being worked through.

3. Established a “Commercial Investment Fund” (CIF), 
formally approved by Cabinet on 23 March 2017, 
making available capital over 3 years for the 
purposes of investing in property acquisitions in 
order to generate a financial return.

1.2 Complement the Asset Investment Strategy by 
producing and reviewing annually a schedule of 
sites and projects for acquisition and investment, 
understanding the options for funding and the 
intended outcomes.

Continual Prioritised schedule of 
acquisitions

The Delegated Decision-making Panel (04 Aug 2016) 
approved a programme of works for the Asset 
Development Fund.
A sub-committee of Cabinet will consider and approve 
acquisitions to be progressed through the Commercial 
Investment Fund.

P
age 122



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

1.3 Produce detailed business cases for high priority 
acquisition/investment projects

Continual Number and value of 
successful business cases.
Number and value of 
successful bids for capital 
programme monies

Asset Development Fund - Schemes have been 
approved for the building of additional units at Dodgson 
Street and for investing to clear the title at Ronald Gorton 
Centre. Additional schemes being considered include 
further developments at sites including Bradfearns, 
Oldham Road. 
Commercial Investment Fund – the Cabinet sub-
committee has yet to formally approve any acquisitions, 
but a number of potential investments are being actively 
considered.
The former Santander Bank at the Butts has been 
acquired for the new market.
Other strategic purchases in Rochdale Town Centre are 
also at an early stage of consideration

1.4 Examine the options available to the Council for 
investing to develop further industrial units to let

31 December 2016 Business case produced 
by 31 December 2016

A programme of sites to bring forward for the purpose 
has been identified and work to achieve potential 
developments is proceeding

1.5 Pursue the development of 40 additional small 
industrial units help to meet local demand from 
small and starter businesses

31 March 2019 The Council has made 
available, or has an 
achievable pipeline to 
make available 40 
additional industrial units 
suitable for small and 
starter businesses.

The Council has established a target of providing 40 
small industrial units in the next 3 years.
A contract has been authorised for the Council to self-
build a 7-unit extension to Dodgson Street Industrial 
Estate, funded by the Asset Development Fund. 
Additional sites for further developments are subject to 
feasibility analysis.

Workstream 2: Assets for Growth and Prosperity

2.1 Bring forward a pipeline of sites in the borough, 
privately owned and Council owned, that can be 
used to support regeneration and growth 
objectives.

Continual Hectares of new 
development land formally 
identified and approved 
through the planning 
process

The Assistant Director Planning & Development has 
brought forward a number of key sites for potential 
development under the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework. These are currently under consultation and 
together might provide across Greater Manchester:
3,452,000 sq m of industrial warehousing space
217,350 housing units 
2,399,000 sq m of offices

P
age 123



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Hectares of land sold that 
support designated 
regeneration projects.

1.43 hectares2.2 Effectively manage the programme for the future 
use of each asset for regeneration purposes (for 
both housing and employment sites), setting 
clear timescales and outcomes for each site, 
subject to regular review to ensure that the 
objectives remain relevant and achievable; 
determining the best use of each site in the best 
interests of the Council.

Continual

Hectares of land sold 
where sites no longer 
contribute to a defined 
regeneration project

0.03 hectares

2.3 Participate in the growth strategy and objectives 
of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority 

Continual The Council has achieved 
its contribution to the 
GMCA’s targets

The Council’s Core Strategy was adopted in 2016/17. 
The Core Strategy reflects the objectives set by GMCA 
for housing and employment land release. 
In 2016/17 the Council exceeded the GMCA target for the 
construction of housing units.

The area (hectares) of 
Council land sold or self-
developed with conditions 
for housing development.

Sold in 2016/17:

 George Street, Heywood – 2.61 ha
 Land at Mary Street, Heywood  - 1.23 ha

2.4 Use the Council’s assets to contribute towards 
development targets for housing and 
employment uses.

Continual

The area (hectares) of land 
sold with conditions or self-
developed for 
regeneration/employment 
uses.

Sold in 2016/17:

 Ann Street, Rochdale – 0.27 ha
 Providence House, Rochdale – 0.2 ha

2.5 Identify and release for general disposal and 
alternative operational uses sites that will 
realistically no longer support a regeneration 
scheme.

Continual Number of sites released 
and capital receipts 
generated

1 former regeneration asset was disposed of on the open 
market in return for a capital receipt of £85,000

2.6 Seek interim revenue generating uses on sites 
where regeneration schemes have been 
temporarily postponed.

Continual Annual increase in revenue 
income from the in-scope 
assets

Some sites in Rochdale town centre have been used for 
car parking pending commencement of development.

P
age 124



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

2.7 Support the development of the Town Centres 
and other regeneration initiatives through the 
use of Council assets

Continual Hectares of Council land 
invested into a town centre 
scheme (excluding 
Rochdale Riverside).

Significant town centre sites sold in 2016/17 or currently 
being considered for sale include:

 Land at Mary Street, Heywood (former Boots 
site) – 1.23 hectares sold for residential 
development

 Hare Hill Road, Littleborough (former gas works 
site) – 0.97 hectares being considered for sale

 Providence House, Rochdale – 0.2 hectares 
sold for the intensification of the use of the 
RSPCA rescue centre

 Ann Street, Rochdale – 0.27 hectares, sold for 
retail and public car parking

 Former Mossfield School site, Heywood

Grant of planning consent 
by 31 December 2016

The following Council assets are proposed to be included 
in the town centre development scheme. All the sites 
have been cleared:

 Telegraph House
 Former Municipal Offices
 Former Bus Station
 Former Hollingworth House
 Former St Andrews Church
 Former Broadwater centre
 Former Baillie Street Clinic
 Former Motorama showroom 

Planning application submitted

Commencement of work 
on site by 30 June 2017

Start on site expected to be August 2017

2.8 To use Council assets and private investment to 
deliver the development of Town Centre East

31 March 2019

Completion of development 
by 31 March 2019

Development completion expected to be August 2019

2.9 Prepare a Heritage Asset Management Plan. 30 June 2017 A plan is in place by 31 
March 2017 that facilitates 
the effective and proactive 
management of the 
Council’s heritage assets

Work in progress, being led by the Head of Planning

P
age 125



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

2.10 Implement a long-term strategy for the 
sustainability and viability of Rochdale Town Hall

Continual Positive progress with the 
Council’s bids for securing 
funding and in preparing 
sustainable plans for the 
building

Unsuccessful HLF bid submitted in Sept 2015. Case has 
improved with various refurbishment works that have 
been undertaken since then, e.g. Clock Tower Bistro, and 
has been resubmitted. Results of the bid should be 
issued by the end of April 2017.

2.11 Provide small units for small and starter 
business growth and expansion.

Continual Number of tenants 
vacating industrial estates 
and managed workspace 
for the purpose of business 
expansion.

The Council owns and manages 88 small and starter 
units, which have been fully let for 3 years. Council has 
set a target for the development of an additional 40 units 
over the next 4 years. Asset Development Fund will be 
used to fund some self-build units and a number of sites 
have been identified, including 7 units at Dodgson Street.
The Council’s managed workspace properties between 
them provide 93 small starter office units. A significant 
amount of work has been carried out during the year to 
improve the marketing of these premises and occupancy 
rates have risen from 44% to 61% during the course of 
the year.
In 2016/17 six tenants fulfilled a key purpose of the estate 
by relocating to larger premises due to business 
expansion. 

31 March 2017 Telegraph House vacated 
and demolished. No health 
and safety incidents

Demolition completed on schedule without health & 
safety incidents

2.12 Effectively undertake the day to day 
management of Telegraph House and Brook 
House, and to oversee the vacation of Telegraph 
House and its integration into the Rochdale town 
centre development. Continual Brook House corporate 

budget completes each 
year in surplus

Achieved for 2016/17

P
age 126



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Deliver a year-end budget 
surplus from managed 
workspace.

Year end budget outturn resulted in a deficit of £79k.
During 2016/17 the utilisation rates of two of the premises 
dropped significantly due to the vacation of tenants who 
occupied large units, which left substantial voids. 
Nevertheless, rental income for the year increased, 
exceeding budgets, and also utilisation improved in the 
final two months of 2016/17, with positive signs of 
improving the occupation rates significantly in 2017/18, 
However, these results were achieved only on the back of 
investments into substantial and overdue maintenance 
and improvement works, which pushed the premises into 
deficit. It is expected that the investment will yield positive 
benefits in 2017/18.

Increase rental income 
from the managed 
workspace, industrial 
estates and commercial 
ground leases.

Managed Workspace – the rental income increased by 
5.35% compared with 2015/16.
Industrial Estate – the rental income increased by 2.42% 
in 2016/17 compared with 2015/16.
Commercial Ground Leases – categorisation is under 
way to enable the measurement of rental income

Maintain industrial estates 
occupancy rates in excess 
of 95%

3 out of 88 units were vacant at midnight on 31 March 
2017, an occupancy rate of 96.59%. During 2016/17 a 
total of £2,089 rental income was lost due to void periods, 
representing a loss of 0.71% of the full income achievable 
from the estate.

Achieve an occupancy rate 
for the managed 
workspace in excess of 
70%.

Occupancy rates by number of units have increased from 
44% to 61% in the 12 months to 31 March 2017. 
Occupancy rates by floor area have increased from 55% 
to 60% in the same period.
There are also a number of active enquiries, which are 
expected to result in further lettings early in 2017/18. 
Should all of them come to fruition occupancy rates by 
unit numbers will increase to nearly 70%.

2.13 Increase income and continue to exceed budget 
targets in respect of industrial units and 
managed workspace.

Continual

Reduce Council occupancy 
of investment assets

There has been no reduction in the number of Council 
assets occupied by Council services

P
age 127



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

2.14 Review the strategic objectives and the 
management arrangements for the investment 
portfolio and present options and 
recommendations to Strategic Asset 
Management Group

31 October 2016 Report to Strategic Asset 
Management Group by 31 
October 2016, and action 
plan identified, if 
appropriate

The Council has commissioned and received a report 
from external consultants into the future of the Council’s 
investment portfolio.
Some recommendations have been accepted and 
adopted and have informed the activity of the Asset 
Development Fund and Commercial Investment Fund, 
which initiatives will change the nature of the investment 
portfolio.
Other recommendations are subject to review and to an 
internal recommendation as to whether they should be 
implemented.
In parallel the performance of the investment portfolio is 
also under review.
Strategic Asset Management Group is aware of the 
activities but has yet to consider the issues formally.

2.15 Undertake a verification exercise to ensure 
correct categorisation of commercial ground 
leases.

31 October 2016 Verification exercise 
complete and information 
able to be used to establish 
baseline portfolio 
information

This action will be picked up as part of the portfolio review 
referred to in 2.14 above

2.16 Provide a permanent site for Rochdale Market 30 June 2017 Market relocated to a 
permanent site.

Plans are well-advanced to move the outdoor market to 
The Butts. The former Santander Bank at 3-11 The Butts 
has been acquired for a new indoor market and 
management building. The role of market operator has 
been successfully tendered with contracts in the process 
of completion.

P
age 128



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Workstream 3: Assets Supporting Council Services

Continual Reduction in backlog 
maintenance liabilities

It has not yet proved possible to accurately measure the 
backlog maintenance across the Council’s property 
portfolio. Efforts are being made to provide reliable data 
through a more consistent procedure for undertaking 
condition surveys and updating condition data.

Continual Efficient expenditure of the 
Corporate Landlord and 
Asset Management Group 
budgets demonstrated by:

a) Corporate 
Landlord budgets 
spent up to within 
+/-£10k at 
financial year end

b) AMG budget – 
spend committed 
against the full 
budget of £1.75m.

The 2016/17 year-end outturn on the corporate landlord 
reactive repair and maintenance budget was a surplus of 
£2,552, out of a total budget of £632,544. The number of 
buildings in-scope for corporate landlord is currently 77.
The spend committed in 2016/17 from the planned 
maintenance AMG budget amounted to £1,583,860. The 
budget was invested in prioritised repairs to more than 50 
buildings, plus several multi-building projects to reduce 
the Council’s liabilities for issues such as asbestos, 
resurfacing, and fire risk assessment works.

3.1 Invest in Council buildings, within available 
resources, by way of reactive and planned 
maintenance in order to improve their condition 
and fitness for purpose 

Continual Improvements in the 
suitability assessments of 
buildings

Suitability assessments are not due to be undertaken 
until Summer 2017

3.2 Directors to report to SAM annually on actual 
and proposed developments to their service that 
will impact on the use of assets.

Annual reports completed 
and opportunities and 
imperatives for improving 
or rationalising the portfolio 
are identified

All Directorate SMTs were visited during July & August. A 
further round of visits are to take place in the 
spring/summer 2017.

P
age 129



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Additional assets 
continually identified as 
surplus to the Council’s 
requirements. 

During 2016/17 Township Committees approved the 
release for disposal of 11 sites across the borough

Corporate targets for asset 
rationalisation achieved. 

The corporate asset rationalisation target for 2016/17 was 
£300k – actually achieved £141k.

Reduced number of 
operational assets and 
property-related 
expenditure. 

The Council now has a net four fewer operational 
buildings than at the outset of 2016/17, having closed, 
vacated or transferred seven buildings in 2016/17. 
Property related expenditure in respect of these seven 
properties has reduced liabilities by £51k. 
Additional costs in respect of the acquisition of 3-11 The 
Butts, accepting the surrender of the lease to Back o’ th’ 
Moss Community Centre and the occupation of Unit 14 
Phoenix Close industrial Estate have not been quantified.

Clear business case in 
place for the continued 
retention of assets.

Business cases for the retention of assets have been 
submitted by Services in respect of all assets that have 
been under active consideration for rationalisation

Reduction in the number of 
the Council’s investment 
assets occupied by Council 
services

Currently 3 units occupied by Council services. One 
service has downsized but remains an industrial unit 
occupier. Services are regularly challenged as part of the 
asset rationalisation process to support their continued 
use of the assets.

3.3 Continually challenge the Council’s reasons for 
holding assets, by maintaining and presenting 
quarterly to Operational Asset Management 
Group performance data in respect of all assets.

Continual

Reduction in the number 
and financial liabilities of 
the Council’s leased-in 
assets

The number and rental liability of the Council’s leased in 
assets remained static in 2016/17. 
Newbold Buildings is expected to become vacant by 
May/June 2017, which will reduce rental liability by £31k 
(8.2%)
The future of Green Lane Depot is under review by the 
Director of Neighbourhoods
The lease to the Museum Store expired in 2016. 
Negotiations are in progress to agree terms for the new 
lease.

3.4 Review all agreements of occupation for assets 
shared with public sector partners

31 December 2016 Valid agreements of 
occupation in place for all 
assets shared with public 
sector partners.

Completed

P
age 130



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Joint initiatives are 
implemented that 
contribute to the efficiency 
of service delivery and/or 
the reduction in asset 
numbers and costs.

The Strategic Estates Group is meeting regularly and is 
working in conjunction with other cross-organisational 
groups reviewing the development of joined-up services. 
Projects currently under consideration include:

 Integrated health and social care hubs in each 
township, for which funding of £50k for feasibility 
studies has been secured from central 
government

 Rochdale Infirmary master-planning, which will 
consider linkages through to the Town Centre 
and also opportunities and challenges presented 
by the Falinge improvement plans

 Kirkholt Health Centre
 Springhill Resource Centre
 Milnrow Surgery
 Peterloo Medical Centre
 Brook House.  The two floors to be vacated by 

the Council in Autumn 2017 are likely to be 
leased to a public sector organisation.

 Training nursing home

The completion of the 
mapping of all public sector 
assets by 31 December 
2016

Completed

3.5 Maintain links with partners at Estate Manager 
level – a function currently performed by the 
Strategic Estates Group, chaired by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group of the health service

Continual

The Council’s commitment 
to the Strategic Estates 
and Locality Plans 
developed by the Rochdale 
Strategic Estates Group 
are delivering positive 
benefits for asset 
management and service 
delivery

Currently too early in the lifespan of the various projects 
to assess quantifiable benefits

3.6 Undertake an internal audit of the Council’s 
statutory compliance regime in 2017/18 to 
ensure that all the Council’s obligations are 
being effectively managed and risks mitigated. 

31 December 2017 All recommendations from 
the audit have been 
actioned or have been 
programmed for action in 
an appropriate timescale.

Internal Audit has scoped the proposed audit, which is 
scheduled to commence in Quarter 1 of 2017/18

P
age 131



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

3.7 Review the Council’s statutory compliance 
regime for leased-out properties, with a 
particular emphasis on properties let to the 
voluntary sector, to ensure that the risks of 
building deterioration and health and safety 

30 September 2018 All recommendations from 
the review have been 
actioned or have been 
programmed for action in 
an appropriate timescale.

Action will be commenced simultaneously with or 
immediately following the internal audit of statutory 
compliance

3.8 Introduce processes to enable the Council to 
monitor the utilisation of Number One Riverside 
and to target improvements in occupation levels

31 December 2017 Utilisation data up to date 
and accurate and routinely 
maintained in that condition

The raw data is available, but the data, its updating 
processes and the means of using the data need to be 
refined in order to provide effective support for service 
improvements.

Workstream 4: Assets Held for Sale

4.1 In each of the three financial years 2016/19 to 
avoid budget pressures by meeting or exceeding 
any Council target for capital receipts from the 
disposal of land and property assets

Continual Where capital receipts 
targets are set by the 
Director of Resources, to 
meet or to exceed that 
target.

No targets have been set by Director of Resources. Value 
of assets sold in 2016/17 = £1,676,501 from 18 assets, 4 
of which were sold at under market value
Targets have been set for increasing the volume of lots 
presented at each auction through 2017/18

4.2 Implement the recommendations arising from 
the Internal Audit report on disposals.

30 September 2016 Implementation of all 
recommendations by 30 
June 2016

Eight out of ten recommendations have been actioned. 
The outstanding action relates to:

 Review of Scheme of Delegation (refer to action 
B above)

 Minimum filing standards

4.3 Continue to work with GMCA to implement, if 
appropriate, a standardised marketing process 
across the Greater Manchester authorities.

31 March 2017 A reasoned decision as to 
the appropriate way for the 
Council to proceed.

A protocol has been distributed by GMCA but is not yet 
embedded as standard practice in each organisation.

Workstream 5: Assets and the Environment

5.1 Prepare a Playing Pitch Strategy for the borough 31 December 2016 Playing Pitch Strategy in 
place and making a 
positive contribution

The Playing Pitch Strategy produced with the support of 
Sport England was presented to and approved for 
consultation by Cabinet on 31 October 2016. The 
consultation period has now closed. However, Sport 
England have subsequently changed their advice, 
indicating that significant additional work may be 
required. 

P
age 132



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

5.2 Continue to progress the mapping of all the 
assets and the creation of an Atrium record for 
each. Completion March 2019.

31 March 2019 All assets mapped and 
recorded by March 2019

Between November 2016 to March 2017 370 “new” 
assets were identified and recorded, subject to further 
review

5.3 Implement the allotments management strategy 
approved by the Council’s Township 
Committees in September 2015

31 December 2017 The implementation of the 
changes required by the 
strategy

The Council has commenced enforcement action against 
allotment holders who are using the land for alternative 
purposes with the objective of ensuring the noncomplying 
allotments are either transferred to garden tenancies, 
converted back to allotments or surrendered so the 
Council can seek an alternative occupier

5.4 Increase the number of new allotments 
made available to local residents

31 March 2019 Number of new 
allotments created or 
former allotments 
brought back into use. 
Target >100 by March 
2020

38 new allotment plots have been created at Kellet St 
community growing scheme after the site was cleared of 
dangerous structures, extensive fly tipping, Japanese 
Knotweed and Balsam infestations. The site was secured 
with new security fencing, a car parking hardstanding 
area created to prevent congestion on nearby streets and 
path network installed, including two as accessible plots 
for people with disabilities.
Various potential new allotment sites across the Borough 
have been identified and being in the process of being 
assessed for access, contamination and other factors 
prior to commencing site works to enable allocation as 
new allotment plots. Largest site at Great Howarth has 
the potential to accommodate 100 plots.

P
age 133



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

5.5 Transfer land, as appropriate, into community 
management, e.g. village greens, community 
gardens

Continual Amount of land (hectares) 
brought into community 
management

The following land transfers have been completed in 
2016/17

 0.55 Hectares at Kellet St / Hey St community 
growing scheme transferred to Allotment Society 
2016 

 0.55 hectares at Latrigg Crescent, Langley – 
community garden to be run by Status4All

 0.01 Hectares Hopwood Park (Heywood) disused 
building in the park leased to Friends of Hopwood 
Park to obtain grant funding to convert into café – 
low hectareage but high financial value as risk 
removed of declining asset that would have been 
expensive to demolish and install fencing to park 
perimeter 

 0.02 Hectares flower borders next to Denehurst 
House in Denehurst Park to Friends of Denehurst 
Park

In addition, the Council is in talks with a view to 
concluding the first phased community asset transfer of 
one of its parks – Falinge Park (8.89 hectares) 

Continual Additional assets 
continually identified as 
surplus to the Council’s 
requirements. 

The Environmental Management Service has 
implemented a project to identify land that it no longer 
requires to deliver its services, and is working with 
Estates & Assets Service to identify sites that might be 
declared surplus to requirements.

5.6 Continually challenge the Council’s reasons for 
holding assets and reduce the number of assets:

Continual Reduced area of land 
under direct management 
and maintenance.

Two areas of land, actively managed by Environmental 
Management were disposed of in 2016/17, comprising in 
total 2.81 hectares

P
age 134



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Workstream 6: Assets in the Community

31 March 2017 An agreed approach to the 
management of these 
assets that can be applied 
to new and existing 
lettings.

6.1 Engagement between Council Members and 
Officers to clarify an approach to the 
management of these assets that balances the 
Council’s commitment to support the voluntary 
sector, financial considerations, statutory 
obligations and sound property management 
practice. 31 March 2017 Reduction in the levels of 

“likelihood” in the risk 
assessment

The Council has authorised the investment of up to £250k 
per annum for the next 4 years in its leased-out 
community centres. Works have been commissioned in 
respect of 6 centres. One community centre requires 
further surveys to assess whether investment is 
worthwhile.
Condition surveys have been commissioned in respect of 
two further community centres and are currently awaited.

Workstream 7: Assets Adding Value

7.1 Complete the approved disposal programme for 
shops, farms and garage sites

31 March 2017 All approved assets in 
these categories have 
been exposed to the 
market by 31 December 
2017

Shops disposal programme completed - 2 disposals, 
achieving capital receipt of £93k. 
Marketing in 2016/17: Garage Sites – 20no, 1no 
marketed
Other than garage sites disposals of investment assets 
(including farms) has effectively been suspended until the 
portfolio has been reviewed.

7.2 Progress disposal programme for residential 
ground leases

31 December 2016 The first tranche of assets, 
those approved for 
disposal, exposed to the 
market by 31 December 
2016 (subject to a review 
of the portfolio’s strategic 
objectives and 
management 
arrangements).

No progress to date. Awaiting conclusion of the review of 
the investment portfolio (refer to 2.14 above)

P
age 135



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

Continual Achievement of the annual 
rental income target from 
the portfolio.

The rental income from the investment portfolio received 
in 2016/17 exceeded the budget by £65k

7.3 Keep the portfolio under review in order to 
benefit from all opportunities for rental increases.

Continual Increase in the net rental 
income and/or yield from 
each category of asset in 
the portfolio

Industrial Estate –increased by £6,907 or 2.42%
Managed Workspace – increase of £12,024 or 5.65%
Advertising Hoardings – reduction of £3,123 or 10.52%
Grazing Licences – increase of £6,327 or 27.85%
Garage Sites – reduced by £614 or 1.1%
Garden Tenancies – increased by £2,028 or 3.06%
Shop – no change
Farms – no change
Telecoms – increase of £1,808 or 12.68%
Total net increase across all categories = £25,357 or 
3.44%

7.4 Undertake a verification exercise to ensure 
correct categorisation of miscellaneous assets 
and commercial ground leases.

31 December 2016 Verification exercise 
complete and information 
able to be used to establish 
baseline portfolio 
information

The data is currently in the process of being cleansed

7.5 Identify opportunities for reinvesting capital 
receipts to provide the Council with funding to 
improve its property portfolio or to invest into 
regeneration.

Continual Discernible and 
measurable outcomes 
achieved from the funds 
that are reinvested.

As a part of the Asset Development Fund proposals the 
Director of Economy is authorised to retain capital 
receipts from the disposal of assets from the investment 
portfolio (2016/17 = £375,500 from 7 disposals) and 
excess rental income (2016/17 = £65k)

Workstream 8: Assets for Education

8.1 Compete the annual net capacity assessments Annual Accurate completion of all 
NCAs in accordance with 
national guidelines and the 
timescale set by the 
Director of Childrens 
Services

17/18 NCA exercise underway.  Process reviewed and 
refined by Property Services for 2017 to ensure deadlines 
are met and information provided is accurate, as this 
influences the Council’s funding awards from the EFA 
and the school admissions process.

P
age 136



No. Action Target Completion Success Measure Position as at 31 March 2017

8.2 Manage the process of transferring schools to 
academy status

Continual Council and students’ 
interests have been 
satisfactorily protected 
through the transfer 
process

Schools Academy Conversion Manager appointed wef 
01/09/16.  Conversion of Middleton Technology School to 
Academy completed 01/09/16.  Work underway with 
potential converter schools for 2017. 

8.3 Commission and complete an annual 
programme of condition surveys

Annual Programme of condition 
surveys completed on time

15 school building condition surveys undertaken in 2016.
14 further school surveys and 4 for Children’s Centres 
commissioned for 2017.  Surveying to be undertaken 
during summer term and reports to be issued to School 
Capital Programme and Development Manager/schools 
by 15/09/17.  

8.4 Target available capital resources at those 
schools in greatest need.

Continual No schools should close 
due to health and safety 
reasons or poor building 
condition

2016 Capital programme of 25 high priority projects 
completed (£1.7m ex.fees).  2017 Capital programme of 
23 high priority projects commissioned (£2.5m  inc. fees)  
with majority of work to be undertaken during summer 
holiday period to minimise disruption to schools.

8.5 Plan and implement an effective annual 
programme to undertake maintenance 
responsibilities and to ensure that schools 
comply with their statutory obligations

Continual Schools premises remain 
incident and injury free due 
to property failure

See above. Additionally, Property to identify LA 
maintained schools which do not buy back into 
maintenance SLAs and confirm they meet statutory 
liabilities.    

8.6 Identify, as required, the means of providing 
additional school capacity, including capital 
investment, land appropriation, site acquisition 
and new build.

Continual School capacity meets 
demand.

Significant place planning expansion projects 
approved/underway for 2017:
Primary - Sandbrook CPS, Bowlee Park CPS, St 
Andrews CE PS, Moorhouse CPS, Whittaker Moss PS St 
Joseph’s RC PS, Woodland PS, Boarshaw CPS
Secondary - Falinge Park HS, Kingsway Park HS, 
Matthew Moss HS.
Special Schools – Newlands, Springside and Redwood.
New School Organisation Manger appointed February 
2017 and currently reviewing pupil projections and place 
need beyond 2018 .

P
age 137



APPENDIX: PROGRESS AGAINST PROPERTY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Previous OutcomesNumber Measure Outcome Sought Purpose

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Performance 
2016/17

Building a Sustainable 
Portfolio

12.1 Bring in the Corporate 
Landlord Budget at financial 
year end within +/- £10,000

Annual budget 
outturn limited to +/- 
£10,000 

To indicate the 
effectiveness of the 
management of the 
corporate landlord budget

£2,915 u/spend £4,120 o/spend £10,006 u/spend £2,552 u/spend

12.2 Industrial Estates – 
occupation levels at >95% 
when considered annually on 
31 March by percentage of 
Units

Result in excess of 
95% annually on 31 
March

To indicate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s estate 
management and the 
fitness for purpose of the 
industrial estate.

100% 100% 100% 96.59%

Industrial Estates – 
occupation levels at >95% 
when considered annually on 
31 March by percentage of 
Floor Areas

Result in excess of 
95% annually on 31 
March

To indicate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s estate 
management and the 
fitness for purpose of the 
industrial estate.

100% 100% 100% 98.42%

Industrial Estates – increase 
in rental income/m2

Improving rental 
income levels

To ensure that the rental 
value of the portfolio is 
fully exploited n/a n/a n/a Increase of 

£1.01/m2

P
age 138



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Previous Outcomes Performance 
2016/17

12.2 
(cont)

Commercial/Industrial leases 
– increase in rental income 
/asset

Improving rental 
income levels

To ensure that the rental 
value of the portfolio is 
fully exploited n/a n/a n/a n/a

12.3 Managed Workspace – 
Occupancy levels at >70% 
when considered annually on 
31 March by percentage of 
Units

Result in excess of 
70% annually on 31 
March

To indicate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s estate 
management and the 
fitness for purpose of the 
managed workspace.

63% 59% 44% 61%

Managed Workspace – 
Occupancy levels at >70% 
when considered annually on 
31 March by percentage of 
Floor Areas

Result in excess of 
70% annually on 31 
March

To indicate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s estate 
management and the 
fitness for purpose of the 
managed workspace.

69% 65% 55% 60%

Managed Workspace – 
increase in rental income /m2

Improving rental 
income levels

To ensure that the rental 
value of the portfolio is 
fully exploited

Unavailable £174.54/m2 £186.37/m2 £190.57/m2

12.4 Reduction in the number of 
investment assets occupied 
by RBC or the voluntary 
sector.

Percentage fewer 
assets so occupied 
annually on 31 
March

To make more units 
available for small 
businesses and to 
increase rents payable 
from third parties

9 9 4 4

12.5 a) Industrial Units – number of 
tenants vacating for the 
purpose of business 
expansion or taking additional 
space on site

Number during 
each financial year

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
properties in supporting 
small business growth.

Unavailable Unavailable Unavailable 2

P
age 139



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Previous Outcomes Performance 
2016/17

12.5 
(cont)

b) Managed Workspace – 
number of tenants vacating 
for the purpose of business 
expansion or taking additional 
space on site

Number during 
each financial year

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
properties in supporting 
small business growth.

Unavailable Unavailable 3 4

12.6 Reduction in backlog 
maintenance Priority 1 works.

Percentage 
improvement over 
the previous 
financial year, 
measured annually 
on 31 March

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s capital 
investment and routine 
maintenance activities.

Significant improvements have been made to the condition survey programme. 
However, without sufficient resources to ensure that all properties are surveyed 
on a five year rolling cycle this measure is currently an unreliable indicator of 
performance

n/a Location: 3.94/5 n/a n/a

n/a Accessibility/ 
Image: 3.89/5

n/a n/a

n/a Layout/ Facilities: 
3.95/5

n/a n/a

n/a Safety and 
Security: 3.89/5

n/a n/a

n/a Occupier 
Satisfaction 4.06/5

n/a n/a

12.7 Improvements in suitability 
assessments (3 year cycle)

Percentage 
improvement in the 
average score 
compared with the 
previous suitability 
assessment.

To measure the fitness 
for purpose of the asset 
for the delivery of the 
service accommodated

n/a Overall Score 
3.94/5

n/a n/a

P
age 140



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Previous Outcomes Performance 
2016/17

Asset Rationalisation

12.8 Number of assets Held for 
Sale on 31 March, as a 
percentage of assets held for 
sale 12 months previously. 
Target >90%.

Achievement of 
target

To measure the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s property review 
processes in maintaining 
a pipeline of potential 
disposals.

Due to changes in the way assets are categorised this indicator has so far 
proved to be an unreliable measure of performance

12.9 For leased-in assets with less 
than 5 years unexpired and/or 
with contractual rent reviews 
and/or break clauses and/or 
subject to a sub-lease, 
percentage reduction of: 

 Number of Assets

Percentage 
reductions in 
number measured 
annually on 31 
March

To assess the reduction 
in property-related costs 
and liabilities

17.6% 42.9% 0% 0%

For leased-in assets with less 
than 5 years unexpired and/or 
with contractual rent reviews 
and/or break clauses and/or 
subject to a sub-lease, 
percentage reduction of: 

 Rental Liability

Percentage 
reductions in rental 
liability measured 
annually on 31 
March

To assess the reduction 
in property-related costs 
and liabilities

37.3% 31.9% (9.2%) 0%

12.10 Disposals – total number of 
completed sales of assets 
with a market value in excess 
of £10,000

Percentage 
increase over 
previous financial 
year

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals 
programme.

9
7

-22.22%
11

+57.14%
18

+63.64%

12.11 a) Hectares of land sold for 
defined regeneration, housing 
or employment purposes, 
where the end use conditions 
have been imposed on the 
purchaser

Percentage 
increase over 
previous financial 
year

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals 
programme. 0 ha 2.78 ha

11.98 ha
+329.86%

4.11 ha
-65.69%

P
age 141



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Previous Outcomes Performance 
2016/17

12.11 
(cont)

b) Hectares of land sold for 
general disposal 

Percentage 
increase over 
previous financial 
year

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals 
programme.

2.00 ha
1.78 ha
-11.00%

1.4 ha
-21.35%

1.41 ha
+0.71%

12.12 Disposals – total capital 
receipts from completed sales 
of assets with a market value 
in excess of £10,000

Percentage 
increase over 
previous financial 
year

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals 
programme.

£1,273,500 £1,484,001 £2,274,575 £1,676,501

Average capital receipt per 
asset sold

To provide trend 
information £143,722 £212,000 £206,780 £93,139

Capital receipt per hectare of 
land sold

To provide trend 
information £636,750 £325,439 £169,998 £303,714

12.13 a) Disposals – percentage of 
shops approved for sale 
exposed to the market. Target 
100%

Achievement of 
target

To demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals 
programme.

n/a 0% 50% 100%

b) Disposals – percentage of 
farms approved for sale 
exposed to the market. Target 
100%

n/a 0/5 = 0% 0/5 = 0% 0/5 = 0%

c) Disposals – percentage of 
garage sites approved for sale 
exposed to the market. Target 
100%

n/a 0 8% 16%

P
age 142



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Previous Outcomes Performance 
2016/17

Data Requirements

12.14 Average length of time taken 
by the organisation to update 
the Terrier system and 
associated textual databases 
following completion of the 
transaction

Average number of 
days, with 
percentage 
improvement over 
previous financial 
year

To assess how efficient 
the Council is at 
maintaining the property 
information systems up to 
date.

Not available Not available Not available

57.52
(indicative figure 
for baseline use 
only – based on 
data that is not 

wholly complete)

12.15 Average length of time (days) 
taken by the Estates Team to 
update the Terrier system and 
associated textual databases 
following receipt of the 
completion statement. Target 
<5 days

Average number of 
days, with 
percentage 
improvement over 
previous financial 
year

To assess how efficient 
the estates & assets 
Service is at maintaining 
the property information 
systems up to date.

4.91
2.49

+49.29%
2.33

+6.43%
1.70

+27.04%

P
age 143



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members (reflecting the Council’s political balance) who 
manage the functions of the Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the how we do it section below).  
The meeting dates and report deadline dates are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 2nd June, 2017 Monday, 6th June, 2017 Tuesday, 14th June, 2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 6th July, 2017 Monday, 10th July, 2017 Tuesday, 18th July, 2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 7th September, 2017

Monday, 11th September, 

2017

Tuesday, 19th September, 

2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 9th November, 2017

Monday, 13th November, 

2017

Tuesday, 21st November, 

2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 11th January, 2018 Monday, 15th January, 2018

Tuesday, 23rd January, 

2018

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 1st February, 2018 Monday, 5th February, 2018

Tuesday, 13th February, 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 8th March, 2018 Monday, 12th March, 2018 Tuesday, 20th March, 2018

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 14



What we do

The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of undertaking policy and budget development reviews as 
well as questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior 
Officers. The Committee’s work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it

The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and methodology.
 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate service development and delivery; for scrutiny of 

partnerships or key contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; corporate financial monitoring and the 
annual budget development consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and Directors.

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development and the annual budget proposals.
 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s 

Performance Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, where appropriate.
 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by external agencies (where appropriate to this 

Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by 

Members of the Council.
 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to 

report to the Council, where appropriate.
 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough 

and, where appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such studies and reviews.
 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - Constitution of the Council).

P
age 145



WORK PROGRAMME 2017-2018

Item Purpose
What do you want to accomplish?

Improve policy impacts or 
democratic processes? 

Activities

How are you going to 
accomplish the 

objective?
i.e. presentation,

study group/co-opt 
Members or report

Who/
originator 

Who is 
responsible 

for the 
activities
(name of 
officer)

Lead Officer When

When will 
the 

activity 
begin and 

end?

Comments/action 

Executive Decisions

Call in Call in Notice Non-Executive 
Members

Committee 
Services Clerk

When a 
decision has 

been called in

Members are sent The 
Notice of Executive 

Decision(s)

Forward Plan Key Decision/General 
Exemption Notice/report

Committee via 
Chair

Committee 
Services Clerk

When a Key 
Decision is 
made 
When a 
decision 
needs to be 
made in 
private or 
when the 28 
day notice 
cannot be 
given. 

Forward Plan – detailing key 
decisions are published

General Exemption Notices are 
published detailing why the 

information is exempt/why 28 day 
notice has not been given

Urgent 
Decisions 

(outside the 
budget or policy 

framework)

To enable Non- Executive Members to 
scrutinise the decisions taken by the 

executive/individual officers and support 
good governance. 

MO/ CFO confirmation 
that/report the decision is 

contrary to BOPF and reasons 
(Constitution – Part 4C, 4.1)

Chair of 
O&S/Mayor/Deput

y Mayor
Committee 

Services Clerk
Chair will be 

notified

14th June 2017

Work 
Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committees are 
required to set a work programme and to 
report it to the Council (Constitution - Part 

4E, 4.2.) 

The work programme will be 
presented to the Committee for 

review at every meeting. 

Chair in 
consultation with 
Members of the 

Committee, 
Officer and the 

SLT

Committee 
Services Clerk

Included on 
every agenda

Decisions: 
Amended as per the 
requirements of the committee

Directorate Plan 
Q4 update.  

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee As it is required to consider 

corporate policies   (constitution, Part 3).
Reports

. Chair J Rooney 18th June 
2017

To provide updates on a 6 
monthly basis but sooner if any 

concerns arise – added to 
November’s meeting.

P
age 146



John Rooney to forward 
membership details of the 
Communication Group to 

Members of this Committee. 
(Emailed information to all 

Members on 20.6.17)

Place 
branding/Rochd

ale Brand 
Research 

Intelligence Hub 

At a meeting of the CO&S on 7th February 
2017, Members requested an update report 

on the ‘Place Branding Project and Rochdale 
Brand’

project, including a detailed action plan to a 
future meeting of the Committee,

and also a further update on the ‘Research 
and Intelligence Hub’ and ‘Shared

ICT Services’ with Oldham Council for 
Performance monitoring 

Report Committee J Rooney 14th June 
2017

Presentation noted and 
welcomed – no further action

e-RIC System 
Was requested at a meeting in November 
2016 when Members wanted an update e-

RIC system
Report? Committee John Rooney

Caroline Wolfenden to train 
Members on 6th September 2017 

–no further action required. 

Report 2015/16 
outturn

Revenue
Capital
Savings

Collection Fund 
to be presented 

to the 
Committee at 

the first 
available 

meeting after 
their submission 

to Cabinet. 

As above Several reports Chair/Officer Julie Murphy

Reports for 
16/17 as 

soon as they 
have been to 
cabinet they 
are on the 

agenda of the 
1st available 
O & S come 
every year

Reports Noted 
1)  Julie Murphy to advise if any 
Finance training is available for 
Councillor Smith and Councillor 

Zaman and 

2) Forward to all Members further 
details clarifying the Budget carry 

forward requests which are 
referenced at Paragraph 4.2.6 of 

the Revenue Finance Outturn 
Report 

Further to the Collection Fund 
Outturn Report and

3) to write to all Members of the 
Committee confirming those 
specific items for which the 

Council collects funds on behalf 
of the Mayor for the Greater 

Manchester Region 
GMCA/AGMA 
Minutes also 

add governance 
and operation of 

GMCA 
format/report 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee - To receive reports from outside 
bodies where appropriate (constitution, Part 

3).

Minutes/ decisions made by 
AGMA/GMCA 

Committee/
Chair Clerk 

To be 
included on 

every agenda 
Noted –no further action.

Sickness and Further to an informal session – Members (at Discussion As above Louise Griffiths/ TBC by June Members noted the informal 

P
age 147



Absence 
Management

the meeting held on 9th March 2017) 
requested a study group to develop to 
examine sickness absence related issues in 
more detail with a view to finding ways to 
help improve? Will need to appoint a study 
group of 5/6 Members approx. should be 
politically balanced where possible.

Amreen Akhtar 2017-March 
2018

session and requested that 
appointment of Study group be 
deferred to the next meeting – 
pending a discussion with the 

Head of Human Resources who 
be invited to the next meeting 
.(emailed invite on 19.6.17) 

Added to the next meeting to 
request that the Study Group 

Members be appointed. 
18th July 2017

Cyber Security 

Members requested this item be added to 
the plan at the Joint Scrutiny Workshop held 
on 12th June 2017 to scrutinise to examine 
the measures in place in case of a disaster. 

Presentation Judith Jones John Rooney
J Jones to 
deliver a 

presentation 

Asset Strategy 
Update

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee (Constitution - Part 3) This was 

presented to Committee in March 2016 when 
Members requested a 12 monthly update.

Report to Council P Gregory P Gregory July 2017

Performance 
Monitoring 4th 

Quarterly 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee (constitution, Part 4E).

Sickness Absence and 
Agylisis-KPI’s Committee/Chair Mark Jones –

Rosemary Barker 

Quarterly 
throughout 

the year

Sickness and 
Absence 

Management

Further to an informal session – Members (at 
the meeting held on 9th March 2017) 
requested a study group (of 5/6 Members 
approx.- should be politically balanced where 
possible)  to develop to examine sickness 
absence related issues in more detail.  
On 14th June 2017 Members noted the 
informal session and requested that the 
appointment of a study group be deferred to 
the next meeting – pending a discussion with 
the Head of Human Resources). 

discussion As above

Rosemary 
Barker/ Louise 

Griffiths/
Amreen Akhtar

confirmed

Agilisys update 
KPI’s

This update was requested at the meeting in 
January 2016 as Members wanted to review 

the KPI’s 
Presentation Committee Mark Jones confirmed

Update on the 
Greater 

Manchester 
Devolution 
Agreement

The report provides an update on progress of 
various matters relating to the Greater 

Manchester Devolution Agreement.
Report Committee clerk

Work 
Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committees are 
required to set a work programme and to 
report it to the Council (Constitution - Part 
4E, 4.2.) at the last meeting held on 14th 
June 2017, Members requested that The 

Directorate Plan, the refreshed Place Plan 

The work programme which 
will be presented to the 

Committee and the Directorate 
Plans will be added to the 

agenda for discussion

Members of the 
Committee, 

Attendees: 
Councillor Brett 
Portfolio Holder 

Victoria 
Bradshaw  

John Rooney

confirmed

P
age 148



and Corporate Plan (the latest or draft 
version be added to the agenda) and that the 
Portfolio Holder for Resources, The Director 

of Resources and Neighbourhoods be invited 
to the next meeting for a discussion in order 

to develop and prioritise the work 
programme. 

19th September 2017 
Directorate Plan 

update 1st 
Quarter 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee As it is required to consider 

corporate policies   (constitution, Part 3).
Reports Chair

V Bradshaw
John Entwistle
John Rooney

June 
2017/Jan 

2018 
Performance 
Monitoring 1st 

Quarter 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee (constitution, Part 4E).

Reports -Consists of Corporate 
Complaints- Sickness Absence 

and Agylisis-KPI’s
Committee/Chair Rosemary Barker

Mark Jones

Quarterly 
throughout 
the year.

Budget 
monitoring 

2017/18 period 
4

Revenue
Capital
Savings

Collection Fund
These come on 
a quarterly basis 
period 1,2,3,4,

As above Series of reports period 2 Chair/Officer Julie Murphy 

Received 
quarlerly 

Reports for 
16/17 on first 
available O & 

S after 
cabinet. 

Discretionary 
Fees and 
Charges 
2018/19,
Capital 

Programme 
2018/19 -
2020/21
Savings 

Programme 
2018/19 – 
2019/20

Will come as and when Series of reports Chair Julie Murphy 2018-
2020

Local 
Government 

Ombudsman’s 
Annual Review 

2016/17 

As above Report Chair Carolyn Witham 2016/17

GMCA/AGMA 
Minutes 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee - To receive reports from outside 
bodies where appropriate (constitution, Part 

3).

Minutes/ decisions made by 
AGMA/GMCA 

Committee/
Chair Clerk 

To be 
included on 

every agenda 
as 

appropriate

P
age 149



Petitions

At an O & S Meeting on 8th December 2016 
Members considered a petition protesting 

savings proposals in Adult Members 
requested a report detailing the processes 

and procedures for considering petitions – in 
order for them to find ways to improve the 
way petitions are received and processed. 

Report Committee P Thompson On track 

21st November 2017

Directorate Plan 
update 1st and 

2nd Quarter 
2017/18 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee As it is required to consider 

corporate policies   (constitution, Part 3). 
Members requested this be considered on a 

6 monthly basis rather than quarterly (last 
review in June 2017)

1 cover report and 1 update 
per Directorate Chair

John Rooney/
Victoria 

Bradshaw

June 
2017/Jan 

2018 

Performance 
monitoring 2nd 

Quarter 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee  (constitution, Part 4E).

Reports -Consists of Corporate 
Complaints- Sickness Absence 

and Agylisis-KPI’s

Committee/
Chair

Rosemary Barker 
Mark Jones

Quarterly 
throughout 

the year 
Consultation on 
Medium Term 

Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) 

2018/19 - 
2022/23

Yearly update Reports Chair/Finance Julie Murphy Yearly 

Budget 
monitoring 

2017/18 period 
5

Revenue
Capital
Savings

Collection Fund

As above Series of reports period 3 Chair/Officer Julie Murphy Reports for 
16/17

28th January 2018 

Directorate Plan 
update 4th 

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee As it is required to consider 

corporate policies   (constitution, Part 3).
Reports Chair

John Rooney/
Victoria 

Bradshaw

June 
2017/Jan 

2018 
Budget Update 

2019/19 - 
2020/21 
following  

Autumn Budget

This function falls within the remit of the 
Committee As it is required to consider 

corporate policies   (constitution, Part 3).
Review report chair Julie Murphy 20019/21

Budget 
monitoring 

2017/18 period 
8

Revenue
Capital
Savings

As above Series of reports
Period 4 Chair/Officer Julie Murphy

Reports for 
16/17

In 2018

P
age 150



Collection Fund

Investment 
Strategy 

Further to the finance strategy reports 
presented  February 2016 Members wanted 
more info regarding the Investment Strategy 

that was referred to in the report. 

Report Chair Julie Murphy

Agilisys update 
KPI’s

This update was requested at the meeting in 
January 2016 as Members wanted to review 

the KPI’s 
Report Committee Mark Jones ?

13th February 2017 
Local 

Government Act 
2013 - Report 

on robustness of 
Budget

As above Report Chair Julie Murphy

Budget 2018/19 
including:-

•Council Tax 
Setting 2018/19

•Revenue 
Budget 2018/19 

and forecast 
2019/20 and 

2020/21
•Capital Budget 

2018/19 – 
2020/21

•Treasury 
Management 

2018/19
•Pay Policy 

2018/19
•MTFS 2018/19 

- 2022/23

Every year  - finalised budget proposal will 
go to Cabinet and Council after Report Chair Julie Murphy 2018

20th March 2018
Performance 

Monitoring 3rd 
Quarter 

As above
Reports -Consists of Corporate 
Complaints- Sickness Absence 

and Agylisis-KPI’s
Committee/Chair Rosemary Barker

Mark Jones

Quarterly 
throughout 

the year 

P
age 151



Items to be scheduled 

Insurance 
Claims

A report went to Committee on 9th March 2017 
regarding insurance claims trends. The Committee 

requested that a report on Insurance Claims be 
submitted to meetings on an annual basis preferably 

earlier in the Municipal year to align with the 
Insurance annual cycle.  Decided (2) a further report 
on this matter be submitted to the Committee in the 

autumn of 2018.

Report Committee Kirsty Smith Autumn 2018 As above 

ICT 
Development 

Plan 

Members requested at joint scrutiny workshop held 
on 12th March Report Committee John Rooney

Emailed J 
Rooney this 
Plan is due 
March 2018

Communication 
Strategy

For information only - Action from the meeting held 
on 14th June 2017 J Rooney to speak with Danny 
Brierley and confirm when this will be provided for 

information.

Report Committee John Rooney
Emailed J 
Rooney on 
19.6.17 TBC

Mr Eamonn 
Boylan

At the of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 14th June 2017, Members 

requested that Mr Eamonn Boylan – Chief 
Executive of the GMCA be invited to a future 

meeting to help all Scrutiny Members to better 
understand devolution the impacts and implications 

for Rochdale

Information/ discussion Committee S Shahid TBC Meeting arranged  for 20th July 
2017 - confirmed

Potential 
Homelessness 

study group 
Empty 

properties 
Town Centre 
update – to 
include the 

plans for the 
Seven 

Sisters/Rochdal
e Riverside 

Development.

At the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Workshop 
held on 12th June 2017, Members of the three 
Scrutiny Committees identified potential work 

programme items that related to homelessness, 
empty properties, plans for the Riverside 

Development as well as the future plans for the 7 
Sisters.  It was decided that a joint update for all 

Scrutiny Members was the best way forward as this 
would provide Members with the information they 

required along with the opportunity to organise  
work programmes and coordinate the work between 

the three scrutiny committees efficiently and 
effectively. 

TBC Committee

C. Denyer  
(CD) 

To arrange 
and invite 
Members. 

TBC On-going - TBC

P
age 152


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Directorate Plans
	5 Corporate Plan 2016
	Append. 1 for Corporate Plan 2016-19, 12/09/2016 Cabinet, 12/09/2016 Cabinet

	2016-08-02-place-plan-2016-2021-v3
	Directorate Plan - Resources 2017-18 DB 23.05.17 v2 FINAL
	Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017 Final (2)

	8 4th Quarter Performance Monitoring 2016/17- Corporate Complaints
	Append. 1 for 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints

	9 4th Quarter Performance Monitoring 2016/17- Health Related Absence Reporting
	10 Revenue and Benefits - Presentation
	Append. 1 for Non Domestic Rates - Discretionary Relief Policy Ammendments
	Append. 2 for Non Domestic Rates - Discretionary Relief Policy Ammendments

	11 Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 Guidelines, Timetable and Public Engagement - Presentation
	13 Asset Strategy - Progress Report 2016/17
	14 Work Programme



